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12 31 12 31
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
93,364 78,771 65,527 60,070 46,198

(1,560,112) (1,316,263) (1,094,956) (1,003,770) (771,969)
29,577 28,928 26,754 23,620 18,085

(494,232) (483,387) (447,059) (394,690) (302,200)
29,528 28,883 26,715 23,591 18,068
(493,413) (482,635) (446,408) (394,206) (301,916)
223,493 178,975 152,839 114,178 96,035

(3,734,568) (2,990,672) (2,553,940) (1,907,914) (1,604,745)

46,679 46,679 46,277 40,435 40,435
(780,006) (780,006) (773,289) (675,669) (675, 669)
3,167,710 2,737,010 2,415,086 2,279,295 1,733,346

(52,932,434)

(45,735,437)

(40, 356,087)

(38,087,019)

(28,964,212)

X , 4.36 3.83 3.30 2.82 2.38
(72.86) (64.00) (55.14) (47.12) (39.77)

) , 0.63 0.62 0.66 0.58 0.45

(10.53) (10.36) (11.03) (9.69) (7.52)

211,400 34,699 697 272,005 46,333

(3,532,494) (579,820) (-11,647)  (4,545,204) (774,224)

313,132 ~92,527 22,720 ~321,031 24,196

(-5,232,436)  (-1,546,126) (-379,651)  (-5,364,428) (404,315)

125,107 38,782 2,634 30,402 ~4,410

(2,090,538) (648,047) (44,014) (508,017) (-73,691)

121,964 98,001 116,821 137,913 156,645

(2,038,018)  (1,637,597)  (1,952,079)  (2,304,526)  (2,617,538)

(RoAR) 1.00 1.12 1.14 1.88 1.12
(ROAE) 15.50 17.36 21.48 22.54 20.44
Tier-1 9.24 9.34 9.11 - -
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®
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*
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®
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@
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17,504 430,112 32,073
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85 21
37 27 95
28
14 70
49
32 13 36.7
15

93.0

39/372



€)
2016

@

®
2016

Q)

®
2016

13

40/372

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

@

LGFV

@

41/372



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

FATCA

®

IAS 39

Q)

52

42/372



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2015 25
2015 11
19 2015 2015 2015

43/372



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

o
2015

GDP 6.9

SDR

@
2015

®

44/372



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

ooooooo

)

)

)

94 83
20 Tier

)
IT IT

45/372



@
)
3,167,710
15.74 1,513,543
16.48 2,943,663
15.10 1,993,843
208,506 11.68
)
93,364
32,354 2,346
39,358 804 2.09
649 2.24
26,301
28.17% 3.85
)
24,375
1.61% 0.42
24.13
)
11.87%
Tier 10.15% 0.81
9.24 0.10
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2015 2014
66,459 58,259 8,200
26,301 19,157 7,144
335 1,279 (944)
4 3 1
13 (99) 112
72) (210) 138
324 382 (58)
32,354 30,008 2,346
21,652 10,209 11,443
39,358 38,554 804
9,781 9,626 155
29,577 28,928 649
29,528 28,883 645
93,364 14,593 18.53
28.17 3.85
71.18 2.78
2015 2014
71.18 73.96
28.17 24.32
0.65 1.72
100.00% 100.00%
8,200 14.08 66,459

2.01
2.25
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2015 2014
(0 ()
1,455,886 83,971 5.77 1,268,646 79,880 6.30
773,425 38,801 5.02 565,889 29,494 5.21
342,443 5,120 1.50 334,135 5,034 1.51
377,487 14,015 3.71 360,092 19,518 5.42
2,949,241 141,907 4.81 2,528,762 133,926 5.30
141,907 133,926
1,874,760 47,538 2.54 1,684,370 45,911 2.73
668,367 21,340 3.19 591,536 27,188 4.60
154,641 6,570 4.25 56,611 2,568 4.54
2,697,768 75,448 2.80 2,332,517 75,667 3.24
75,448 75,667
66,459 58,259
2.01 2.06
2.25 2.30
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2015
10,799 (6,708) 4,001
10,412 (1,105) 9,307
124 (38) 86
646 (6,149) (5,503)
21,981 (14,000) 7,981
7,981
4,828 (3.201) 1,627
2,453 (8.301) (5.848)
4,165 (163) 4,002
11,446 (11,665) (219)
(219)
8,200
141,907 7,981 5.96
¢h)
4,091 5.12 83,971
2015
2015 2014
() Q)
892,265 52,813 5.92 811,303 51,851 6.39
490,269 28,199 5.75 432,880 27,027 6.24
73,352 2,959 4.03 24,463 1,002 4.10
1,455,886 83,971 5.77 1,268,646 79,880 6.30
@
9,307 31.56 38,801
€))
14,015 5,503 28.19
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75,448 219 0.29
@
47,538 1,627 3.54
2015
2015 2014
() ()
1,444,628 35,815 2.48 1,286,024 33,537 2.61
453,938 3,140 0.69 437,277 3,145 0.72
990,690 32,675 3.30 848,747 30,392 3.58
430,132 11,723 2.73 398,346 12,374 3.11
114,454 607 0.53 96,676 597 0.62
315,678 11,116 3.52 301,670 11,777 3.90
1,874,760 47,538 2.54 1,684,370 45,911 2.73
)
21,340 5,848 21.51
®
6,570 4,002
155.84
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26,301 7,144 37.29
2,704 27.63
3,904 116.57
1,169
569
48.67 308 26.35
160 13.69
2015 2014
27,745 20,445
1,512 1,701
12,491 9,787
1,312 1,824
7,253 3,349
1,078 1,134
1,169 847
1,740 1,065
1,190 738
(1,444) (1,288)
26,301 19,157
604 751
2015 2014

335 1,279

4 3

13 (99)

(72) (210)

324 382

604 1,355

32,354 2,346 7.82
27.05 2.97
14,268 908 (6.80 )

2015 2014
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14,268 13,360
4,490 4,084
7,096 6,361
6,500 6,203
32,354 30,008
21,652
11,443 112.09

2015 2014
19,724 9,981
4 (252)
171 (13)
1,194 207
559 286
21,652 10,209

10
2015 9,781 155 1.61
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430,700 (15.74 3,167,710
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
% %
1,513,543 1,299,455
(38,119) (28,025)
1,475,424 46.58 1,271,430 46.45
86,311 2.72 40,316 1.47
326,735 10.31 354,185 12.94
905,496 28.59 589,626 21.54
285,406 9.01 419,415 15.33
18,546 0.59 14,621 0.53
12,646 0.40 13,043 0.48
1,281 0.04 1,281 0.05
3,923 0.12 3,034 0.11
51,942 1.64 30,059 1.10
3,167,710 100.00 2,737,010 100.00
@
1,513,543 214,088
16.48 46.58 0.13
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
Qi (%)
917,327 60.61 820,139 63.11
525,020 34.69 458,385 35.28
71,196 4.70 20,931 1.61
1,513,543 100.00 1,299,455 100.00
@
905,496
315,870 28.59 7.05
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
5,637 0.62 4,377 0.74
1,625 0.18 1,082 0.18
222,495 2457 138,559 23.50
152,312 16.82 111,697 18.94
523,427 57.81 333,911 56.64
905,496 100.00 589,626 100.00
®
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
1,419 2.13 454 1.25
47,331 71.24 14,981 41.27
17,690 26.63 20,861 57.48
66,440 100.00 36,296 100.00
4 10
1,690.00 4.89 2016 10 24 -
1,460.00 shibor 0.30 2016 16 -
1,160.00 4.23 2021 11 -
1,070.00 shibor 0.20 2018 -
1,050.00 4.04 2019 22 -
1,050.00 0.70 2019 23 -
940.00 3.42 2018 11 25 -
900.00 4.58 2022 20 -
629.00 5.20 2018 11 12 -
10 610.00 4.44 2021 19 -
®)
6,019
4,738 1,281
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2,943,663
386,136 15.10

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
14,840 0.50 30,040 1.17
1,993,843 67.73 1,785,337 69.81
541,066 18.38 507,187 19.83
119,178 4.05 88,516 3.46
1,391 0.05 781 0.03
11,217 0.38 9,668 0.38
6,392 0.22 3,829 0.15
30,612 1.04 29,950 1.17
210,061 7.14 89,676 3.51
15,063 0.51 12,543 0.49
2,943,663 100.00 2,557,527 100.00

1,993,843 208,506
11.68

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
1,544,053 77.44 1,367,857 76.62
515,929 25.88 486,562 27.26
1,028,124 51.56 881,295 49.36
339,125 17.01 345,154 19.33
145,561 7.30 119,794 6.71
193,564 9.71 225,360 12.62
110,665 5.55 72,326 4.05
1,993,843 100.00 1,785,337 100.00
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223,493 44,518
) 29,528 ()
19,965 ( )2014 8,682
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
46,679 46,679
19,965 -
33,365 33,365
3,929 222
14,964 12,050
40,271 33,903
64,320 52,756
223,493 178,975
554 508
224,047 179,483
702,732 69,548 24,481
41,169
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
128,389 131,532
449,385 473,866
61,704 62,459
63,069 104,238
185 185
702,732 772,280
211,400
68,121
109,927 253,206
313,132
186,122
497,518
125,107
157,004

19,965
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)

246,140 26.83 234,451 28.59
143,428 15.64 125,922 15.35
123,907 13.51 149,031 18.17
75,108 8.19 63,537 7.75
70,864 7.72 38,684 4.72
54,119 5.90 51,533 6.28
50,084 5.46 47,193 5.75
31,416 3.42 32,004 3.90
26,349 2.87 23,047 2.81
12,696 1.38 10,374 1.26
83,216 9.08 44,363 5.42
917,327 100.00 820,139 100.00
525,020 - 458,385 -
71,196 - 20,931 -
1,513,543 - 1,299,455 -
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
301,904 19.95 261,847 20.15
191,858 12.68 170,874 13.15
265,918 17.57 239,130 18.40
230,898 15.25 195,254 15.02
229,682 15.17 197,769 15.22
96,047 6.35 80,385 6.19
24,414 1.61 14,535 1.12
172,822 11.42 139,661 10.75
1,513,543 100.00 1,299,455 100.00
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71.28
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
434,735 28.72 397,697 30.60
314,118 20.75 293,787 22.61
585,530 38.69 492,366 37.89
179,160 11.84 115,605 8.90
1,513,543 100.00 1,299,455 100.00
10
2015 12 31
) (D)

6,187 0.41 2.38

4,795 0.31 1.85

3,000 0.20 1.16

2,990 0.20 1.15

2,530 0.17 0.97

2,410 0.16 0.93

2,347 0.15 0.90

2,311 0.15 0.89

2,115 0.14 0.82

2,100 0.14 0.81

30,785 2.03 11.86

CBRC
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24,375
8,850 1.61 0.42
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
1,422,656 94.00 1,241,912 95.57
66,512 4.39 42,018 3.24
11,109 0.73 8,685 0.67
10,572 0.70 4,864 0.37
2,694 0.18 1,976 0.15
1,513,543 100.00 1,299,455 100.00
1,489,168 98.39 1,283,930 98.81
24,375 1.61 15,525 1.19
2015 2014 2013
4.27 4.08 1.77
30.33 26.68 17.47
86.57 64.04 86.45
24.98 28.77 21.48
@
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
12,034 0.80 4,632 0.36
90 4,202 0.28 858 0.07
90 7,832 0.52 3,774 0.29
@
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
(%) (%)
19,227 78.88 11,939 76.90
5,148 21.12 3,586 23.10
24,375 100.00 15,525 100.00
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
5,974 24.51 4,609 29.69
4,357 17.87 3,011 19.40
2,104 8.63 1,519 9.78
4,022 16.50 1,983 12.77
4,914 20.16 1,927 12.41
699 2.87 631 4.07
2,305 9.46 1,845 11.88
24,375 100.00 15,525 100.00
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D) D)
7,253 29.75 5,201 33.50
7,836 32.15 5,092 32.80
1,096 4.50 469 3.02
45 0.18 121 0.78
139 0.57 31 0.20
494 2.03 201 1.29
1,938 7.95 618 3.98
10 0.04 12 0.08
416 1.711 194 1.25
19,227 78.88 11,939 76.90
5,148 21.12 3,586 23.10
24,375 100.00 15,525 100.00
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11
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
(D) (D)
4,568 18.74 2,911 18.75
10,593 43.46 6,344 40.86
7,788 31.95 5,590 36.01
1,426 5.85 680 4.38
24,375 100.00 15,525 100.00
12
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
345.84 308.49
345.84 308.49
16.72 4.19
329.12 304.30
13
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
28,025 24,172
20,071 10,548
(347) (567)
334 330
(802) (558)
(5,579) (4,096)
(3,583) (1,804)
38,119 28,025
14
4,659 5,579
5,147
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2015 2014
14,882 4,071 12,289 3,987
9,715 1,407 8,429 2,333
15,200 6,397 13,243 6,122
11,625 3,102 9,982 4,214
9,244 418 8,848 3,715
4,714 1,722 3,900 1,479
27,557 22,041 21,772 16,543
427 200 308 161
93,364 39,358 78,771 38,554
2015 2014
53,658 21,293 47,199 23,555
33,955 13,182 26,144 10,227
5,562 4,758 5,231 4,651
189 125 197 121
93,364 39,358 78,771 38,554
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31 29
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(€H)
2015 12 31
@ @
46,679,095,000 P
200,000,000
(€H)
(@) 39,810,359,500 6,868,735,500
2015 12 31
1.00 46,679,095 ,000
100 200,000,000
5.30
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@

(¢H) Tier-1
(2) Tier-2
Tier-2
CBRC
2)
CSRC
CBRC

~NAAAA
~

Tier-1

10
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oOoOooodn
3) 2015 12 31
2010 12 31 40,434,790, 000 40,434,790,000)
(675,665 )
2011 12 31 40,434,790,000 40,434,790,000)
(675,665 )
2012 12 31 40,434,790,000 40,434,790, 000
(675,665 )
2013 12 20 -584,200,000 39,850,590,0000  -584,200,0000 39,850,590,000
(665,903 )
584.2
®
2013 12 31 39,850,590, 000 39,850,590, 000
(665,903 )
2014 14 -40,230,500]  39,810,359,500 -40,230,500]  39,810,359,500 @)
665,231
bota 12 31 of 39,810,359,500 of 39.,810,359,500
665,231
bo15 12 31 of 39,810,359,500 of 39.810,359,500
665,231
2013 12 20 5,842,000,0000  5,842,000,000  5,842,000,000[  5,842,000,000
(97,620 )
2013 12 20 584,200,000,  6,426,200,000 584,200,000  6,426,200,000
(107,382 )
584.2
@)
2013 12 31 6,426,200,000 6,426,200,000
(107,382 )
2014 15 442,535,500  6,868,735,500 442,535,500,  6,868,735,500 ®
114,777
2014 12 31 of 6.868,735,500 of 6,868,735,500
114,777
2015 12 31 of 6.868,735,500) of 6,868,735,500
114,777
w 584.2
(2) 2014 14 40,230,500 2014 15 40,230,500
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(©)) 402,305,000
40,230,500
SSF
2015 0 0 0 0
2015 19 200,000,000 200,000,000 0 0
2015 12 31 0 200,000,000 0 0
O]
2015 12 31 342,421 341,380 1,041
®)
2015 12 31
()
(1) Xicheng District 11,057,280,034 23.69
Beijing 100033, PRC 127,035,000 0.27
Dongcheng District, 10,250,916,094 21.96
Beijing 100010, PRC
@ 1 Harbour Street, Central, Hong 6,862,659,500 14.70
Kong
Marshall Islands 1,609,273,000 3.45
Xicheng District, Beijing, PRC 1,162,713,000 2.49
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong 1,572,735,868 3.37
CPIC Plaza 28 Fengsheng Hutong 1,335,494,280 2.86
Xicheng District, Beijing, PRC
Xicheng District 782,913,367 1.68
Beijing, PRC 58,440,000 0.13
Hongjing Road 766,002,403 1.64
Shanghai, PRC
Beijing, PRC 629,693,300 1.35
Hongta Road, Yuxi, Yunnan, China 470,297,000 1.01
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55.67 71.56

Maritime Transport (Group) Corporation

o

2015 13

(2) 2015 12 31
6,862,659,500

1,609,273,000 1,162,713,000 127,035,000 58,440,000
3,905,198,500

2015 12 31
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2015

6,368,048

10 1.90

2015

29,144,010

MOF

PBOC

10

2015

8,869,028
30.04

2015
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@
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
4.19 3.10 3.77 4.96 6.50
70.01 51.80 63.00 82.88 108.62
2.72 2.56 2.61 2.33 3.33
45.45 42.78 43.61 38.93 55.64
2010 18
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
3.87 4.39 5.57
54.30 61.59 78.15
3.77 2.70 3.24
52.89 37.88 45.46
2013 12 20
)
2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
6.10 4.70 4.43 4.49 4.76 4.62
101.93 78.54 74.03 75.03 79.54 77.20
4.48 3.33 3.85 3.93 3.96 4.18
74.86 55.64 64.33 65.67 66.17 69.85
2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
4.62 4.26 3.55 3.95 3.98 3.80
64.82 59.77 49.81 55.42 55.84 53.31
3.79 3.33 3.24 3.46 3.50 3.42
53.17 46.72 45.46 48.54 49.11 47.98
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@
26 13.3
@
2007
TANG
Shuangning
61
PBOC
SAFE
PBOC
2003 2007 CBRC
11
18 12
2014 12
GAO Yunlong
57
1994 2014
11 12
2016
ZHANG Jinliang 2016
46
2014 2016
2009 11
2014 12
2007 2009 11
2003 10 2007
2005
2007 IT
1997
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2015 0
MA Teng
57
2010 12 2014 12
2009 11 2010 12
2009
11
2005 2009
1984 2005
2007 12 0
WU Jian
45
PBOC
2010 12 0
WU Gang
57 1994 2010 10
2011 12 0
WANG Shumin
59
1986
1991 10
1991 11 1994 SAFE
1994 2004 SAFE
SAFE
2004 2011
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2013 0
WU Gaolian
63 1985
1992
1992 1997
12 PICC
1997 12 2000
12 2000
12 2003
2003 2008
2008
2012
2015 0
ZHAO Wei
44
2003 2012
2015 0
YANG Jigui
49
CIB
2002 2014
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2011 11 0
ZHANG Xinze
69 1987 2004 PBOC
2004 2007
2013 0
QIAO Zhimin
63 1978 1996
1996 2003 PBOC
2003 2007
CBRC 2007
2012
2013 0
XIE Rong
63
1985 12 1997 12
CPAs
1997 12 2002 10
KPMG Huazhen
2002 10 2012
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2014 0
FOK Oi Ling
Catherine
57
1981 2006
HSBC
2010,
2012 HSBC
2015 0
XU Hongcai
51 1998 2010 GF
2015 0
FENG Lun
56
MPP 1984
1991
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(b)

13 2015 2015 0

LI Xin
55 304

2009 11 0
MU Huijun 2010 2012 11

59

PBOC PBOC

2000

2014 12 0

YIN Lianchen
49 2002

KMV

2009 11 0
WU Junhao
50
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2012 11 0
YU Erniu
66
2013 0
/
James Parks STENT XacBank
70
TWMI
2012 11 0
YE Donghai
52
0
LIU Yang
42
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(©)
( )
@ 0
ZHANG Jinliang
46
@ 0
MA Teng
57
2003 0
LI Jie 2003
57
1988 10 2001
1983 1986
2007 0
ZHANG Huayu 2006
57
1994 11 2001
PBOC
PBOC
MBA
2010 12 0
LU Hong 2009
52 1994
2009
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(
2014 12 2014 0
WU Jian
54 1997 12
1996 10 1997 12 SAFE
1995 10 1996 10
1987 1995
1982
1987
2014 0
YAO Zhongyou 2014
52 2009 11 2014
1984 2009
11
2014 0
CAl Yunge 2014
44 2008 11 2013
2003 2008 11 CBRC
CBRC
1996 2003

@
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2015
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2015 19 2014 2015 20

2015 11 19 2015 2015
2015 2015 11 20

®)
2014 2014

2014 2015
KPMG Huazhen LLP/KPMG

2015 2015 2015
CBRC

2015 2015 2015
CBRC

2015 2015 2015
2016

@
16

16 13

®)

©

65 20
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54 21
@
10
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2014 2016 2020
10
()
2016
2014
IFRS
KPMG Huazhen
2015
2016 25
2015
15 11

©
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2014

2.

2014
IT
©
10

2015 12 31

I.
2015 12 31

2015 12 31
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2015 2014

9.90 2.61 9.90 1.80
0.27 0.02 0.27 0.02
10.17 2.63 10.17 1.82

2015

XBRL

1.25
0.80
0.30
0.26
0.02

2.63
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5.9832

16.71

2015 12
IFRS

2016

31

18
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12 31
2015 2014
( ) ( ) ) ( )
141,907 2,371,266 133,926 2,237,903
(75,448) (1,260,736) (75,667) (1,264,39)
4 66,459 1,110,530 58,259 973,508
27,745 463,619 20,445 341,636
(1,444) (24,129) (1,288) (21,522)
5 26,301 439,490 19,157 320,113
6 335 5,598 1,279 21,372
4 67 3 50
7 13 217 (99) (1,654)
72 (1,203) (210) (3,509)
324 5,414 382 6,383
93,364 1,560,112 78,771 1,316,263
8 (32,354) (540,635) (30,008) (501,434)
61,010 1,019,477 48,763 814,830
11 (21,652) (361,805) (10,209) (170,592)
39,358 657,672 38,554 644,237
12 (9,781) (163,441) (9,626) (160,850)
29,577 494,232 28,928 483,387

254
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12 31
2015 2014
) ( ) ) ( )
29,577 494,232 28,928 483,387
4,964 82,948 4,442 74,226
53 886 1,032 17,245
28(b) (1,254) (20,954) (1,369) (22,876)
8 134
35(b) (64) (1,069) (53) (886)
3,707 61,944 4,052 67,709
33,284 556,176 32,980 551,096
29,528 493,413 28,883 482,635
49 819 45 752
29,577 494,232 28,928 483,387
33,235 555,357 32,935 550,344
49 819 45 752
33,284 556,176 32,980 551,096
) ) ) )
13 0.63 10.53 0.62 10.36

254
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12 31
2015 2014
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

14 326,735 5,459,742 354,185 5,918,431
15 86,311 1,442,257 40,316 673,680
16 132,361 2,211,752 132,733 2,217,968
17 5,637 94,194 4,377 73,140
18 1,625 27,154 1,082 18,080
19 153,045 2,557,382 286,682 4,790,456
20 18,546 309,904 14,621 244,317
21 1,475,424 24,654,335 1,271,430 21,245,595
22 222,495 3,717,891 138,559 2,315,321
23 152,312 2,545,134 111,697 1,866,457
24 523,427 8,746,465 333,911 5,579,653
26 12,646 211,315 13,043 217,949
27 1,281 21,406 1,281 21,406
28 3,923 65,553 3,034 50,698
29 51,942 867,951 30,059 502,286
3,167,710 52,932,434 2,737,010 45,735,437

14,840 247,976 30,040 501,968

31 541,066 9,041,213 507,187 8,475,095
32 60,305 1,007,697 36,744 613,992
18 1,391 23,244 781 13,051
33 58,873 983,768 51,772 865,110
34 1,993,843 33,317,117 1,785,337 29,832,981
35 11,217 187,436 9,668 161,552
36 6,392 106,810 3,829 63,983
37 30,612 511,527 29,950 500,465
38 210,061 3,510,119 89,676 1,498,486
39 15,063 251,703 12,543 209,594
2,943,663 49,188,609 2,557,527 42,736,276

131 254
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12 3
2015 2014
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
40 46,679 780,006 46,679 780,006
41 19,965 333,615
42 37,294 623,183 33,587 561,239
43 14,964 250,048 12,050 201,356
43 40,271 672,928 33,903 566,519
44 64,320 1,074,787 52,756 881,553
223,493 3,734,568 178,975 2,990,672
554 9,257 508 8,489
224,047 3,743,825 179,483 2,999,161
3,167,710 52,932,434 2,737,010 45,735,437
2016 29
131 254
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2015 1 1
46,679 — 33,587 12,050 33,903 52,756 178,975 508 179,483
- - - - - 29,528 29,528 49 29,577
- - 3,707 - - - 3,707 - 3,707
1 — 19,965 - - - - 19,965 - 19,965
44
- - - 2,914 - (2,914) - - -
- - - - 6,368 (6,368) - - -
- - - - - (8,682) (8,682) ®) (8,685)
2015 12 31 46,679 19,965 37,294 14,964 40,271 64,320 223,493 554 224,047
2014 11 46,277 28,707 9,199 29,861 38,795 152,839 213 153,052
. - . - 28,883 28,883 45 28,928
. 4,052 - - - 4,052 - 4,052
402 828 - - - 1,230 - 1,230
44 - - - - - - 250 250
- - 2,851 - (2,851) - - -
- - - 4,042 (4,042) - - -
- - - - (8,029) (8,029) - (8,029)
2014 12 31 46,679 33,587 12,050 33,903 52,756 178,975 508 179,483
131 254
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2015 1 1
780,006 — 561,239 201,356 566,519 881,553 2,990,672 8,489 2,999,161
- - - - - 493,413 493,413 819 494,232
- — 61,944 - _ _ 61,944 _ 61,944
M — 333,615 - - - — 333,615 - 333,615
44
_ _ _ 48,693 - (48,693) - - -
_ _ _ — 106,409  (106,409) - - -
_ - - - - (145,076)  (145,076) (50)  (145,126)
2015 12 31 780,006 333,615 623,183 250,048 672,928 1,074,787 3,734,568 9,257 3,743,825
2014 1 1
773,289 479,694 153,715 498,977 648,264 2,553,940 3,559 2,557,499
- - - - 482,635 482,635 752 483,387
- 67,709 - - - 67,709 - 67,709
6,717 13,836 - - - 20,553 - 20,553
44 - - - - - - 4,178 4,178
- - 47,640 — (47,640) — - -
- — — 67,542 (67,542) — _ _
- - - —  (134,165)  (134,165) —  (134,165)
2014 12 31 780,006 561,239 201,356 566,519 881,553 2,990,672 8,489 2,999,161
131 254
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12 31
2015 2014
( ) ( ) ) ( )
29,577 494,232 28,928 483,387
21,652 361,805 10,209 170,592
2,105 35,175 1,941 32,434
(802) (13,401) (558) (9,324)
(O] (67) (©) (50)
(419) (7,001) (351) (5,865)
13) @17) 99 1,654
(294) (4,913) 21 351
1) (685) (1,300) (21,723)
6,570 109,785 2,568 42,911
9 150 7 117
9,781 163,441 9,626 160,850
68,121 1,138,302 51,187 855,335
(25,986) (434,226) (1,857) (31,030)
31,780 531,044 (40,112) (670,272)
(223,635) (3,736,941) (139,398) (2,329,341)
135,332 2,261,398 (119,242) (1,992,534)
(27,418) (458,155) 44,857 749,560
(109,927) (1,836,880) (255,752) (4,273,616)
33,879 566,118 68,583 1,146,022
23,561 393,704 (14,073) (235,160)
7,168 119,777 (11,412) (190, 695)
(15, 200) (253,992) 30,040 501,968
208,506 3,484,135 180,059 3,008,786
(9,367) (156,523) (8,942) (149,421)
4,659 77,852 (4,991) (83,400)
253,206 4,231,072 239,264 3,998,101
211,400 3,532,494 34,699 579,820

98/372



12 31

131

254

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

48(a)

48(b)

OoooooO
12 31
2015 2014
( ) ( ) ) ( )
186,122 3,110,099 193,363 3,231,096
4 67 3 50
42 702 135 2,256
(497,518)  (8,313,526) (283,191)  (4,732,122)
(1,782) (29,777) (2,837) (47,406)
(313,132)  (5,232,436) (92,527)  (1,546,126)

- - 1,230 20,553
19,965 333,615 - -
- - 250 4,178
157,004 2,623,537 50,429 842,669
(36,619) (611,903) (3,000) (50,130)
(6,552) (109,484) (2,099) (35,074)
(8,691) (145,227) (8,028) (134,148)
125,107 2,090,538 38,782 648,047
588 9,825 226 3,776
23,963 400,422 (18,820) (314,482)
98,001 1,637,597 116,821 1,952,079
121,964 2,038,018 98,001 1,637,597
136,669 2,283,739 133,842 2,236,500
(68,298)  (1,141,260) (64,548)  (1,078,597)
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IFRS
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GAAP

IFRS

IFRS 14
IFRS 11
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IAS 27
IFRS 10

IFRS
IFRS 10
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IFRS 15

GAAP
IFRS
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CBRC

1992 18 A 2010
25
2015 12 31 29
1ASB
2015 12 31
2015 12 31
IAS 38
IAS 28
2012 2014
IFRS 12 IAS 28
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2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016
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IFRS

IFRS 16

IFRS 14

IFRS

IAS 16

38

IFRS

IFRS 10

1AS

2012

1ASB
GAAP
IAS 38
IAS 16
2012 2014
2014
IFRS
IAS 19
IFRS 12 IAS 28
IFRS 10
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IAS 34
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2018
2019
IFRS
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IFRS
IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS
2014

15
15

15

15

7

24

1ASB

IFRS 15
IFRS 15

IFRS

IAS 34

IFRS
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IFRS 2014
IFRS

IFRS 2014
IFRS IAS 39

IFRS
IFRS 16
2016 IASB IFRS 16 IFRS 16 2019

IFRS 16
IAS 17
IAS 17
IFRS 16
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(15)

30-35 3 2.8 -3.2
(10)

(15)
15

30-35 3 2.8 -3.2

3-5 3 -5 19.0 -32.3

5-10 3 -5 9.5 -19.4
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(26)
1ASB 2015 IFRS IAS
IAS 19
IFRS 2010 2012
IFRS 2011 2013
IAS 19
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2010
2011
IFRS 13
@
Q)
©
(D

2010

2012

IAS 38
2013

2012

2011

IFRS

IFRS
IAS 40
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2013

IFRS
IAS 24
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4
2015 2014
5,120 5,034
2,137 2,107
3,110 8,582
4(2)
52,813 51,851
28,199 27,027
2,959 1,002
8,768 8,829
38,801 29,494
141,907 133,926
642 213
18,277 24,299
1,224 1,359
30,830 31,253
5,017 5,215
4,985 2,284
6,706 7,159
1,197 1,317
4(b) 6,570 2,568
75,448 75,667
66,459 58,259
(aj 2015 12 31 802 2014 558



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2015 2014

12,491 9,787
7,253 3,349
1,740 1,065
1,512 1,701
1,312 1,824
1,169 847
1,078 1,134
1,190 738
27,745 20,445
1,151 1,042
83 92

210 154
1,444 1,288
26,301 19,157
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2015 2014
376 318
(67) 897
309 1,215
26 64
335 1,279
2015 2014
(10) (110)
12 ©)
11 13
13 (99)
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2015 2014

10,757 10,135
295 269
1,470 1,326
590 541
38 31
1,118 1,058
14,268 13,360
1,442 1,354
246 206
417 381
2,385 2,143
4,490 4,084
7,096 6,361
8(a) 6,500 6,203
32,354 30,008

(aS 2015 12 31 9.90 2014 9.90
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2015

() 352 352 44 91 487
)

() 1,009 1,009 44 243 1,296

370 370 370

390 390 390

370 370 370

283 283 283

283 283 283

194 194 8 16 218

1,009 1,009 44 243 1,296

300 300 300

300 300 300

681 1,138 1,819 44 95 1,958

702 1,276 1,978 44 95 2,117

981 1,999 2,980 44 95 3,119

491 491 21 143 655

2,296 5,419 4,413 12,128 293 1,021 13,442
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2014

525 525 37 219 781
353 353 353
210 210 210
390 390 390
370 370 370
965 965 40 264 1,269
965 965 40 251 1,256
295 295 295
295 295 295
675 1,157 1,832 40 79 1,951
696 1,127 1,823 40 79 1,942
992 1,711 2,703 40 79 2,822
95 95 6 35 136
961 961 40 255 1,256
1,913 5,874 3,995 11,782 283 1,261 13,326
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() 2016 14
2016 1 14 2016
22 CBRC CBRC
2014 12 5 2015 23

CDBRC

() 2014 10 31 2014 12 5
2015 11 CBRC 2015 16 2015
24
() 2014 12 23
2015 11 CBRC 2015
0 2015

( )2015 12 31
2015 12 31

2014 12 31
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3,000,001

3,500,001

4,000,001

5,000,001

5,500,001

6,000,001

6,500,001

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,500,000

6,000,000

6,500,000

7,000,000
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2015 2014
2,538 2,573
24,944 19,792
207 459
362 487
28,051 23,311
2015 2014
1
3
2
3
1
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2015 2014
19,724 9,981
1,194 207
171 (13)
4 (252)
559 286
21,652 10,209
2015 2014
12,083 10,096
28(b) (2,143) (388)
(159) (82)
9,781 9,626
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()
2015 2014

39,358 38,554
25% 25%
9,841 9,639

2
43 38
973 655
245 289
1,261 982
(1,164) (913)
9,940 9,708
(159) (82)
9,781 9,626
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2015 2014
13(a) 46,679 46,646
29,528 28,883
0.63 0.62
2015 2014
46,679 46,277
369
46,679 46,646
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
6,594 7,312
14(a) 287,484 306,808
14(b) 27,553 35,305
14(c) 154 -
4,950 4,760
320,141 346,873
326,735 354,185
PBOC
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
15.0% 18.0%
5. 0% 5. 0%
PBOC
PBOC 2015 12 31
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2015 2014
12 31

80,192 23,799

299 241

80,491 24,040

5,850 16,310

5,850 16,310

86,341 40,350

(30) (34)

86,311 40,316
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
19,536 105,889
79,529 21,859
99,065 127,748
33,297 4,986
33,297 4,986
132,362 132,734
@ @
132,361 132,733
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
17(a) 5,474 4,190
17(b) 163 187
5,637 4,377
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
266 151
40 30
1,356 454
) 3,722 3,555
5,384 4,190
63
27
() 5,474 4,190
102
49
5,372 4,190
5,474 4,190
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
50 15
113 172
163 187
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2015 12 31
63,214 377 (410)
11,369 181 43)

144,089 1,067 (937)

309 ()

218,981 1,625 (1,391)

2014 12 31
91,261 331 (278)
17,543 154 (91)
123,616 595 (411)
229 2 (€D
232,649 1,082 (781)
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31

90 106

876 943

524 968

1,490 2,017

2012 CBRC
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
124,405 240,926
28,640 45,756
153,045 286,682
153,045 286,682
(b)
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
11,860 21,222
60,590 82,695
72,450 103,917
80,595 178,007
4,758
153,045 286,682
153,045 286,682
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
12,420 8,914
4,620 4,200
1,263 1,299
280 244
18,583 14,657
@7) (36)
18,546 14,621
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2015 2014

12 31 12 31
917,327 820,139
237,772 199,167
172,812 139,648
95,478 95,242
18,958 24,328
525,020 458,385
71,196 20,931
1,513,543 1,299,455
(10,083) (4,946)
(28,036) (23,079)
(38,119) (28,025)
1,475,424 1,271,430

30(a)
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(b)
2015 12 31
246,140 16.26% 64,126
143,428 9.48% 115,126
123,907 8.19% 49,311
75,108 4.96% 30,576
70,864 4.68% 35,952
54,119 3.58% 27,982
50,084 3.31% 14,551
31,416 2.08% 4,319
122,261 8.08% 38,114
917,327 60.62% 380,057
525,020 34.68% 323,307
71,196 4.70% 61,326
1,513,543 100.00% 764,690

(10,083)

(28,036)

(38,119)

1,475,424
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2014 12 31
234,451 18.04% 55,247
149,031 11.47% 47,454
125,922 9.69% 93,955
63,537 4.89% 20,617
51,533 3.97% 23,718
47,193 3.63% 12,356
38,684 2.98% 13,423
32,004 2.46% 4,641
77,784 5.99% 27,136
820,139 63.12% 298,547
458,385 35.27% 293,388
20,931 1.61% 16,036
1,299,455 100.00% 607,971

(4,946)

(23,079)

(28,025)

1,271,430
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10
2015 12 31
7,253 (3,516) (6,806) 6,526 988
2014 12 31
5,201 (2,156) (5,137) 2,621 555
5,092 (1,995) (4,077) 4,008 1,357
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
434,735 397,697
314,118 293,787
585,530 492,366
179,160 115,605
1,513,543 1,299,455
(10,083) (4,946)
(28,036) (23,079)
(38,119) (28,025)
1,475,424 1,271,430
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2015 12 31
5,991 3,187 661 60 9,899
8,851 9,197 5,046 70 23,164
10,228 9,886 5,034 292 25,440
1,591 1,169 555 15 3,330
26,661 23,439 11,296 437 61,833
1.76% 1.55 0.75% 0.03% 4.09%

2014 12 31
7,431 2,710 350 26 10,517
7,382 5,694 1,283 144 14,503
10,925 5,398 1,998 220 18,541
867 516 189 12 1,584
26,605 14,318 3,820 402 45,145
2.05 1.10% 0.29% 0.03% 3.47%
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2015 12 31
CcC»
C ()
1,489,168 5,148 19,227 1,513,543 1.61%
(25,667) (2,369) (10,083) (38,119)
1,463,501 2,779 9,144 1,475,424
2014 12 31
c C»
C ()
1,283,930 3,586 11,939 1,299,455 1.19%
(20,968) (2,111) (4,946) (28,025)
1,262,962 1,475 6,993 1,271,430
52(a)
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2015

(20,968) (2,111) (4,946) (28,025)

(4,699) (3,121) (12,251) (20,071)

347 347

(228) (106) (334)

802 802

3,583 3,583

3,091 2,488 5,579

(25,667) (2,369) (10,083) (38,119)
2014

(19,252) (1,563) (3,357) (24,172)

(1,716) (2,062) (6,770) (10,548)

567 567

(231) (99) (330)

558 558

1,804 1,804

1,745 2,351 4,096

(20,968) (2,111) (4,946) (28,025)

1471372
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2015 12 31

301,904 19.95% 169,533
265,918 17.57% 129,959
230,898 15.25% 129,482
229,682 15.18% 142,753
191,858 12.68% 127,514
96,047 6.35% 58,777
24,414 1.60% 6,672

172,822 11.42%
1,513,543 100.00% 764,690

2014 12 31

261,847 20.15% 139,184
239,130 18.40% 100,197
197,769 15.22% 115,060
195,254 15.02% 99,622
170,874 13.15% 99,099
80,385 6.19% 48,485
14,535 1.12% 6,324

139,661 10.75%
1,299,455 100.00% 607,971

10
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2015 12 31
5,974 (2,947) (6,247)
4,357 (1,872) (4,186)
4,022 (1,656) (3,891)
4,914 (2,445) (4,531)
2,104 (913) (5,043)
2014 12 31
4,609 1,717) (4,914)
3,011 (1,286) (3.,304)
1,983 (744) (3,281)
1,927 (501) (3,652)
1,519 (461) (4,201)
51(b)
Q)
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
12,034 4,632
90 (4,202) (858)
90 7,832 3,774
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
22(a) 193,650 138,249
22(b) 645 310
22(c) 28,200
222,495 138,559
47,180 2,788
3,284 1,240
175,315 135,771
222,495 138,559
@
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
43,908 37,938
() 45,110 14,029
() 100,257 84,429
189,275 136,396
320
2,221 952
2,154 581
4,375 1,853
() 193,650 138,249
)
)
) 30
@
) 171 2014 12 31
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12 31
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2015 2014
305 99
132 206
(36)
401 305

@ @

400 304
245 6
645 310

2015 2014

12 31 12 31
28,200

28,200
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2014 1 1
2014 12 31 2015 1 1 1
mn 1
2015 12 31 1 1 172
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
116,017 71,509
16,577 20,530
23(a) 17,979 19,045
150,573 111,084
330
1,113 331
306 288
1,749 619
23(b) 152,322 111,703
(10) ®)
152,312 111,697
1,289 601
894 601
151,023 111,096
152,312 111,697
156,516 112,161
@
(b) 30(a)
(c) 2015 12 31 540 2014 343
0.48 2014

0.32
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
24(a) 136,434 70,334
24(b) 388,394 263,784
524,828 334,118
(1,401) (207)
523,427 333,911

2014 12 31 44,410
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3,700
90
CEBI
CEBI

150

100
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O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

OooooOodd
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
25(a) 2,700 2,700
25(b) 494
25(c) 105 105
25(d) 70 70
3,369 2,875
2010 19
2015 11 494
CDEBI 100
2009 24
70
2013
70
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2015

2015

2015

2015

2015
2015

2015

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31
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OooooOodd
(

10,599 393 673 4,906 3,367 19,938
131 234 627 86 1,078
(13) 13

) (©) 3 )
(6) (205) (36) (247)

10,711 406 900 5,325 3,420 20,762

(2,135) (138) (2,899) (1,564) (6,736)
(346) 1) (678) (407) (1,442)

3 ©)
2 @
199 22 221

(2,478) (152) (3,376) (1,951) (7,957)
(132) @n (159)
(132) @n (159)

8,101 227 900 1,949 1,469 12,646
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2014

2014 12

2014

2014 12

2014 12

2015

31

31

31

31

12 31
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(
9,585 415 1,408 4,184 2,729 18,321
6 269 863 687 1,825
989 (989)
22 (22)
72 (15) 57
(75) (141) (49) (265)
10,599 393 673 4,906 3,367 19,938
(1,935) (132) (2,430) (1,036) (5,533)
(192) (11) (594) (557) (1,354)
®) 5
(16) (16)
13 125 29 167
(2,135) (138) (2,899) (1,564) (6.736)
(128) (3D (159)
O] 4
(132) @n (159)
8,332 228 673 2,007 1,803 13,043
176 2014 12 31 182
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
32
8,088 8,290
13 10
8,101 8,332
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
227 228
227 228
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31

6,019 6,019

(4,738) (4,738)

1,281 1,281

PBOC 1999 18

CIB
1999 18

CGU
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(b

2015

2015 12 31

2014

2014 12 31

)

~ A~
~

2015 12 31

3,673

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
3,923 3,034
3,923 3,034
(¢ ) ( )
(
1,484 1,694 (144) 3,034
1,804 349 (10) 2,143
(1,254) (1,254)
3,288 2,043 (1,408) 3,923
(
C ) ( )
(
1,071 1,394 1,550 4,015
413 300 (325) 388
(1,369) (1,369)
1,484 1,694 (144) 3,034
14,691 2014 12 31 10,800
2014 12 31 2,700
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2015

12 31
29(a) 38,735 21,500
4,779 1,798
4,666 2.083
1,450 1,452
995 426
834 804
329 304
112 118
42 1,574
51,942 30,059

2015

12 31

44,732 25,064
(5,060) (3,048)
39,672 22,016
(205) (138)
(732) (378)
38,735 21,500
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2015 2014
11,973 (1,588) 10,385 8,199 (1,205) 6,994
9,557 (1,175) 8,382 6,776 (768) 6,008
6,911 (829) 6,082 4,316 (445) 3,871
9,378 (964) 8,414 3,475 377 3,098
6,467 (486) 5,981 2,083 (240) 1,843
* 446 (18) 428 215 13) 202
44,732 (5,060) 39,672 25,064 (3,048) 22,016
*
30
@
2015
12 31 70,574 2014 12 31
66,237
®
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2015 2014

12 31 12 31
234,625 272,345
305,547 200,907
540,172 473,252
894 33,935
894 33,935
541,066 507,187

2015 2014

12 31 12 31
41,263 27,313
500 1,800
41,763 29,113
18,542 7,631
18,542 7,631
60,305 36,744
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
( )
55,550 48,111
3,323 3,661
58,873 51,772
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
( )
19,770 2,099
39,103 49,673
58,873 51,772
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
( )

480,487 443,484
145,026 119,123
625,513 562,607
677,167 616,272
121,019 128,721
798,186 744,993
190,874 207,419
14,327 21,663
8,299 10,851
7,365 10,022
220,865 249,955
110,665 72,326
1,755,229 1,629,881
166,646 59,766
71,968 95,690
238,614 155,456
1,993,843 1,785,337
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
( )
10,721 9,175
35(a) 97 179
35(b) 399 314
11,217 9,668

SRB
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12 31

)
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
(
399 314
2015 2014
(
314 246
25 19
13 12
64 53
an (16)
399 314
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
3.90% 4.30%
6.00% 6.00%
23.20 19.17
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2015 12 31
(80) 114
99 (70)
2014 12 31
(59) 83
69 (49)
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
( )
4,527 1,970
1,702 1,723
163 136
6,392 3,829
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
( )
25,854 25,639
1,722 1,704
3,036 2,607
30,612 29,950
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Tier 2

@

2027

() 2012

() 2015 12 31

15

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

ooooooo
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
¢
38(a) 6,700 6,700
38(b) 32,800 30,000
38(c) 16,200 16,200
38(d) 146,531 32,501
38(e) 7,830 4,185
210,061 89,676
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
(
() 6,700 6,700
6,700 6,700
67 5.25 2022
7,142 2014 12 31 6,556
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(b)
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
(
2017 () 20,000 20,000
2017 () 10,000 10,000
2018 () 2,800
32,800 30,000
( ) 2012 28 200 4.20
( ) 2012 28 100 PBOC
0.95
( ) 2015 16 35
700 4.00
() 2015 12 31 32,958 2014 12 31
29,602
(c) Tier 2
( ) 2014 10 Tier 2 162 6.20
2019 10
( ) 2015 12 31 Tier 2 17,436 2014 12 31 16,835
(D
2015 12 31 107 (2014 12 31 18 )
146,688 (2014 12 31 32,548
)
(e)
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3,366 2,719
2,083 2,007
1,743 787
39(a) 446 424
295 297
28 28
7,102 6,281
15,063 12,543

2015 2014
39,810 39,810
6,869 6,869
46,679 46,679
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223,493 178,975
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554 508
554 508
42
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
33,365 33,365
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523,427 523,427 299,701 299,701
28,200 28,200
12,385 12,385
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®
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2015 12 31
876,855 2014 12 31 624,457
(c) 2015 12 31
2015

2015 12 31 543,077 2014 12 31 401,043
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2015 12 31
2,682 2014 12 31
47
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Tier Tier
Tier
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CBRC 2018
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11.50% Tier Tier
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
203,950 179,356
46,679 46,679
37,294 33,587
14,964 12,050
40,271 33,903
64,320 52,756
422 381
(2,115) (2,085)
(1,281) (1,281)
(834) (804)
201,835 177,271
19,992 10
19,965
27 10
221,827 177,281
37,655 35,438
22,900 22,900
14,680 12,500
75 38
259,482 212,719
2,185,516 1,898,231
9.24% 9.34%
10.15% 9.34%
11.87% 11.21%
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98,001 116,821
23,963 (18,820)
®
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12 31 12 31
6,594 7,312
27,553 35,306
30,642 29,616
57,175 25,767
121,964 98,001
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86 24 110
(2,427) (939) (3,366)
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105 105
349 624 973
47 19 66
533 533
998 998
900 900
80,539 2,000 82,539
4 65 69
82,470 3,713 86,183
12,318 2,964 15,282
546 78,420 12,754 91,720
995 110 1,105
4 4
546 91,737 15,828 108,111

2015 12 31
180 180
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21 8 29
(11) (196) (889) (1,096)
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790 1 791
9 15 24
202 202
900 900
80,652 80,652
28 28
81,653 944 82,597
10,171 364 10,535
21 31,148 17,032 48,201
24 364 388
45 45
21 41,388 17,760 59,169

2014 12 31
180 180

2014 12 31 H Tier 2
2015 12 31 180 2014 12 31
180
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5,049 16,887
31,266 22,133
380 223
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7,152 2,721
2,457 2,087
1,631 1,500
7,588 6,037
12,645 16,027
122,095 37,234
135,682 118,609
17,659 21,263
208 115
36,628 23,576
28,637 19,803
1,179 1,226
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12 31 12 31
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78 32 161
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21,045 8,892
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326,514 354,035
85,628 40,063
134,861 132,333
5,637 4,377
1,625 1,082
153,045 286,682
18,334 14,474
1,474,494 1,270,668
222,157 138,559
153,012 111,697
523,427 333,911
25 3,369 2,875
12,613 13,028
1,281 1,281
3,765 2,942
12,553 8,274
3,132,315 2,716,281

2015 2014

12 31 12 31

14,800 30,000
543,300 508,445
33,431 21,592
1,391 781
58,873 51,767
1,992,919 1,784,273
11,119 9,601
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2,910,337 2,538,428
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19,965
37,285 33,587
14,964 12,050
40,271 33,903
62,814 51,634
221,978 177,853
3,132,315 2,716,281
2016 29
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30,625 18,799 17,035 66,459
18,138 (6,083) (12,055)
48,763 12,716 4,980 66,459
4,902 21,233 166 26,301
335 335
4 4
11 9 ) 13
(120) (39) 87 (72)
102 36 1 185 324
53,658 33,955 5,562 189 93,364
(16,197) (15,464) (629) (64) (32,354)
37,461 18,491 4,933 125 61,010
(16,168) (5,309) (175) (21,652)
21,293 13,182 4,758 125 39,358
2,046,118 607,065 480,555 28,768 3,162,506
2,372,542 465,875 105,002 216 2,943,635
(1,029) (1,056) (20) (2,105)
871 894 17 1,782
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26,482 16,830 14,947 58,259

14,994 (4,515) (10,479)
41,476 12,315 4,468 58,259
5,621 13,516 20 19,157
258 1,021 1,279
3 3
12 (111) 99)
(44) 1 (167) (210)
134 54 194 382
47,199 26,144 5,231 197 78,771
(16,356) (12,938) (638) (76) (30,008)
30,843 13,206 4,593 121 48,763
(7,288) (2,979) 58 (10,209)
23,555 10,227 4,651 121 38,554
1,727,980 542,756 461,653 306 2,732,695
1,948,717 432,748 175,914 120 2,557,499
(1,039) (883) (19) (1,941)
1,518 1,291 28 2,837
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19,227 16 313 630
(10,083) (16) 173) (288)
9,144 140 342
5,148 976
(2.,369) (81)
2,779 895
26,342 282 229
4,890
8,155 350 1,968
39,387 350 2,250 229
(5,569) ®
33,818 350 2,242 229
1,449,781 218,337 153,045 902,891 63,670
(20,098) (15) (1,402) (1,140)
1,429,683 218,322 153,045 901,489 62,530
1,475,424 218,672 153,045 903,871 63,996
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11,939 16 2 702
(4,946) (16) Q@) (168)

6,993 534
3,586 582
2,111) (46)
1,475 536
25,674 645 200
1,850 124
2,138
29,662 769 200
(3,677)
25,985 769 200
1,254,268 172,299 286,682 588,556 41,064
(17,291) (19) (212) (848)
1,236,977 172,280 286,682 588,344 40,216
1,271,430 173,049 286,682 588,544 41,286
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BBB 350 769
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312 1
@172 @

140

AAA 161 125
AA AA* 873 1,196
A A+ 1,782 1,000
A 1,710 558
4,526 2,879
AAA 75,389 55,800
AA AAt 78,093 45,766
A At 155,229 114,819
A 1,430 1,992
36,629 32,880
346,770 251,257
351,436 254,136
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)
.50% 326,735 16,083 310,652
J11% 86,311 60,575 25,736
.01% 132,361 65,982 66,379
.26% 153,045 88,570 64,475
T7% 1,475,424 916,028 387,139 169,441 2,816
.02% 903,871 676 232,547 290,699 303,654 76,295
89,963 49,561 40,402
.81% 3,167,710 66,320 1,714,756 834,428 473,095 79,111
-49% 14,840 8,000 6,840
-35% 541,066 538,633 2,433
LA1% 60,305 22 38,087 22,196
.20% 58,873 56,517 2,356
-54% 1,993,843 4,009 1,229,275 463,965 271,049 25,545
.25% 210,061 97,939 63,922 25,300 22,900
64,675 61,851 1,444 1,265 115
-80% 2,943,663 65,882 1,969,895 562,977 296,464 48,445
.01% 224,047 438 (255,139) 271,451 176,631 30,666
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_51% 354,185 16,365 337,820
.16% 40,316 39,401 915
_70% 132,733 46,972 76,482 9,279
560 286,682 188,139 98,543
_30% 1,271,430 877,913 377,758 12,933 2,826
_21% 588,544 340 102,690 219,754 204,444 61,316
63,120 38,692 23,658 715 55
.30% 2,737,010 55,397 1,616,593 774,167 226,711 64,142
_54% 30,040 30,000 40
.91% 507,187 505,885 1,302
1% 36,744 21 19,853 16,870
.83% 51,772 51,051 721
3% 1,785,337 2,768 1,096,625 427,489 253,412 5,043
_54% 89,676 28,452 17,746 36,778 6,700
56,771 53,738 2,674 352 7
24% 2,557,527 56,527 1,734,540 464,520 290,197 11,743
.06% 179,483 (1,130) (117,947) 309,647 (63,486) 52,399
2015 12 31 44,249
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2,428 2014 12 31 1,928
5,723 2014 12 31 4,749 100
2,438 2014 12 31 1,929
5,904 2014 12 31 4,905

100 12
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( ) ( ) ( )
321,412 4,696 627 326,735
77,701 4,225 4,385 86,311
84,330 47,876 155 132,361
153,045 153,045
1,431,484 33,943 9,997 1,475,424
895,080 8,582 209 903,871
88,367 1,320 276 89,963
3,051,419 100,642 15,649 3,167,710
14,840 14,840
537,681 3,355 30 541,066
37,450 18,898 3,957 60,305
58,873 58,873
1,899,128 69,478 25,237 1,993,843
204,204 1,682 4,175 210,061
62,947 1,476 252 64,675
2,815,123 94,889 33,651 2,943,663
236,296 5,753 (18,002) 224,047
676,069 21,856 4,807 702,732
(32,176) 13,117 19,359 300
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348,828 4,566 791 354,185
20,115 11,151 9,050 40,316
123,401 8,555 777 132,733
286,682 286,682
1,219,590 48,080 3,760 1,271,430
585,597 2,627 320 588,544
62,012 1,025 83 63,120
2,646,225 76,004 14,781 2,737,010
30,040 30,040
506,453 694 40 507,187
18,616 15,762 2,366 36,744
51,772 51,772
1,691,760 77,163 16,414 1,785,337
86,102 1,491 2,083 89,676
54,331 1,464 976 56,771
2,439,074 96,574 21,879 2,557,527
207,151 (20,570) (7,098) 179,483
739,355 30,599 2,326 772,280
(37,297) 28,223 8,833 (241)
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292,588 34,147 326,735
350 14,883 31,605 12,330 26,836 307 86,311
47,479 18,503 66,379 132,361
78,563 10,007 64,475 153,045
32,698 178,184 61,751 136,580 466,630 350,552 249,029 1,474,424
645 30,492 48,519 142,794 291,194 313,415 76,812 903,871
21,229 5,045 5,319 14,215 15,339 22,883 5,933 89,963
347,510 262,751 273,236 334,429 930,853 687,157 331,774 3,167,710
5,000 3,000 6,840 14,840
160,543 111,726 212,503 55,239 1,055 541,066
22 21,436 16,651 22,196 60,305
3 43,301 13,213 2,356 58,873
781,263 203,041 248,980 463,965 271,049 25,545 1,993,843
3,773 84,166 62,106 37,116 22,900 210,061
17,554 21,972 4,560 11,713 8,204 672 64,675
959,385 410,249 583,073 624,415 317,424 49,117 2,943,663
347,510 (696,634)  (137,013) (248,644) 306,438 369,733 282,657 224,047
57,795 41,842 90,496 28,668 180 218,981
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311,568 42,617 354,185
24,514 4,730 9,200 1,165 707 40,316
769 19,250 26,953 76,482 9,279 132,733
152,212 35,927 98,543 286,682
23,666 143,832 63,061 123,887 410,093 296,564 210,327 1,271,430
310 213 9,390 85,093 217,751 213,619 62,168 588,544
21,845 114 2,832 9,438 13,181 13,871 1,839 63,120
357,389 212,059 251,475 290,498 817,215 534,040 274,334 2,737,010
30,000 40 30,040
256,489 118,557 74,320 48,754 9,067 507,187
21 8,977 10,876 16,870 36,744
3 50,001 1,047 721 51,772
678,683 193,386 208,174 444,139 255,912 5,043 1,785,337
7,970 10,482 17,746 46,778 6,700 89,676
15,174 18,812 4,172 10,667 7,791 155 56,771
950,370 427,703 309,071 538,937 319,548 11,898 2,557,527
357,389 (738,311) (176,228) (18,573) 278,278 214,492 262,436 179,483
28,875 38,488 123,256 41,399 631 232,649
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14,840 15,087 5,084 3,051 6,952
541,066 547,616 160,954 113,425 215,416 56,612 1,209
60,305 61,020 23 21,515 16,806 22,676
58,873 59,988 3 43,430 13,986 2,569
1,993,843 2,029,534 781,898 203,762 250,881 471,105 292,475 29,413
210,061 220,484 3,773 85,253 63,719 44,135 23,604
32,672 32,689 13,685 17,609 1,278 117
2,911,660 2,966,418 956,563 408,598 585,393 624,911 337,936 53,017
(25) 2 2 11) (18)
173,381 67,586 37,787 67,088 920
(173,072) (67,498)  (37,620)  (67,061) (893)
309 88 167 27 27
128,389 120,728 340 1,417 1,435 1,852 2,617
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507,187 513,315 256,889 119,536 75,578 51,028 10,284
36,744 37,582 21 9,048 11,022 17,491
51,772 51,966 3 50,059 1,119 785
1,785,337 1,831,940 678,749 194,637 210,454 453,406 288,399 6,295
89,676 101,298 7,996 10,514 20,360 54,673 7,755
26,040 26,111 10,329 14,443 966 365 8
2,526,796 2,592,517 945,991 425,983 309,653 543,476 353,364 14,050
47 6 ®) 23 21
143,890 27 28,959 35,442 77,489 1,973
(143,436) (14)  (28,361)  (35,357)  (77,732)  (1,972)
454 13 598 85 (243) 1
131,532 106,612 8,147 4,969 3,935 5,649 2,220
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5,474 5,474
50 113 163
1,248 1,248
364 13 377
193,650 193,650
28,200 28,200
245 245
245 228,986 126 229,357
238,614 238,614
981 981
390 20 410
1,371 238,634 240,005
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172 30 202 (155,456) [¢3)) (155,477)
10 ) 2 16 1 17
7 1 8 (237,996) (237,996)
(76) (10) (86) 154,822 154,822
113 13 126 (238,614) (20) (238,634)
9 @) 2 6 1 7
31
234 76 310 (126,274) (86) (126,360)
11 25) 4) 53 31 84
4 10 14 (155,448) (155,448)
an 31) (108) 126,213 34 126,247
172 30 202 (155,456) @1 (155,477)
10 (15) ) ) 31 23
2014 12 31

223/372



54

2015 12 31

224/372

2015
12 31

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2014
12 31

98,671 88,913

98,671 88,913




EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

55

@

225/372

2015 2014
12 31 12 31
9,180 7,869
24,082 47,944
95,127 75,719
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61,704 62,459
63,069 104,238
185 185
702,732 772,280
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2015 2014

12 31 12 31
283,635 325,387

2015 2014

12 31 12 31
2,156 1,984
2,036 1,852
1,889 1,755
2,915 2,842
3,040 3,041

12,036 11,474
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
( )
660 496
1,346 740
2,006 1,236
MOF PBOC
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
( )
8,556 8,230
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2014
12 31

1,350

1,350
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Mola i bt 2014

IMteresl income 141,907 153,926
Irterest expense (V5,448 (7555
Net interest income 4 66,450 8250
Fes and comimission income T enmas 20,445
Fet arned ::mw'mshi_\_&w {1,444 i1 R
Met fee and commission income = 26,301 19,157
Nattraclr‘rgtgms ey o S <
Cavichenl inconmes 4 3
Met gairsdlosses) ansing from westment securifies 7 13 [t ]
Mext foreign eochanago lossoes {73 {#10
Other operaling income 324 SR
Operating income 3,364 TBIT
Operating expenses & {32,354) i[{rﬂﬁﬁ:l
Operating profit before impairment 61,010 48,763
Impaimment losses on assels 1 {21,652 {10,205
Profit before tax 30,358 3,554
Irccaree tax 12 0,781 [EhEHNR
Net profit 29577 28,578

The notes on pages 131 to 254 lorm part of thess inandal statements.
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. 5 =
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income =
R the e anded 31 Decomber 2015 ‘E
(Expetcsssd nomiliong of Renminkd, oniess ofwras Staled) =
Maote 205 2014
Net profit (continued) 29,577 28,928
Other comprehensive income for year
Itermis that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Available-Tor-sale finandcal assels:
Change in fair value recognised in the Capital Resore 4,964 4,442
Redassifed o the profit o loss upon disposal 53 1,082
Redatod incames Lax affect 28[) {1,254} {1,365
Exchange differences on transaction of financial
satomes of overseas subsklianies 8
lterves that will pot be reclassifed to profit o loss:
= Rermessurammient of supplomentary relivemand banafils 35 (54) (53
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 3,707 4,052
Total comprehensive income F3284 32,5980
Net profit attributable to:
Fquity shareholders of He Bank 20,528 28,883
_Non-Gonkruling interests 49 45
29,577 28,528
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity sharehalders of the Bank 33,235 32,885
MNon-contralling interests 4% 45
33,284 32,080
Basic and diled eamings per share (in AMEB]} 13 3 0.62

The notes on pages 131 to 254 form par of these linancial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ao 31 Decorrber 2015
Expresssed in imillions of Ferimintl, uniess ofenwis shiled)

31 Decamber 31 Decermbsar

hote 215 2014
Assets
Cash and deposils with the central bank 14 326,735 354,185
Deprosits with barks and cher financial instituticns 15 85,311 40,316
Pracements with banks and cther finandal institutions 16 132,361 132,733
Financial assets at fair vake through profit or loss 17 5,637 4 377
Positive fair value of dervatives 18 1,625 1.082
Financial assels held under resale agresments 19 153,045 285 GA2
Interests receivalie 20 18,545 14,621
Loans and advances [0 customers e 1,475,424 1,271,430
Aveable-for-sde financial assels s 222485 138,555
Heald-to-maturity invesiments 2% 152,312 111, 657
Dbt secarities classifed as recavablas 24 523,427 333911
Fixed assals 25 12,646 13,043
Goodwil 27 1,281 1,281
Daterred lax assals 28 3,023 3,034
Other agsals 29 51,642 30,050
Total assets 3467710 275010
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
D to the central bank 14,840 30,040
Deprosits fram banks and other Gnandcal institulions | 541,066 507 187
Pacements from banks and olher fmancial nstitutions a3z 60,305 3,7
Mogative fair vale of dervalives 18 1,391 781
Financial assels sold unvder repurchase agreaments 43 58 AT 8,772
Deprosits brarm customens 34 1,993,843 1,785 337
Accruad stafl costs a5 11,217 0 GG
Taxes payable 36 6,352 3.829
Interests payable ar 30612 25,950
Debits securlies kssued a8 210,061 BO6TE
Othe llabllities 3 15,063 12,543
Total liabilities 2043 663 2 551 52T

The notes on pages 131 to 254 fomm part of these finandal statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ag at 31 Décerber X016
(Expeecid in mions of Renminbl, unikss ofheneiss staled)

uoday |EnuLwny GL0E

H December 31 Decernbea

MNate 25 2014

Equity
Share capdtal 40 45,670 46,679
Cither expuiity instrunnent 41 19,965 -
Capltal reserve 42 37204 33,587
Surplus resedva 43 14,964 12,050
Groniral reseng 43 40271 33,900
Fetained earnings 44 64,320 52,755
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 223403 178,975
Megr-controllireg inferests 554 508
o A i s DTS
Total liabilities and equity 3,167,710 2,737 Mo

Approved and authorsed for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2016,

Tang Shuangring Zhang Jinfang Xie Romng
Chairman of the Board President Independent Non-executive
of Directors, [Hrector

Non-execidive Director

The noles on pages 131 to 254 form part of these financial statements
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Q& nsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Evprestad in irlions of Rendnink, uniess ofhenwi stred)

CHIMA EVERBRIGHT BANK

Attributabli o eqaty sharsholders of the Bank
Cither ot
Share eqety  Capilal  Suphs Generdl  Refdied controling
tote Capllal iefmend reserve  reseve  msene eamings Sub-folal inlerests Tolal
Balance al 1 Jansry 2015 45,6 = W57 12060 3E03 BATHG ITRATS 508 1T4E3
Priodl for the yoer - - - - - X5 s 43 AT
Other compeatershe inooma: - - 3707 - - = 307 - 3N
Chenges in shars capila
- Capital rection by
prifaence sharahokdang f - 180 - - - - 18085 - 1poss
Ropropriaton of proft a4
~ Appropriston B sumlus resene - - - 2 - (204 = — i
- Appropriafion by generdl resene - - - R < - - -
- Cash dhicknds x = = = - Bes)  EeE [ e
Balance ot 31 December 2135 4669 19865 T2 14954 40271 B4EN0 23460 Bod a7
Ariibutalis 1o equiy shareholders of he Banik Man-
Shars Captd Supls  Gead  Relaned controting
Mate Capitd  resarve:  resenve resenve eamings: Sabelold nberesls Totd
Babircs o 1 Jarwewy 2014 Ll - A o0  2eA1 337 1REaM 23 153082
PreAr ke thee yeer : : . - mEEr mEn 45 mol
Other compreherzig ingoms - 4062 - - - 4058 - 4 (52
Cheargss in share capila
= Jesiae of H-shares i 2 - - - 1,240 - 1230
- Clenge n no-contioling
nienests of sbadaes - - - - - - 0 250
FApproprition of peofil: 44
- Appropration fo saplus 1esene - . 2851 - s B B}
—AppropTason o ganerdl resens - = = 442 W0 = = -
- Cash dhicknis - . - - R R - B
Balance ot 31 December XH4 46679 FISET 1200 XM SRTSE 1TRAVS LR PR ]

The notes on pages 1371 to 254 fommn part of thess mandal statements,
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement :
& the your onded 37 Dicerber 2005 E
(Expeescied i mnilions of Plenninds, niss ohereiss stiled)
25 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Met profit 20577 20,508
Acusstments e
Impaimnent losses on assets 21,652 10,209
Depreckation and amertisaticn 2105 1,941
Linvinding of discoun (502} (56
Divicend Income () 3
Uinsealised foregn exchange gains (415 (351)
Met (gainspiosses on disposal of investment secrities {13 9%
Met {gainshiceses on disposal of trading secirities (=204) 21
Fevaluation gains an fnancial instruments at fair value
Ihrcugh prolit or loss (41} {1,300
Interast expense on detd secuities issued 6,570 2.568
Med losses on disposal of fived assels 9 [
[rrsewmme Lo 6,781 9626
el 51,187
Changes in operaling assads
Med increass in deposits with the central bank, banks and
oftver firandcal institutions 125, S5 {1,857)
Med decreasefincrease) in placerments with banks and
ofbwar firancial instiutions 31,780 40112y
Mt increasa in loans and advances 1o customens (223,635) {136, 358)
Mel decreasefincreass) in nancial assets hald under resale agreements 136,332 {115,242)
Mel {ncreasel/decrease in other operating assets {27,418 44,857
(105,527 (255, 752)
Changes in operating Ediities
Mel incraase in deposits rom banks and other linancial instigions 33870 58,583
Mt incTeasaidecreass) in placaments from banks ard
athwar financial ivstilutions 23,561 (14,073
Met increasadcacreass) in inancial assels sold uncler
repurchase agreements T AR (11,412)
Met (decreaselincrease amounts in due to the central bank {15,200 30,040
Met increasa In deposils from customearns 208,506 180,059
Income tax paid (8,367) {B.942)
MNet increasefidacreass) in other operating liabikties o 5 (4.5G1)
253,206 230254
Mot cash Nows fram apsratiig aceivities . 34508
The notes on pages 131 to 254 form part of these financial staterments,
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

e e wiar encded 31 Discarbss 2016
Expressad i iriliong: of Peninint, unibas Ofhenvis thied)
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Mota i) £ 2014
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceads from disposal and redenrgdion of imestmants 186,122 143,363
Dividends recaivad 4 3
Proceseds from dispesal of fixed assets and other assets 42 135
Payrmednts on acquisiion of Investments (497 518 (283,191
Payments on acouisition of fiwed assets, intangible
assels and other assats {1,782 (2 BET)
Net cash flows used in investing activities . Bleisa.  (@2.52n)
Cash flows from financing activities
Mat proceads from issue of ordinary shares - 1,230
Procesds from issue of preference shares 19,965 =
Capital conbibation by non-conbroling interests - 2E0
Proceads from issua of new dabt seaurities 157,004 50,429
Caszh paid on debis secirities recdeemed {36,615 (3,000
Interast pakd on debls securities ssuad (6,552 i Oy
Dividends paid BEa1) (8,
Net cash flows from financing activities. 125,107 a8, 782
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents 588 236
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 48a) 23,963 {18,820
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 3, 00N 116,829
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December ARk 121,964 a8 001
Interest received 136,660 153,842
Interest pald (exciuding interest expense on
debls securlies lssusd) (58,2498 154 545

The notes on pages 131 to 254 form part of these inandal statements,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Expreszad i milkors of Renmindi, gniess ohenaien staled)

paday [Enuuy 5L0Z

1 Background information

China Everbrighl Bank Company Limited {the “Bank”) coammenced its operations In Befjing, the People's
Fepubic of China ("the PRCY on 18 August 1952 The A-shares and H-shares of the Bark were listed
on the Shanghal Stock Exchange in Augist 2000 and The Steck Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
Decarmber 2013 respoctivety.

The prindpal aclivities o the Bank and its subsidiaries (Note 25 (collectively the “Group”™) are the
provision of coporate and retall deposils, ans and advances, settlement. reasury business and ofher
finencial services as approved by tha China Banking Regulatorny Comimission (he "CBRCT. The Bank
mainly operated in mainland China, which, for the purpose of the report, excludes the Hong Kong
Special Administration Region of the PRC ("Hong Kong”), the Macau Spedal Adrministration Region of
the PRC and Talwan.

Thea Bark has branches in 29 provinces, autonomous regions, municipalities in mainland China and
Hog Kong as al 31 Decemnber 2015,

2 Significant accounting policies

(1) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements set cut in this report have been prepared in accordance with Infemational
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") and related interpretations, issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASET), as wel as with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financal staternents also comply with the applicalie dsclosune
provisions of the Rules Governing the Lisling of Secuities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Lirrited.

Az a financia institudion Incorporated in the PRC and Bsted on the Shanghal Stock Exchange, the
Group also prepared its conscldated finandal statemnents tor the repodting period In accordance
with the “Accounting Standards lor Business Enlerprises-Bagic Standard” ssued by the Ministry of
Fnance of the People's Republic of China (the “MOFT), as well as addiional spedfic accounting
standards, the Application Guide and Interpretations of Accounting Standards ard  other relevant
regulations (colectively known as the "PRC. GAAPT), There is no ditference in the nat profit for
the year o lolal equity as &l the end of the year belween the Group's consolidated financial
statements prepared inder IFRS and those prepared under FRC GAAR,
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Notes to the Financial Staterments

Erprassad i milons of Renminkl, onleds ofhenwine: Saled)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued

(1) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (contirued
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For the purpose of repaing the financial staterments, the Group has adopled all the new and
revised IFRSs in issue which are relevant to the Group for the reporting pericd, excepd for any new
standards or nterpratations that are not yet effective for the accounting period endad 31 Decernber
2015, The revised and new accounting standards and interpretations ssued but ot yel effective
for the accoamling period endad 31 December 2015 are sl cat balow:

Effective for

accounting period

beginning
on or after

IFRS 14
IFRS 11 Amendments

IAS ¥ and 1AS 38 Amendments

|AS 27 Amandments

IFRS 10 and 1AS 25 Amendmeants

Annual Impeoverments to
IFRSs 2012-2014 Cwcla

IFRS 10, FRS 12 and
&5 28 Amandmenis

A5 1 Amendments

IFR= 15

IFRS &

IFRS 16

Raqulalony defara accounis

Janl Arrangamants

Clarfication ol accaplable mathods of
daprecialion and amorlization

Separale linancial stalemenls

Sale o contribution of assals bebwean an
investor and ils associate or joint venture

Imvestment enfifies: Applving the
consakdation exception

Prezentation of financial siatements

Fevanue from contracts with cusiome:s

Financial Instrumenis

Liszes

Janwary 2016
Janwary 2015
Janwary 2016

Jarwary 2016
Jamwary 2016

Jewary 2016

L]

Janary 201

Jewaary 2016
Jenaaey 2017
Jengary 2018
Jaeary 2019

Further information about those changes that are espected 1o aflect the Group is as lollows:

IFRS14, Regulatory deferral accounts

This Interin standard permils first-ime adoplers of IFRS o continue to use previous GAAP to
account for regulatory deferral account balances while the IASE completes iis comprehensive

project in this area.

As an axsting IFRS adopler, he Group is not applicable for the new standard,
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2 Significant accounting policies (ccriinued)

(1) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (contimesd

Amendments to |AS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortization

The amendments. introduce a rebuttable presumption (o 1AS 28 that the wse of evenue-based
amartisation metheds for intangible assets is inapgropriate. This esumgdion can be ovescome only
when revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the inlangible asset are “highly
correlated”, or when the intangible. assel ks expressed as a measare of revenue. The amendiments
also profibit the use of revenue-based depreciation methods for property, pland and equipgiment
under IAS 16,

The adoption will not Bave amy matedal impact on the financal position and he fnancal resull o
{he Group.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Tha 2012-2014 cycle of annual improvement conlains ameandments to fowr standards with
consequential amendments to other standards and interpretations including IFRS 5 Non-curment
assels hedd for sale and discontinued operations, IFRS ¥ Hnandal instnaments:; dsdosires, 1AS 19
Emplovee benalits, AS 34 Interim financlal reporting.

The adoption of these annual mprovements will ot have any material impact on the financial
position and the financial resll of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

The amendments darify the {olowing areas of the accounting requisements of invesiment entities:

. Exarmplion from prepaning consclidated financial statemens unclar (FRS 10 4(a) is availalda

Io a parent endity hal is a subsiciary of an imeestment entity, even il the investment anlity
messures all of its subsidiaries, induding thal parent enlity, ab fasr value.

. A subsidiary thal ks iisedf an imestment entity should not be comnsolidated even if il provides
senvices relaled to the parent’s investiment aclivities,

. When applying the equity method, a non-investment entity investor ks allowed, bt not
required. to relain the fair value measurement applied by its investment entity associate or
Joint venture for their subsidiaries; Le. the investor can make a policy choloe,

. An irvestiment enlity messaring all of its subsidiaios al lair value s gill required Lo provide the
discosures relating o wvestment entities regquired by IFBS 12, aven though |l is nol preparning
consolidated mancial stalements.

The adoption will not Bave any matedal impad on (ha finandal position and he fnancal resull o
1he Growugs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Exprassad in milons of Renminkl, onless othenwine: Saled)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(1) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (contirued

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements”Disclosure initiative”
The amendments clanify various presentalion issues redating to:

* assessiment of maleriality versus minimum disclosure requirements of a standard;

. ofder of notes;

+  disaggregation and aggregation;
. presentation of sub-lotaks; aned

. presentation of otlwr comprehensive income tems alsing from soquity-accounted  assocates
arwd joind vendures,

The adopdion will not have any material impact on the finandal pogtion and he financial result of
e Group.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

The standard contains a single model thal applies to contracls with customers and two approaches
b recognising revenue: af a point in tiree of over time. The modal featres a contract-based five-
step analysls of transactions to defermnine whether, how much and when revenue s recognised.

IFRS 15 also introduces extensve cualitative and quantitative discdosure requirement s wiech aim 1o
chabde users of the finandal statements to undlerstand the nalura, amount, ming ard uncertalnty
of revenue and cash flows anising from contracts with customers, Some of these apply o ntegim
fnancial repons prepared undes AS 34 as wall ag to annual finandcial statements. An enlity may
adopl IFRS 15 on a full retrospective basis, Alternatively, it may choose to adopt it from the date
of initial appdcation by adusting opening balances al thal date. Transitional disclosures are different
depending on the approach adopled by the entity.

The adopdion will not have anmy material impact on the inandal position and he financial resull of
e Caredip.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
On 24 July 2014, the 1ASE issued the complete standard of IFRS 9 (IFRS @ 2014,
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2 Significant accounting policies (ccriinued)

(1) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (contimesd

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS @ (2014} incudes a 3rd business model and requires some debd nstruments (o be measured
al fair value through other comprehensive income less imgaimment with recycling. For the
classificalion and measwement, IFRS 9 Inroduces a new requiremant thal the gain o koss on a
finandal Bability designated at fair value through profit or loss that is atributable lo changes in the
entity’s own credit risk |8 recognised In other comprehensive ncome; the remaining amount of
change in fair value is recognized In profil o loss Cosn credit sk requirements”).

Hedge accounting

The new standard aligne hedge accounting more closely with risk management. it does not
lundamentally change the types of hedging or [ha requirement to measure and recognise
inettectiveness; howeaver, maore hedging stralegees thal are used (or risk management will quaity for
hedge accounting.

Impairment

The new impairment methodology in IFRS 8 replaces the Sincurmed loss™ model In IAS 38 with an
“axpacted credit loss™ modd. Under IFRS 9 it s not necessary for a cred! evenl to hawe cooured
before cradit losses are recognised,

The Gscup has started the process of evaluating the potential effect of this standard. Given the
malure of the Group's operalions, this slandard s espected 1o have a pavasive impact on the
Group's linandal slalermes.

IFRS 16, Leases

In January 2016, the IWSE issued IFRS 16 Leases with an effective dale of annual periods
beginning on or atter 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting lor most leases
within the scope of the standard ina manner similar Lo the way in which linance leases are
cumantly accounted for under IAS 17 Leases, Lessees will recognise a 'right of use’ asset and a
cormesponding financial lablity on [he balance sheet. The assel will ba amotised over the length
of the lease and the financial Babilily measured &t amartised cosl. Lessor accounting remalns
substantially the same as In [AS 17,

The Grougy is curmently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and it Is not practicable o quantify the
affect a5 af the date of the pubScation of these financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in BMB, raundad to the nearest million, which is the
functional curmency of the Group.

The measurament basis used in the preparation of the financiad statements is historical cost, with
the exception of financial assels and finandal liabilities, which ae meazwed at far value, as stated
in Mot 2(5).
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2)

(3)

136

Basis of consclidation

The financial stalements compeise finandial slatements of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The Group
canirols an enfily when il is exposed, or has rights, to varlable relums rom its involvernent with the
anflity and has the ab@ity to affect those relums theough its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights are considerad. The fnancial statements of
absidiaies are Induded In financial stalamwnls rom the date thal condral commences until the
date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised profit arising rom intra- group
transactions, are ciminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Urrealised
losses resulting from Intra-group Transactions -are eliminated In the same way as weealsed gains
bt only to the eotert that there 2 no evidencs of impalmment.

Maon-conlrolling Interests s presenled sopasalely i e consolidated stalements of financial position
within ecuity as well as in the consolidated stalements of comprehensive income within net profit
and tolal comprebensive incomme. Where losses altribatable to the non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary excead the non-conlrclling interests in the equity of the subsidiary, the excess, and
ary luther losses attribulabla lo the non-controlling interests, are allocaled agains! the equily
alfritudable to the Group.

In the Bank's stalements of finandial position, imestments in subsidiares are stated al cost less
provision Tor impairment losses.

Translation of foreign currencies

When the Group recebres capital in forelgn cumencies from Investors, the capltal is transkated to
BME al the spol exchangs rate on the date of receipt. Other foreign cumency transactions ane, on
nitial recognition, transaled to BMB al the spot axchangs ates o the rales hatl apgprodmate the
ol exchange rales &l the dales of ransactions,

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are ranslated to BME al the spol exchange
rate al lhe end of the year, The resulling exchange differences are recognised in profit o loss,
Mon-momstary items denominated i forelgn curencies (hat are measured al histodcal cost ae
ransdated to AMB using the foreign axchangs rate al the bransaclion date. Non-monetay fems
denominaled in foragn aurandies thal are measwured al fair value are rangated,

Uging the foreign exchange rate at the date the falr value Is determined; the exdiange differences

are recognised In profit or loss, except for the exchange differences arlsing from the fransdation of
non-menetany avadabie-for-sake linancial assels which are recognised in capilal resensg.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued

(3) Translation of foreign currencies (contimd

Assels and labdities of forelgn operation are ranslated o Renminbi al the spol exchange rale at
the balance sheet date, Equity iterms, excluding "Refained eamings”, are franslaled to Renminkd al
tha spol exchange rates al the ransadion dates. Income and expenses of foreign operalion are
translated to Renminbi at the rales thal approximate the spol axchange rates al the transaction
dates, The resufting translfation diferences are recognised in other comprehensive income. The
translation differences accumualed in shareboldears’ equily with respect lo a forsign operation are
transtarred to profit or loss in the pariod when the lorelgn operalion ks disposed,

(4) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash ecuivalents compdisa cash on hand, nonestricted balances with central banks,
short-teem . deposits and placements with banks and ofher linandal instiulions, and highly licuid
short-term investments which are readily coverlible o known amounts of cash and are subject
1o an insignificant risk of change N value,

(5) Fimancial instruments

{ij Recognition and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

A financal assel or financlal Babdlity is recogrised in the staterments of financial position when
the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of a fnancal instrunment.

The Growgy classifles financial assoets and liabilities inlo different eategedios at initial rocognition
based on the purpose of acquinng assets or assuming labilities: financial assets and
financial liabdities at fair value through profit o loss, leans and rocetvabdes, beld-to-maturity
irvestments, avallable-for-sale inancial assels and other financial liabilities.

Financid assets and fnancid lisbdities are measured intially al lair vaue, For financial assels
and finandal labilities at fair vahee through prodit o loss, any directly atiriatable Iransaction

costs are charged lo proft o loss; For other calegories of inancial assels and finandcial
liablities, any attibutable transaction costs are included in thar initial costs.
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Exprassad in milons of Renminkl, onless othenwine: Saled)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(5) Financial instruments (eontirued)

(i} Recognition and measurement of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Fnancial assets and financlal lablities are categorised as follows:

*  Financial assets and financial labilities at fair value through prefit or loss
{including financial assets or financial Nabilities held for trading)

A financial asssl of financial Bability s dassified as al fair value theough profit o loss if It
s acauired of Incumed princpally for the pupose of sding of repurchasing in the near
term, a financal instrument managed in a pattern: of shon-tesm profit takdng, a dervative,
of I it s desfgnated at fadr value thiough profit o loss.

Financial assets and financial Babilities are designated al far vaiue through profit o loss
Lp=on initial recognition when:

- Ihe financial assals o financial liabdities are managed, evaluated and repored
intermally on a fair vake basis;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the discrepancies in the
recognition of measurament of ralevant gains of losses aising from the different
basis of measurement of the finencia assels o nancial Tabdities;

- the financlal assets or financial lablliies contains an embedded derbvative that
gignificantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract; of

- the separation of the embedded dervatives from the financial instrument is
prohilited.

Submequent to initial recegnition, finandal assels and financial laldlilies @ lag value
through profit or loss are measured af fair value, withoul any deduction for fransactions
coste thal may ocour on sale, and changes therein are recognised In proft of loss,
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2 Significant accounting policies (coriinued)

(5) Financial instruments (confinued)

{ii Recognition and measurement of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
* Held-to-maturity investmants

Hald-to-malturnity imvestmenis ae non-derivative financial assets with fixed of determinatde
payments and feed maturty that the Group has the positve intention and abdity to hold
te maturty, ol than

(@) thosa thal the Group, upon initial recognition, designates at fair vake through profit
of loss or as available-for-sale; o

) thosa that mest the definition of loans and receivables,

Subsequent Lo initial recognition, held-to-malurity nvestments are staled at amortised
cost using e effective inferest method,

L Loans and receivables

Loans anc recelvables are non-derivalive finandal assels held by the Group with fixed o
determinable recoverable amounts that are not quoled in an active markel, other than

(@} those that the Group infends to sqll immedatey o In the near-termn, which will be
dassified as hald for trading;

£ those that the Group, upon initial recogrition, designates as al fai value Heough
profit or loss or a5 available-for-sale; o

(=) these whore (he Group mew nol recover substantially @l of ils initial investrent,
oftwr than because of credil deterdoration, which will be dassified as avalabde-for-
sale,

Loams and recaivables mainly comprise loans and advances 1o customers, debl
securities classified as receivables, deposils and placements with banks and other
financial institutions and financal assets held under resale agreaments. Subsedquent 1o
initial recognition, leans and recelvables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
intesest method.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(5)
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Financial instruments (contirued

(i Recognition and measurement of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
*  Avoilable-for-sale financial assels
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Avallable-for-sale financial assets include non-derivalive financial assets thal are
designated upon Initlal recognition as avallable-for-sake and other finandal assets which

cho neot fall into amy of the above categoibes.

Subsequent to iniial recognition, available-Tor-sale financlal assels are measured at
fale walue, without ary deduction for transaction costs that may occur on sale and
chianges herein, axcept lof mpalment lesses and forolgn exchange galng and losses
from monetary financal assets, ae recognised directly in capiial reserve. Investments in
availabde-for-sale equily instruments that do nol have a quoted price in an active market
and whose far valse cannot be reliably messured, are measured at cost bess impaimment
losses, il any. When an investment i derecognised, the cumulalive gain or loss in capital

resenve s reclasdlfied 1o the profit or loss,

L Precious metals

Precious metals comgeise gold, silver and other preclous metals. Precicus metals thal
are not related 1o the Group's predious metals trading activities are initially measured
al accuisition cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and nel realisalle
value. Predous melals acquired by the Group for trading purposes are Inilially measured

al far value and subsecuent changes In fair value are recorded In profit or loss.

. Cther financial liabilities

Finandial liabiities otber than the mancial liabillies at far value lhwough profit o loss are

dassified a5 other financial liabiities.

Subsequant to inilial recognition, ofber finandcal Babilities are measwred al amortised cosl

using the affective interest mathod,

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The camying amolnts of finandal assets other than those al falr value through profit o loss
ae reviewed by the Group al the end of the yvear o determine whether there s objective
evidenca of mpairment. Il any such evidenca adsts, impaimment oss s provided,  Objactive
aevdence of impairment in the financial assel repressnds evenls thal ocour alter the initial
recogniticn of the financial asssl and have impasl on be estimated lulre cash Bows of the

asset, which can be estimated reliably,
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2 Significant accounting policies (coriinued)

(5) Financial instruments (confinued)

{ii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Objective evidence includes the following loss awvent:

- sigrificant financial difficully of the issuer of bomower;
- -a breach of contract, such as a defaull o dalinguency in interest or principal payments;

- it is becoming probable thal the borrower will enter bankiuptcy or other financial
recrganisation;

= disagpearance of an actve markel for financial assels because of mancial difficultios;

- ggrificant changes in the lochnological, markel, esonomic of kegal emviionmenl that bave
an acverse allect on the Borrowear;

- a significant or profonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equily
instrument below its cost,
. Loans and receivables

The Group uses two methods of assessing Impainment |o : those a sad
ndividually and these assessed on a coleclive basls.

Irncitviciuial assessment

Loans and receivables, which are considered individually signilicant, are assessed
indivichually for Imparrment, || there s objective avidence of impairment o loans and
recaivablas, tha amount of loss is measred as the edcess of its carrying amount over
the present value of the estimaled ftue cash lows fecksive of Tuture credil osses hal
havwe not beeny incurmed) discounted af the odginal effective inferest rate. The impaimment
losses ara recogrisad in profit or loss.

It may ned be possibie Lo identify a single, dscorete event that caused the impaiment b
it may be possible to identify impalmment thecugh the combined effect of several evenis.

Cash flows refaling to short-term loans and receivables are not discounted when
assessing Impaimment less i the diffierence bobween the estimated ulure cash fows and
its present value is immalerial.

The calcation of the present valee of the estimated lure cash flows of a collaleralised

loan o recavable reflects the cash lows that may resull from foreclosune less costs for
obtamning and seling the collateral,
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(5)
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Financial instruments (contirued

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loans and recaeivablos (contirussd)
Colective assessment

Loans and receivables which are assessed collectively for impaimment Include Indivicheally
assessed loans and recoivables with no absective evidmnce of mpairment on an inciddual
basis, and homogenecus groups of loans and recesvables which are nol considerad
indivicheadly significant and nol assessed individually, Loans and receivables are grouped
kor similar credhl fisk charactarislics tor collective assesoment, The obljective evidence of
impainnent mainly indudes that, though it is tmabda o idenlily the decreasa of cash flow
of each indiviched assal, after colleclive assessment based on obsarvable dala, there
is observable evidence indicaling thal there i5 a measurable decreases in the estimated
future cash ke from a group of financial assels since the inilial recogniion of hose
assels,

Homogeneous groups of ans ol considenad indfvidlally saaniffcant

For homogensous groups of loans that are not considersd individually sigrificant, tha
Group adopls a flow rate methodology 1o collectively assess impaiment losses. This
methodology utilises a statistical analysis of historical rends of probabdity of defaull and
amount of consequential loss, as well as an adjustment of observable data that reflects
the current econcmic conditions and judgement based on management's historical
experience,

nclividually assessed loans wilh no objeciive avidence of impalmment on an individual
basis

Loans which are individually significant and Iherefore have been individually assessed
bt for which no cbjective evidence of impaiment can be identified, efther due to the
absence of any loss evenls of due to an Inability Lo measure refiably the impact of loss
avents on fulure cash flows, are grouped together in portfolios of similar credit risk
characteristics for the purpose of assessing a collective mpainment loss, This assessment
covers those loans and advances that wese impalred at the end of the year but which
will not be indvichually dentified as such unbll soeme tirme in the ituee,
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2 Significant accounting policies (coriinued)

(5) Financial instruments (confinued)

(i} Impairment of financial assets (continuad)
* Loans and receivables (contirmed)

Indivicdually assessed loans wilh no obyective evidence of impafmeri o an indiidial
bask (continued)

The collactive inmpairmment loss is assessod after 1aking info account:
- Historical loss expedionce in potichos of similar cradit sk chwaractenstics;
- ther emergence period batween a loss cocurming and Ihat loss being identified; and

= Iher currenl economis and caedil emvironmends and the judgament on inherant loss
based on management’s hstoncal experiance,

The emergence percd betwesn a loss ocourring and s identification is delermined
by managesmesd based on the historical experience of the markels whese the Group

cperales.

As soon as information Is available thal spedfically identifies objective evidence of
impaimment on individual assets in a portfolio, those assets are removed from the
portfello of financlal assets. Assets that are Individually assessed for impalment and
for which an impaimment loss B or continues 1o be recognissd are nol Induded inoa
collective assesament Tor Enpairment,

The Group paiodically reviews and assesses the mpared loans and recebables for any
subseduant changes 1o the estimaled recoveralbie amounts and the resulted changes in
the provision for impairment losses.

If, in a subsequent period the amount of an impaimment loss decreases and the
docreasa can be ralated objectively to an event ocourning after the mpainment loss was
recognized, he impainment loss s revarsed thiough profit or koss. The reversal shall not
result in a carmying amount of the financial asset thal exceeds the amortised cost at the
date of the reversal had the impakment not been recognised.

143

248/372



CHIMA EVERBRIGHT BANK

EDINETOOOO

O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

Motes to the Financial Statements
Exprassad in milons of Renminkl, onless othenwine: Saled)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(5)
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Financial instruments (contirued

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loans and recaeivablos (contirussd)

Individualy assessed loans wilth no olfective evidence of mpaiment on an rdivicual
basis fcontinued)

When the Group detenmines thal a loan has no reasonable prospect of recovery. after
e Group has compdeted all he necessary legal o othar claim proosedings, the loan
is written off against its provision for impaimment losses upon mecessary approval. il in a
sbssquent petiod the loan wrilten off is recovered, The amount recovered is recognised
in profit or loss through impainment losses,

Ferscheachded loars are loans hal have been restroctured doe Lo delericration in the
borrower™s Inancial poglion Lo the exdant thal the Bomower 15 unalda Lo repay according
o tha ariginal lerms and where the Group has made concassions that it would not
othemnwise consider under nonmal circumstances. Where possible, the Group seeks lo
restruciure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve exending
the payment amangements and the agreement of new lean condilions. Once the tenms
have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due. Management
continuously reviews renegoliated loans (o ensure that all criteria are met and that fulure
payments are ikdy 1o ccar. The leans continue 10 be subject 1o individual o collective
Impaimment assessment, and the provision |s caloualed using the loan's arlginal effective
inerest rate.

Held-to-maturity investmeants

The impairment loss B caloulated based on the exeess of its carnving amound over the
present value of the estimated uture cash fows {exclesive of fubhre credil losses that
have not Been incumed) discounted al the oniginal effective inlerest rate, Al impament
losses are recogrised in profit o loss,

If, in a subsequenl pericd the amount of an impairmant loss decreases and the
decrease can be rdated objectively to an event oGouring after the impainment loss was
recogrised, the impanment loss is reversed through profit or loss. The reversal shall nol
result 08 camying amolnt of the financial assed thal exceeds the amortised cost at the
clate of the reversal had the inpaiment nol boeen recognised,
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2 Significant accounting policies (coriinued)

(5) Financial instruments (confinued)

(i} Impairment of financial assets (continuad)
* Avallable-for-sale financial assets

When an availabde-for-sale financial assel Is impaired, the cumulative loss anising from
decline in falr vabue that had been recogrised in capital resenve s reclassified to the
prodll of loss even though the finencal asset has nol been derecogrisaed.

The amount of the cumuative loss that s emoved from equity is the difference Defween
the acquisition cost net of any principal repayment and amortisation and current Fal
valiee, et gy Impedmnent loss on thal fnanca aseel previously recognised In profit o
hoss,

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised  on available-lor-sale deb instruments,
the fair value of the assals increases in a subsequand parod and the Incresse can be
objectivaly reated 1o an event ocouring aller e impairment loss was recognised, the
mpainment loss is reversed through profit or loss. Animpainment loss recognised for an
equily instrumen! classified as svalabde-lor-sale B nol reversed through profit or loss but
recogrised direclly in capital reserve,

For investments: in equily instaments measwred ot cosl, the amount of any impaiment
less B measured as the difference bebween the camydng amount of the financial asset,
and the present value of estimated fubre cash flows discounted at the cument market
rate of redum for a similar Anancial asset and mecogrised in profit or loss.

{iii) Fair value measurement principles

i thers s an active merkel for a fAnancial asset o linancial labilty, e quoted price in
the active market without adjusting for ransaction costs that may be incumed upon future
disposal o selllerment is used o establish the fair value of the financial asset o financial
liabyility. For a finandal assel held or a financial Eabdity to be assumed, the quoted price is the
current Bid peice. For a financlal assel 1o be soquired o a financlal Bab@ity assumed, it i the
curend asking price. The quoted prices from an active market are prices that are reacily and
requiarty avallable from an exchange, broker, industry group of [icing senvice agency, and
represent actual and reguiarly ocourming market fransactions on an amm's lenglh basis,

If o active market exists for a finandal instrument, a valuation techrique Is used to establish
the falr value. Valuation techniques Include using recent anm's length market transactions
between knowledgeable, wiling partles; reference to the cwrent falr value of another
Irstrument that s substantially the same; dscounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
mockeds, Whera discounted cash flow technigque B used, fultre cash lows are estimated
based on managament’s best estimates and the dscount rate wsed is the prevailing market
rate applicabls for instrument with gimslar tams and conditions at the end o the yoar, Where
ot pricang models are wsed, nputs are based on market data at the end of the vear.
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Exprassad in milons of Renminkl, onless othenwine: Saled)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(5) Financial instruments (eontirued)

(iii} Fair value measurement principles (continued)

In estimating the fai value of a financlal assel and financlal sbaty, the Group considess all
factors induding, bul not imnited to, risk-ree inkerest rate, oredit tsk, foreign exchange rate
anl markel volatiity, thal are likely lo affect the far vaue of the financlal assel and financial
iaklity.

The Group chiaing market data from the same market where the finandal instrument was
afiginated o purchased,

(iv) Deracognition of financial assets and financial labilities

Fnancial assels (or a part of a finandal assat or group of linancial assels) are derecognised
whean the finandal assels meat one of the lolowing condlitions:

-t contraciual rights 1o the cash flows Fom the financial assel eqirm; of

- the Group translers substantially ol the risks and rewards of ownership of e financial
assols of where subslantially all the risks and rewards ol cemership of a finandal assel
are neither retained nor ransfered, the control over that assat is ralincuished,

If the Growge neither transfers o retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the finandal asset, but retains control, the Group continues to recognise the finandal asset
ancl relevant liability to the estent of s contiruing invelvement in the financal asse.

The finarcial Eability (or part of ity is derecogrised only when the underdng present obligation
{or part of ity specified in the confracts Is discharged, cancelled or eopired. An agreerent
bBetweoen (he Group and an esssting lender to replace the odginal financial liability with a new
financial Hability with substantially differend terms, of a substantial modification of the terms
of an exdsling financial Eab@ly 5 accounted e as an edinguishment of the oiging inancal
fiability and recognition of a new finandal liabdity, The diflerence bebween lhe camying amount
of the derecognised financial liability and the considaration paid ks recognised in profit o loss.

(v) Offsetting

Fnancial assels and financial abilities are offsel and the net amount Iz reported In the
staternents of finandal position when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and the transactions are intended o be settled on a nel basis, o by
realising the asset and sefiling the liabllity sinmultanecusly.
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2 Significant accounting policies (ccriinued)

(6) Preference share

Such praterence sheres o har components are inllially recognised as financial assels, financdal
Eabdilies or equity insinuments according o the lemms and the econamic substance combined wilh
fthe dafinition of financidl assels, finandal liabiities and ety insinments.

When the issued preference shares contain equily and liabdity components, the Group follows
Ihe sama accouiling policy as for converlible bonds with equily components, For the issued
praterence shares which do not contaln ecquity component, the Group follows the accounting policy
as acoounting for the comedible bonds only with kabsity. component.

Fer the |ssied preferance shares that should be dassified as equity instruments, will be recognised
as oqity i actual amednt fecodved. Dividencls payables are recognised as distibation of profits.
Redemption before maturity will write down equity as redemplion price.

(7) Financial assets held under resale and repurchase agresments

Hrancial assels purchased under agresments 1o resell are reported not as purchases of the assals
but @5 recoivables and are camied i the statameands of financial position al amodised cost.

Fnancial assels sclid subject to a simultanecus agresmant to reprchase these assels are retained
In the staterments of inanclal pesition and measured In accordance with thelr orginal measurement
peincples. The procesds from the sale are reporled as Babdilles and are camed al amoised cost.

Interest esrmed on revarse repurchase agreements and interest incumed on replurchase agresmedils
are recogrised respectively as interest Income and Interest expense over the life of each agreement
iEing the effective interest mathod.

(8) Investment in subsidiaries

I ther Greap’s consolidated  financial statermants, mesiments in subsiciaries are accounted Tor in
accordance with the principles descaribed in Mote 2(2).

I the Bank's financial statements, mestments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost
method, An investment in a subsidgary acquired other than through a business combination s
initlally recognised al aclual payment cost if the Bank acquires the investment by cash. The
ivestment is staled at cost less iImpalment loss (Note 2{15) in the statements of financial position.
Excepd for declared but not yel distribuied cash dividends o profits distribution that have been
included In the price of consideration paid in obdaining the investments, the Group recognises is
share of the cash dividends or profit distribution declased by the Imeestees as imestment income.
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Motes to the Financial Statements
Exprassad in milons of Renminkl, onless othenwine: Saled)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued
@) Investment property

Ivestment propety s a properly beld either for esning rental income of lor capital sppeedation or
for bath. bwesimenl property s accounted for using the cost modal and slated in the statemants
of financial position al cost less accurmulated depreciation and impairment loss (Mote 2{15)).
Irvestmend properly is depreciated using the straighl-line method over ite estimated useiu lite after
taking into aceount its estimated residual valua,

Estimated
Estimated rate of Depreciation
uselul life residual value rate
Preseses 30-35 years 3% 2.8%-30%

(10} Fixed assets and construction in progress

148

Foexd assets are assots held by the Group for operation and adrinistration purposes with useful
bves over o year,

Fixed assels are stated In the statements of financlal position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impaliment loss (Note 2(15). Construction in progress ks stated in the stalermants of financial
position al cost less impainrment loss (Mote 2(15).

The cosl of a purchased fiked assel comprizes the purchase price, related taces, and any
exparciiure directly attributabie 1o bringng the assel into working condition for s inftended use,

Al drect and indirect costs thal are refated 1o the construction of fixed assels and incurmed before
e assets are ready 1or their imended use are capitalised as the cosl of construction in progress,
Construction in progress is ransterred lo fixed assels when the llem being construcled i ready lor
itz intendad use, Mo depreciation is provided against construction in progress.

Where the indhidual component parts of an ltem of fixed assets have different uselul lives of
provéde bemefits to the Group in different patterns thus necessitating use of different depreclation
rates or methods, they are recognised as a separate fived assel.

The subssquent costs induding the cost of replacing part of an itermn of flixed assets are recognised
N the camying amount of the Bem I the recogniton criterla are salisfled, and the camdng amount
of the replaced part s derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day serdcing of fxed assels ae
recogrised in peolit or loss as incurmed,

Gaing or losses arging from the relirement o disposal of an ftem of fixed assef are delermined

a5 tha ditatenca belweon the ral dsposal procesds and tha camying amoant of the Rern and are
recogrised in profit or loss on the date of retirement o disposal,
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2 Significant accounting policies (ccriinued)

(10) Fixed assets and construction in progress (continued)

Fixed assals are depreciated wsing Ihe siraight-line method over their estimated usehl Fves, after
faking into account their estimated resicual values, The estimaled useld lives, residual values and
dapredation rates of each cass of fixed assals ae as follows:

Estimated Estimated rate of Depreciation

Asset category useful life residual value rate
Pramises 30-35 years 3% 28%-3.2%
Blecironic ecpipimaent 3-5 yoars 3%-5% 169,0%-32.3%
Cahwrs 510 years 3%-5% 9.5%-10.4%

Uksalul lives, resicual vakees and deprediation methods are reviewed at least each year-erxd,

(11) Lease

A hease B classified as either a finance lease of an operating lease. A finance lease s a lease
that ransters substantially all the rsks and rewards incidental to cwnership of a leased asset 1o
the lesses, Imespective of whether the legal title to the asset is eventually ransferred of not. An
opedating ease is a lease ofher than a fnance lease,

{a) Operating lease charges

Rental payments under operating leases are recognised as cosls of experses on a siraight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental payments are recognised as expanses In the
accounting pericd in which Ihey are incumed,

(b} Assets leased-out under finance lease

The Group recognises the sum of the minimum lease receipls determined al the inoeption of
a lease and the initial direct costs as finance lease mecavable, and recognises wnguarantesd
resdchal value at the same tine.

Unsamed flinanca income is allecated o each accounting period during the lease term
using the elfective inferest method, Al the end of the year, finance lesse receivables, net of
unearned finance income, are presanted as finance lease mcsivables in the slalements of
firganciad position,

Tha Growgp accountad for impainment losses on finegnce lease receivalles in accordanca wilh
Ihe accounling polices as sat out Mote 25,

The unguarandead residual valses are reviewed al least al each year end, Ay excess ol the
camying amaount of the unguaranteed residual values over thelr estimated recoveralbde amounts
is recognised as Impalmoent loss. If there Is an indication thal there has been a change in the
factors used to determning the provision for impalrment losses and as a resull the estimatec
recoveralde amount of the unguaranteed resicual values B greater than its camying amount,
the Enpainment oss recogrised In prior pericds s reversed. Reversals of Impalmment losses
are recognised In proft or loss.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(12) Intangible assets

The intangible assels of the Group have finlle useld ives. The intangible assels are slaled al cost
less acoumulated amorlisation and impaimment loss (Note 2{15). The cost of inlangitde assels less
residual valie and impaiment loss is amortised on the straight-line method over the estimated
usaful lives.

The respeclive amarlisation periods for infangible assels are as Tollows:

Assot category Estimated useful lives

Cormpaiter sofbware 5 years

Oithwas 5 - 10 yaars
(13) Goodwill

Goochedl regresents the excess of cost of acquisiion over the Group’s Interest in the falr valee
of the idenfifiable netl assets of the acquiree under the business combination involving entities
el wnder commen control, Goodwill 5 not amortised and s stated al cost less accurmulated
impaiment loss (Mote 2(15)). On disposal of the melaled cash-generating unit (OGU% o group of
CGUs, sy attributabbe amount of purchased goodwill 1s waitten off and incuded In the calculation
of the prodit or loss on disposal,

(14} Repossessed assets

150

Repossessed assels are physical assets o property righls obtained by the Group from deblors,
warrantors of third partles following the enforcemment of its creditor’s dghts. The indtial cost of
repossessed assels & measured at the lower of the nel camdng amount of loans and advances
and the falr value of the assets less costs o sdl on the acquisition date, Repossessed assels
are not depredated of amorlised. The Impairment bosses of initial measurement and  subsequent
revaluation are charged to the profit o loss,
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2 Significant accounting policies (coriinued)

(15) Provision for impairment losses on non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the following assels are reviewed al the end of the year Gased on
the internal and exlemal sorces of information 1o determine whether there is any indication of
mpainment:

= fixed assets

- constiuchion In progess

- Intargitde assels

- goodwil

- Ivestrment property measured using a cost moda
- ivestiment in subsidiaies

I any inclication exsts that an assel may be impaired, the recoverabde amount of the assel is
esimated. In addition, the Group estimates the recoverabde amounts of goodwill al no later then
aeach year-end, mespeclive of whether there B any indication of impainment or not. Goodwill iz
allccaled o the CGU, or group of CGLs, that is expected 1o benafit from the swergies of the
combination for the purpose of impanment lasting.

A CGU &5 the smallest kentifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
ndependent of the cash inflows from other assets o assel groups. A OGL B composed of assols
drectly relaling 1o cash-gencration. ldentification of a OGLU B based on whether major cash inflows
gegated by the assel group are largely independend of the cash inflows from olhwer assets or
assel groups. In kdentifing an assed group, the Group alse considers how management monliors
the Group's oporalions and how management makes decisions about continuing of disposing of
the Group’s assels.

The recoverable amcunt of an asset or CGU, o a group of CGUs (hereinafier called “assat”) is
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its present value of axpected future cash flows, If
theve is any indication that an assel may ba impared, the recoverable amount s estimated for the
nclividual assed; i 1 is not possible o estimate the recoveralds amount of the indivicual asset, the
Group delenmines the recoverable amount of the assel group lo which the assels belongs.

An assat's far value less costs to sell is the amounl defermined by the price of a sale agresment
N an anmm’s length transaction, less the cosls thal are dedly attributable 1o the disposal of the
assat. The presenl vale of expected ubure cash flows of an assel is determined by discounting
the future cash flows, estimated to be derived from continding use of the assol and from its
ullimate disposal, to their present value using a pre-tax, discount rate that reflects expacted future
cash flows, the uselul life and the discount rate spedlic to the asset.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(15) Provision for impairment losses on non-financial assets (continusd:

An impainment loss is recognised it the carmying amount of an assel exceeds it recoverabie
amount. Imparmeant losses are recognizad in prolil of loss. A provision Tor an impaiment loss of
the assat ks recognised accordingly. Impaimment losses related to an assel group o a sal ol assel
groups. first reduce the camying amount of any goodwill alocated to the assel group of sel of
assel groups; and then reduce the camying amount of the other assels in the assal group of sel
of assel groups on a pro ata basis. However, the camying amount of an impared asset will nol be
reduced below the highest of its indivickeal fair value less costs to sell (if determinable), the present
vl of expected fulure cash flows (if determinable) and zero.

An impaimment loss In respect of goedwdll is not reversed. If, In a subsequent period, the amount of
impaimment loss of the non-financlal assel except for goodwill decreases and the decrease can ba
inked objectivaly to an evenl occuming after impainmend was recognised, the previously recognised
impaimment loss is reversed through the profit or foss. A reversal of impaioment loss is imited o the
assel's camying ameoant that would have been determined had no impalmment loss been recognised
N prkor parocs.

(16) Employee bensfits

152

Employee benefits refer to &l fams of consideration and other rdated exqpendiue given by the
Group In exchange for senices rendered by employees. The benefils payable are recognised as
labllities  chring the pearlod In which the emplovees have rendered senices Lo the Group. I the
effact of discounting the benefits payable which are payable after one year from the end of the
reporting period is significant, the Group will present them at their present value.

Short-term amployes benafits

Ermployes wages of salaries, bonuses, social secunity contributions such as medical nsurance, work
injury inswurance, matamily insurance and housing nd, measured @ the ameunt inarmed or at the
appicable benchimarks aivd rales, are recognised as a labdty as the emploves provides senioss,
with a comespondng charge (o profit o loss of includad in the cost of assets where appropriate.

Al digide employess outside Mainland China partidpate in local defined contribution schemes, The

Group contribates to lhese defined confribution schemes based on the requisements of the local
requiatory bodes,
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2 Significant accounting policies (ccriinued)

(16) Employee benefits (contimed

Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relavant laws and reguistions of the PRC, the Group participated in 8 defined
contribution basic pengion insurance In the sodal insurance. systermn established and managed by
geverniment arganizations. The Group makes contributions to basic pension insrance plans based
on the applicable benchmarks and rates stipdated by the govemment. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognised as pait of the cost of e assels o charged to profit or loss as the
refated senices are rendered by the amployees.

I addition, employees in Manland China also partidpate in a defined contiibution retirement benedit
plan eslablished by the Group (he “Anmiity Ptan™. The Growp and its enplovees ane reguined
to confribute a ceran percemage of the emplovess’ previous yedr basic salares (o the Anruly
Man, The contribution is charged to profit o loss when s inoumed. The Group pays a lixed
contribution inlo the Annuity Plan amnd bas no obligation 1o pay further contributions if the Anruity
Plarn deoas nol hold sulficent assels o pay @l employes banafits,

Termination benefits

Termination benelits are payable as a resull of either the Group’s decision lo lerminale an
amployea’s employment before the nomal reliterment date of an employea's decsion 1o acoapt an
offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employmment. The Group recognise termination
benefits in profit o loss al the earker of:

When the Groop can no longe withdraw an offer of those benefits: and

- When the Group has a spedific, lormal restiucture plan invetving payment of termenation
benedits, and the ptan has started or informed each affected party about the influence of the
plan, therefore each party fonmed reasonable expeciations.

Early retirement benefits

According to the Bank's policy on early retrement benafits, catain employess are entited 1o take
leave of absence and in retum recelve a certain level of staff salaries and related benefits trom the
Bank, The salwles and benefit panments are made from the date of early refiremeant to the rommal
retiresment  date. Differences arising from changes in assumplions and estimales of the present
vale of the Eabiities are recognised In profit or loss when it Iz incurred,
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(17) Income tax

154

Current lax and deferred s are recognised in profit o loss excepl to the edent thal they rdate 1o
ilerms thal are recognisad in capital reserve, in which case they are recogrised in capilal reserve,

Cirrent lax is the expected lax payable calcufated al the applicalde lax rate on laxable mcome for
thr period, and amy adiustment 1o lax payable in resped of previcus periods,

Al the ened of the year, cument tax assels and labllites ane offset if the taxable entity has a legally
enforceable righl 1o sat off them and the entity intends ather (o settle on a el basis of o realise
ther asset and settle the lability smutarsousty,

Deferrod tax assols and Fab@itles afso from deductibde and taxable temporary cifferances being the
differences bobween the caming amounds of assels and Babilities for financial reparting purposes
and their tax bases, which inciude the deductible losses and tax credits carmied lorward [o
subsequent periods, Defered tax assels are recognised o the extent thal it is probable thal fulure
teascabbe profils will be avallable againet which decluctitle lemporary differances can be used.

[Deferred tax s not recognised for the temporany differences arising from the nilial recogniion of
assels or Fabilties in a transaction thal & not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting profit nor laxable profit {or lax loss). Delerred lax 5 not recognised lor taxable
termpxorany differences arising from the initial recognition of goocdwill,

A the end of the year, the amount of defermed tax recognised is measured based on the expected
meewner of realisation or seftlement of the camying amount of the assels and liabilities using tax
rates thal are espected 1o be applled in the pegiod when the assel s realised o the labllity |s
selthed in accordance with tax laws,

The camying amount of a defermed tax assed Is revtowed at the end of the year. The camying
amcunt of a doferred lax assel is reduced to the exent that it s no longer probable that suflicient
taxable profits will be avalable lo allow the benefil of the defered tax assel o be uliised, Ay
sch reduction Is reversed 1o the axent that it becomes probabde thal sufficient taxabde profits will
b availalde.

Al the end of the year, deferred lax assals and Babilities are offsed if all the following conclitions ae
it

—  the laxabde entity has a legally enforceable dght to sel off cument tax assels against curment
lax liabilities; and

= lhey relate o ncome laxes levied by the same e authorily on either the same laxable enlity
o different taxable entiies which eilher intend to sellle the cument lax liabilities and assels
o a net basis, of to simullaneously realise the assets and settle the llabiities in each fulure
pericd in which significant amounts of defared tax liabBlies or aseols are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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2 Significant accounting policies (coriinued)

(18) Financial guarantees, provisions and contingent liabilities

(i} Financial guarantees

Financld guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (the "guarantor”) 1o make specified
payments o redminrse the beneficiary of the guarantee (“holder) for a loss that the holder
Incurs because a specified daettor fals to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of & debt instument. The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantes fees received)
Iz inltially recognised as deferred Income in other lieblities. The deferred income s amortised
In profit or loss over the tem of the guarantee as income from financial Quarantees issued,
Provisions are recognised in the statements of financial position as staled In Nole 2(18))
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
uncler the guarantes, and the amodnl of that claim on the Grodp s expeded to excesd the
carmying amount of the delemed ncome.,

{iiy Other provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision ks recognised lor an obligation related 1o a contingency if the Group has a present
obligation that can be estimaled reliably, and il is probable hat an outllow ol economic
henalits will be recuired to sellle the obligation. A provision is initialy messured al the best
eslimale of the expendiure required to sellla the related present obligation. Faclors partaining
Io a contingency such as the risks, uncertaintios and lima valea of momay are taken into
account as a whole in reaching the best estimate, Where the effect of time value of money s
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash flows.

For a possible obligation resulting from a past ransaction of event whose existence will
only be confirmed by the cccumence of non-occumence of uncertain iure events of a
present obigation resulting from a past ransaction o event, where it s nol probable that the
seftlerent of the abowe cbligalion will cause an oulllow of economic benefits, o the amount
of he cutflow cannol be estimatod reliably, the possible or present obligation 18 disclosed as
a contingent Fably.

(19} Fiduciary activities

The Group acls in a fidudary acthity as a manager, a custodian, o an agent lor customess. Assets
hetd by the Group and the related undertakings to retlum such assets to cuslomars are oot ded
as of-balance sheel tems as the risks and rewards of the assets reside with customens.

The Group enters inte entrusted loan agreements with customers, whereby the customers provide
furching (“entrusted funds”) to the Group, and the Group grants loans 1o third parfies (Centrusted
leans”) under instructions of the customers. As the Group does not assume the risks and rewards
of the enirusted loans and the comesponding entrusted funds, the entrusted loans and funds ame
racorded as off-balance sheat ftems al their princpal amount, Mo provsion: for impaimoent loss is
e for antrustad loans,
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(20) Income recognition

156

Income s the gross inflow of economic Banefil in the pericds arsing in the corse of the Group's
ordinary activities when the inflows resul in an increase in sharebolder's equily, other than an
narease radaling lo contiibutions rom shasholdars, Income is reeognised in profil o loss when
it & probatle that the economic benafilz will flow to the Group, the income and costs can be
maasured reliably and the tollowing respective. condiions are med:

U

(i)

(iii)

Interest income

Interest income for nandal assets s recognised In profil o kess as it is incumed, based
on the tirme for aBenation of right to use capital and effective inleres! rales. Interesl income
includes the amodisation of any dscount o premum of diferences between the nitial camying
amount of an interest-bearing assol and its amount atl maturity caladated vEing the effective
interest rate.

The effective imerest method is a malhed of calculating the amodised cost of a financal
assal and of allecating Ihe nterest income over The reporting period. The affective interest
rate is the rale that exactly discounts estimated fulre cash payments of receipts through
the expected lile of the linandal instnament of, when appropriate, a shorler pariod 1o the
netl camying amount of the finandal asset. When caloulaling the effective interest rabe, the
Group estimates cash flows considering 88 contractual terms of the financal instrument ffor
example, pepayment, call and similar optionsl but does not consider fulure aedil losses,
The caloualion includes all fees and points paid o recelved between parties to the contract,
fransaction costs and all other premiums or discounts that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate.

nterest on the Impaired assels B recognised wsing the rate of interes! used to discount fulure
cash flows {“unwinding of discount”) for the purpose of measuning the related impeaiment loss.
Fee and commission income

Fea and comimission income s recognisad in profil o loss when the comesponding senvice is
proviched,

Crigination or commitmant fees received by the Group which resull in the creation or
acouisition of a financial assel are defenmed and recogrised as an adjustment o the effective
interest rata, I the commitmen! axpires without making a loan, the fee s recognised as lee
ancl commisson income upon 1S axpiry.

Other income

Othat incoma is recognised on an acaual basis.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{21) Expenses recognition

i} Interest expenses

Interest expenses from finandal Babilifes are accrued on a time proportion basis with reference
o the amorised cost and the applicable effeclive inderest rate,

(i) Other expenses
Othery expenses ame recognised onan acaual basis.

(22) Dividends

Dividands or distributions of profits proposed in the profit approgpriation plan which will be
autharisad and declarad after the end of the reporting periad are not recognisad as a Babiity at the
avd of the year bul disclosed separately in (be notes 1o the finandal statements,

(23) Related parties

If & Group has the power to conlrol, jointly contral o exercse significant influence over another
party, of vice versa, of where the Group and one of more parfies are subject to common contral
of joint control from: another party, they are comsidered lo be reeled parties. Raated parties may
b mclnicuals o enterprises. Erdapises with which the Group s under comimon contrel anly from
fthe State and that have no otber rdabed party relationships are not regarded as relaled parties

(24) Segment reporting

Reportable segments are identified based on operating segments which: are determined based
on the structure of the Group's intemal organisation, management requirements and internal
reporting systemn, whose operating resulls are regularly reviewed by lhe Group's management
to make declsions aboul resowrces to be allocated to the segment and assess its perfarmance.
Ay segments which do nol comply with the repating of segments by division of quantities are
reported ab conscolidation level,

(25) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial stalements roquires management 1o make estimastes and assumptions
thal affect the application of accounting polides and the reported amounts of assets, liabdties,
ncome and expenses. Actual resulls may differ rom these estimales. Eslimates and underlying
assumplions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the pericd in which the estimate is revised and in any llure pariods affected.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(25) Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
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(i)

Impairment losses on loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
and held-to-maturity investments

The Group reviews portfcios of loans and recebvables, available-for-sale finandal assels and
hald-to-mabuwity investments pericdically o assess whether any impaimment losses exist and
the amount of impairment losses if there s any indication of impaimeent. Objective evidence
for mpament ncudes cbesarvable data indicating that there iz 8 messurable decrease In the
estimated future cash flows for personal loans, avallable-for-sale financial assels and held-
to-mabunity Bwestments, It also indudes observable dala indicating adverse changes in the
repaymend status of the deblors, or change in national or local economic condiions that
calses tha delaull in payiment,

The impaiment loss for linancial assets that is individually assessed for impaiment is The
net decrease in the estimaled discountad fulure cash ffow of he assals. When the financial
assals are collectively assessed lor impairment, the estimate is based on Rstorcal loss
apationes [or assels with credil fsk characterstics similr 1o he fnandal assels, Historical
loss exparience is adjusted on the basis of the relevan! obsavable data thal reflect cument
aconomic condilions and the udgement based on managament's historical eRparianco,
Management reviews the methodology and assumptions used in estimaling fulure cash flows
regularly to reduce any dfference between loss estimales and actual loss,

The cbjective evidence of impaiment for avallable-for-sale financial assels indudes sigrificant
o contirual decline in falr value of Investment. When dedding whether there [s significant
of contimel dachne In fair value, the Group will consider the historical fluctuation recosds of
market and debtors’ credit condition, financial position and petomance of redated industry,

Fair value of financial instruments

There ara mo quoted prices rom an active markel for a number of linancial instruments.,
The fair values for these inandal instruments are established by using valuation lechnicues,
These technigques include using recent anmm's length markel ransactions by refeming (o the
cirrant lair value of similar instrumants, discounted cash flow analysis and oplion pricing
modals, The Group has eslablished a work flow to ensure thal the valuation techniques are
constructed by qualiied parsonnd and are validated and reviewed by indepandent. personnal,
Vahmlion lechniques are cerdified and aalibrated before imglementation o ensure the valuation
resull reflects the actual market conditions, Valuation models established by the Group make
madaTian use of markel input and rely as lille as possitle on the Group's spedific data,
However, B should be noted that some Inpud, such as aedit and counterparty risk, andd risk
comalations require management's estimates. The Group redews [he above estimations and
assumplicns perocically and makes adiustment | recessany.
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2 Significant accounting policies (ccriinued)

(25) Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continusd

(i) The classification of the held-to-maturity investments

Mon-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maluity ae
diassified as held-to-maturity investments, i the Group has the intention and ability 1o hold
them until matwity. b evaluating whether requirernents 1o classify a financial assel as held-
to-maturity are met, management makes significant judgements. Fallure in corectly assessing
the Group's intenticn and abd@ity to hold specific Irvestrments until maburity may resut in
reclassiicalion of the whole portfclio as available-for-sae,

{iv) Income taxes

Deterrnining ncome tax provisions ivobes judgesnent on the fulure Baod trestment of colan
Iransactions. The Group carafully evaluates the lax imglications of transactions and tax
provisions are sel up accordingly. The lax freatment of such lransactions is reconsidered
pariodically to lake into account all changes in lax legislation. Delerred lax assels are
recognisad for tax losses not yal used and temporary deductible differences. As those
dederred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable hal uture taxable
profits will be available against which the unused lax credils can be ullised, manageme's
judgament is required o assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assassmant is constantly reviewed and additional defamed lax assals are recognised if
it becomes probable that fulure laxable profits will allow the delerred lax assels 1o be
recowered,

{v] Impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assols are reviewed regularly to detemine whather the camying amount exceeds
e recoveralde amount of the assets. Il any such indication edsts, an impaimment loss is
pirondckad.

Sinoe the market price of an assel (he assel group) cannol be obtained reliably, the fair
value of the assal cannol be estimated reliably, In assessing the present vahae of fulure cash
fowes, slgnificant [udgements are exercsed owver the assets selling price, related operating
expenges and discounting rate 1o calculate the present value, Al relevant materials which
can be oblained are used lor estimation of the recoverable amount, Including the estimation
of the selling price and related operating expenses based on reascnable and supporiable
assumpdion.

{vi} Depreciation and amortisation

st properies, Bxed assots and inlangilde assels are depreciated and amortised using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives after taking infe account residual
values, The estimaled usefd ves are reguiarly reviewed lo detemmine the depreciation and
amortisation costs charged in the reporting pericd. The estimated vsehd ves are determined
based on Hslorical experiences of similar assels and the eslimated lechndcal changes. If
there ks an indication that there has been a change in the faclors used to deteeming the
depraciation of amatisation, the amount of degpreciation or amarisation will bae revised,
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(25) Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(vii} Determination of control over investees

Managamant applies ts jucdgament 1o determine whether the contral indicators set out in Note
23 ndicate that the Group conirols a non-prindpal guaranieed wealth management produc
anl an assel management plan,

The Group acls a8 manager o a number of non-princpal guaranteed weslth managerment
products and asset management Hans. Determining whether the Group controls such a
sruciured entity usually focuses on the assessment of the aggegale economic interests of
the Group in the entity (comprising any carried interests and expected management fees)
and he declEon-making adthomly of the entily, For ol these structured emtiies managed by
the Group, the Group's aggreqgate economic imerest is in each case nol significant and The
decision makers establish, market and manage them according Lo resticled paramelers as
ol ot in the investment agreements as recuired by laws and requiations, As a resull, The
Group has conduded that it acls as aganl as opposed lo pincipal for the ivestors in all
cases, and thoralora has nol consolidaled hese struchured enlities,

Far lurther disclosurs in respact ol unconsolidaled non-principal guaranteed waallh
management products and asset management plans i which the Group has an interest o
for which |l is 8 spones, see Note 45,

([26) Change in accounting policies

160

The 1ASE has issued the fellowing amendments to IFRSs {including International Accounting
Stanvlards ((IASST) that are effective in 2015 and releant to the Group's oparation.

Amendments 1o WS 19 Employes bomais “Dafined benedit
plars: Ermploves contributions”

Annual nprovermenls to IFASs 2010-2012 Cycle

Arnual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cyda

The prindpal effects of adopting these amended IFRSs are as flows:

Amendments to |1AS 18 Employee benefits “Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions”

The amendments infroduce a relied to reduce the complexty of accounting for certain contribations
from emplovees of thind parties under defined bemafit plans. When the conlributions maeet tha
criteria set ol In the amendments, a company s penmilted (8 not required) o recognize the
contrlbutions as a reduction of the service cost in the period in which the redated service |s
renderad, nstead of induding them in caloulating the defined beneflit obligation.

The adoplion does nol have any material impad on the inancial poesition and the finandal resul of
v Gaoag.
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2 Significant accounting policies (coriinued)

{26) Change in accounting policies (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

The 2010-2012 cycle of annual Impeovement containg amendments Lo seven standards with
consaquential amendments to olber standards and interpretations including IFRS 2 Share based
paymant, IFRS 3 Business combinations, IFRS 8 Operating segments, IFRS 13 Fair value
measranad, 1AS 24 Related party disdosures, IAS 16 Properly, plant and equipment and 1AS 38
Intangibde assats.

The 2001-2013 cycle of annual improvement contains amendments. to fowr standards with
consequenlial amendments to other standards and interpretations including IFRS 1 First-time
adeplion of Intemational Financial Repoiting Slandards, IFRS 3 Business combinations, IFRS 13
Fair value measurement, 1AS 40 vestmenl propsary.

The adoption of these annual nprovements does nol have any maleris impad on the financial
position and he mancial resll of the Group,

3 Taxes
The Group's main applicable taxes and tax rates ae as follows:

(@) Business tax

Barsiness Lax ks charged at 5% on laxable ncome.
(b} City construction tax

City construction tax 5 caloulaled as 1%-7% of business lax,
(¢) Education surcharge

Education surcharge ks calculated as 3% of business tax.

{d) Income tax

The income fax is caloulated on taxable neome, The stalulory income tax ale of the Bark and
domestic subsiciaries is 25%. The statulary income lax rale of CEB Intemational Investment Co,
Ltch, the Hong Kong subsiciary, is 16.5%.,

161
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4 Net interest income

Maote M5 2014
Interest income arising from
Depesite with the central bank 5,120 5,034
Deprosits with banks and other financial institutions 2137 2,107
Placements with barks and other financial institutions 3,110 8,582
Leans and acdvances fo custome s A
- Corporata loans and advances 2813 51,851
= Parsonal loans and advances 28,199 ErEe el
- Digcounted bills 2,959 1,000
Financial assels hedd under resale agreements B B8 a0
Iwestmenls as.801 20,404
Sub-total L ,90? 133,026
Interest expenses arising from
Due 1o the central bark 642 213
Deposits frorm bariks anc other fnancial institutlons 18277 24,200
Placamens from barks and other finandal irstitutions 1.224 1,359
Dexposils from cuslomess :
- Corporale cuglomers 30,830 3,263
- Incivichsal cuslomers L 5215
- Stucturied deposils from coporate customens 4,985 2 R4
- Structured deposils from indvicheal customerns 6,106 7154
Finencial assols sold under reparchase agresments 1,187 137
Debls seaities issuexd A 8,570 2 568
Sub-testal 75,448 Th 667
Net interest income 66,450 58,250

Pk

-1} Tha mienssl income drenp fom mpersd Snancey’ assels for the yesr anded 51 December 2075 amourded b RUESDS

mdion (2074 AMBS58. mior.

(i Inforast axpanss o financial Bbdtes wih maturly over e yeas mindy movesenied (ho Mlanes! axpancs o Galils Securiies

L2375 )
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5 MNet fee and commission income

2015 2014
Fee and commission income
Bank card sendce fees 12491 G787
Wealth management senvice feas 1,253 3,349
Custody and other fiduciary business fees 1,740 1,065
Underariting ancl achisory fees 1,512 1,74
Saltlement and cloarirg lees 1312 1,824
Agency saivices fees 1,169 847
Acceplance and gquarantos feos 1,078 1,134
Others 1,190 7as
BRI s snipsmsimaessassmmnsisasssssims TN At 20,443
Foee and commission expense
Bank card ransaction fees 1,451 1,042
Sattlernent and cearng fees 83 a2
Othesrs 210 154
S e csesacssomassassssantsaaasssssnsrssssnrssnmessassssansersal] i
MNet fee and commission inc 26,301 1157
6 Net trading gains
205 2014
Iraching linancial instruments
- Debl securitias are R Ee
~ Darivaives 67 &7
o A, - ——
Fnancial instruments designated al falr value
through profit or loss 268 64
Total 335 1,279
163
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7 Net gains/(losses) arising from investment securities
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2015 2014
Mel losses on disposal of avalable-for-sale financial assets {100 {1108
Mel gainaflosses) on dsposal of hald-to-maturity investments 12 i)
el gains on disposal of debl secuilies dassiied as receivables T 13
Total 13 it
& Operating expensas
Mota 2015 2014
Staff costs
- Salaies and bormses 10,757 b, 135
- Staff welfares 295 260
- Penslon and annuty 1,470 1326
= Housing allowanoes 590 541
- SuppkeEmentary retivement benelils 38 3
- Miwrs 1,118 1,058
Sub-tatal 14,268 13,360
Premises and equipment expenses
- Depreciation of fixed assels 1,442 1,354
- Ametisation of Intanglble assets 246 205
- Amcetisation of long-term assaets 417 381
- Rental and property managerment expenses 2,385 2,143
D et v et e seeroer R 4084
Business tax and surcharges 7096 6,361
Total 32,354, 30,008
Modn:

(]
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The emokuments before individual incorme tax in respect of the drectors and supendsors who hold affice

Stintingbidis, pedod are as oo
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9 Directors' and supervisors’ emoluments (confimued

The amoluments before indvidual income tax in respect of (he drectors and supaenisors who held office
churingg the reporting pesicd are as follows (conbirueed):

24
Cizorationary bonus

pern Cthea
Fees  Solatkes Paid  Paable Sublobl  schemes wellaes Tokat
BME0  REYD)  RMBI00 RAVEDD) RMBUD0 RMEDD) RMEON  RMBSOOD

Exacutive direclors

Tt Higen - 525 - - ] 3 ] T8l

Hon-euecutive directors

Tang Shusangring - - g - = = 5

Gag Yurkng - - - - - - -

Wu Jen = = = = - = -

Measeriuya . = . - - -

Wi Gang - - = . - - .

Wang Stumin - - - - - - -

Wang Zrongn - - - : - - - -

M Gaokan - . - - . - - -

Independent non-executive diresctons

Thou Deofing :

Fk 04 Ling 353 - - - kL] - - =3

Trang Nirge 10 - B - 210 = - 210

(o Thimin 30 - - - 3% - : )

4 Fory 3o - = - 3 - - 37

Supervisars

Cai Haoyl = ik = = 955 & 24 128

My Hujun - 066 - : 5 & 21 125

fin Lianchen - - - - - - - -

Yu iy 25 - % = e =

Jaes Pards Snand xh - - - 205 -

£hen Yu = £5 {,157 - 18 40

Y Dergiad - s 1187 . 1803 40

Ma Mg - 092 1711 < 2700 a0

Former executive direclors

G You = 95 = = 95 & 3 1%

W g . 061 . - 1 40 255 1.2

Former non-uecutive dirsctor

L Thets £ = = = - = =

Former supervisors

Chen Sheng - - - - - - - -

Wang Fingsheng - - : - - . . i

Jreerw) Chuany 3 = o - - = £ 2
1913 ST 2085 - 1,2 | 1,061 13,25

.- 8

aza.
&
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9 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (continued

The emoluments before ndvidual income tax in respect of the drectors and supendsors who held office
during the reporting perlod ane as follows (continued):

Nota-

fil M Thee Hemn respned fom e postion of President of the Benk and ewecufve diector, membar of siratege commiftes
argd mamber of the sk managemant committes on 14 Janusy 2018 Mr Thang Jnlang was appoindad s¢ the President and
semcutve diecior of the Bankon T4 Jamary 2016, whose apporimant a5 he Presidand hes beon appeved by CBAC on 22
Fatwuary 2016 whib tha spcoinimant as the exectthvs direcior of the Bank & subyect o furthar aporoval by the shanstoldsns”
genernl moasting and COAC. Mr Ma Tong waos edched a8 an axpcutve diecior n the Board mosding hsld on 5§ Decamber
2014 He appoiirend wits apemwed by CHRC on 23 Manch 2015

i Mo Zheo Wai and Mr Ying Jour wive sbicied as nof-amoutve dimefor of the Bank i ihe board mealing hedf o 31
Celobar 2014 and 5 Decombar 2014 mspictvel. Therr appontments wom apooved by CEAC on 11 February 2015, M
Neranfuyd and MY Wang Thong=n coasod fo cane 8@ non-amcidee dictor of the Bank on 16 July 2015 end 24 Augret
2015 respacival.

WM Feng Lun and M Au Hongosl wens edecied as indepsndant non-seecutve dieciors of fhe Bank i the axdmorfiney
paneml mesling hald on 23 December 2004 end ther apponimes wem appmved by CERC on 11 Febrany 2015, Mr Zhow
Daoiing ceesed (0 senve 85 v indacendiand non-aecuive discior in Rebnarny 2005

M LU X wes alechod as supendisor of the Bank in e Bank's fiporvions’ mestng eld of 2 June 2015 Mo Cxl Heoyl
coasod fo sane as supervisor of the Bank on the tame dale

fie) Tha kol componsalon peckess for (e dmclors and supsraors by the year anded 31 Decambie 2015 & subwct fo the
appmval of the minant reouikion authonlies in PR The amownt of e compensaton noi provided for i nol agpected o
have sgnficant imped on the Group's tnancay elalements for the year endad 31 December 2015

The sbave dieciors’ and supersors” emoliments for the year anded! 31 Decamber. 2074 were mefated it sccomlanca with
ihe aciisd amounts shtseguently spprved by the PRC elevent srthorites
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10 Individuals with highest emoluments
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2015 2014

RME 000 RME 00

Salaries and ofhes emoluments 2,538 2573
Discrefionany bonuses 24,944 19,752
Contribations to pension schemes 207 4540
Cthwers 362 ABT
Total 28,051 #3311

MNone of the five individuals with the highest emoluments ae directors o supendsors. The numiber of
these ndivicksals whose emoluments before individual income tax. are within the following bands s sel

ol Dedow:

215

2014

RIMEES, 000,001 - 3,500,000
RIMEE, 500,001 - 4,000,000
RMES, 000,007 - 4,500,000
RMEBS, 000,001 -5, 500,000
RIMEBS, 500,001 - 6,000,000
RKBE, 000,001 - 6, 500,000
RMBE, 500,001 - 7,000,000

R R

=

Mone of these ndviduals received any inducoments of compensation fof boss of office, of walved any

amoluments dueing the reporting period.

11 Impairment losses on assets
205 2014
Lears and advances to cusiome ns 19,724 9,081
Dt securiies dassified as recevables 1,194 207
Available-tor-sale financis assels 171 (13
Held-te-maturity investrments 4 (252
Others 550 286
Total 21,652 10,208
168
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12 Income tax

(@ Income tax:

Maote 2ZME 2014

Current ae 12,0838 10, CE35

Dhesbesrro] T 2R (143 [EHH)

Adustments for pricr yees (1559 (82}
Total a9, 781 94,676

{b) Reconciliations between income tax and accounting profit are as follows:

M5 2014
Frofit before tax 30,358 34,554
Stallory tax rate 25% 25%
Jnooma e edobted s staitory et 0 BN 202020980
Effect of cileran tax rates appled by contain subsidiares 2 -
Mo ceductible expenses
Staff costs 43 a3
= Impairment losses on assels a73 Bh&
Chwex's 245 289
ST RTINS o GEERReR
Mo Taxalbie noome
— Interest income from the PRC govermment bonds (1,164) 1913
i T s
Adustments for prior year (159 (82)
Incorme ta 4,781 9,626
13 Basic and diluted earnings per share
Maote 205 2014
Weighted average mumber of ordinary shates §n millions) 13080 46,679 46,546
Mat profit attributable to equity shareholders of The Bank 26,528 28,383
Basic and diluted eamings per share atiributable 1o
eculy shareholdirs of the Bank (n RME) 063 .62

Theie is o dilerence babween bagic and ciuled samrmgs par share as lhede was no polentially diutive
shares outstanding during the period,

(a) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in millions)

2015 204

Mumber of ordinary shares as at 1 January AG, 510 AG.27T
 Wonty acided waighied wmargn iber of vty @iioos F Ll
Weaighted average number of ordinary shares A6 6T 46,646
169
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14 Cash and deposits with the central bank

Note G 2014
Cedvonvied ohey Tz
Dot with e central bark
- Statitory deposil resenves 141a) 2BI 484 06, 08
- Surplus deposit reserves 1) 27 553 35,306
- Camrency ngk resarves 14z 154 -
- Fiscal deposils B _ A.950 4,760
Sl assnsssmssssiasiiassasisaissssnssnsasssainssasss SRR 320,141 346873
Total 326,755 54,185
e
fal  The Group plces stalory deposl mesrves with the Pecpis’s Bank of Ching (e "PEDCT in accondancs with nasvant

170

Eguifong. AL Af e and of [he yaas, It daidon depodd means mios sopleabls fo the Bank wane a2 Bilows-

31 Decamber 37 Dacamber

2015 2004
Fesens o e AME oeposits 15,05 160
Riecusrvs i for forsgn clLrency’ deposts 5.0 LA

Tho stafufery dopodd mcsnms oo aod avnditde l6r e Grogo’s daly Disinoss
The Aurpiie depocll aarves ans masianed vt the PEOC for he purposs of clising

The Group pleces bvegn cumency ek meanss with e Beopls Bank of Chine i sccomancs with redwant mousions. As
af 31 December 2015, the fesipn cumsnoy Mo meone B0 wes 205,
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15 Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Analysed by type and location of counterparty
31 December. 31 December

2M5 2014

Deposits in mainkand China

- Banks B0, 152 23,709

- Ot financial instifions 200 241

Sub-totdl . . —— 80491 24,040

Deposits outside mainland China

- Banks 5,850 16,310
Sbtod o SRR 16210

Total 86,341 40,350

l_ess:ﬂghjsim Tor Imalrrrm loeses (300 m-'l:n_

Mel balances 6,511 40,316

16 Placements with banks and other financial institutions
3 December 31 Decermbxor

2015 2014
Daposils in maintand China
- Banks 146,536 106,884
= Cther financlal instihtions 79,520 El.ﬂﬁi
Suibe-total G0 065 127,748
Deposils outside mainland China
- Banks 33,207 4,886
o ST, e—-.—
Total 132362 132,734
Less: Provision for impaiment lossoes (1) {1
Mat balances 132,561 182,733
171
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17 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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31 December 31 December
Mota 2GS 2014
Dbt securities hald for tracing 17{a) 5474 4,190
Financial assets desgnated al
falr walue thicugh profil o loss 17 163 187
Total 5,837 4377
(a) Debt securities held for trading
2 Decamber 31 Decernbear
Mota 2015 2014
lesued by the following goverriments o institutions
Iry roainkandg China
Govermiment 266 181
The PBOC 40 30
Banks and other financial nstitutions 1,356 454
Other institutions iy 3702 3555
Sub-total 5,384 4,150
Caibshde malniand China :
- Banks and other financlal instibdions 63
- Other institutions 27 -
Total ik 5474 4,100
Listead 107 =
- of which lsted n Hong Kong 449 -
Lingsted TR 4,160
Total 5474 4,190
M-

172
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" Mo nvesimanis Wi Subpect o maanal eslnctions on mealsaion
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17 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(b} Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

31 Decemiber 31 Decembser

2M5 2014

Preciows metal B0 15
_Flmd intorast rate porsonal mongage koans 113 172
Total 163 187

Financial assels designated al far value through profit or loss represented fixed inlerest rate
persona modgage lcans and precious metal.

For fieed interest rale parsonal mortgage loans, the Group used inferest rale swap lo manage
Ihe assodatecd nterest rate rige The changes in fair value during the year and the accumulated
changes altributable 1o credit sk were mmalerial.

18 Derivatives

Debvative financlal instiements include forward and swap confracts undertaken by the Group In forelgn
currency and interesl rate markets. The Group acts as an Iintermediary between a wide range of
customens for siruciuing deals o provide sk management solulions to meel customer needs. These
positions are actively managed through entering into back-to-back deals wilth external parties 1o ensune
the Group's net exposures are within acceptabde risk level. The Growp also uses detlvative finencial
instraments in the management of its owmn asset and liabllity porticlios and struchural positions.

Tha following tabdes provide an analysis of the notional amounts of derivative finandal instruments of the
Groagr and the comesponding fair valees @l the and of the year. The notiocnal amounts of the denvalives

incicate the volume of fransactions culstanding at the end of the vear, theay do nol represent amounts al
rigk,

173
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CHIMA EVERBRIGHT BANK

18 Derivatives (continued,
fa) Analysed by nature of contract

31 Decamber 2015

Falr wabue

Metional

armount Assels Lisbiiities
Interest rate desivatives
- Interest rale swap 63214 377 4109
Cumency derivatives
- Foregn exchange forwasd 11,368 181 (43
- Forelgn exchange swap 144,089 1,067 {S37)
- Foreign exchanga oglion 309 - {1
Total 218081 1,625 (1.301)

3 Decernber 2014

Fair valuwe
Motional
aeamt Assels Liablities
Irterest rate desivatives
nlerast rale swap 1 261 331 (2TH)
Cumency desivatives
Feoregn exchange fowand 17,6543 154 131y
Forsgn exchange swap 123616 585 41 1)
Fordgn exchandge oplion 224 2 {1}
Total 232649 1,082 (781)

(o) Analysed by credit risk-weighted amounts

31 December 31 December

215 2014
Counterparty default risk-waghted assels
- Interest rate dervatives 80 106
- Curreney dervalives a6 943
Credl value adiusiment o ORa
Total 1,490 2017

The credit sk weighted amounts regresent the coularpany credit sk associated with derivalive
ransactions, which are calcudated with referance to the: guiddines issued by the CBRC in 2012,

174
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19 Financial assets held under resale agreements

(@) Analysed by type and location of counterparty
3 December 31 Decemiber

2015 2014

In manknd Chins
Barks 124405 240,926
Other fnancial nstitulions 28640 45,755
Tota) R 280,582
MNel balances 153,045 286,682

{b) Analysed by type of security held
31 December 31 Decerrbx

2015 2014
Bonds
- Govemment bonds 11,860 21822
— Other debil seauities G500 B2,655
Botob e O VOSSN
Bank acceplances B0 RO5 178007
_Uthers - 8 4758
Total 153,045 PRA G
Met balances 153,045 PBS 62

20 Interests receivable

31 Decormber 31 December

2015 2014

Interests raceivable from investrmants 12,420 2014
Inlerests receivable from loans and advances o custemens AR 4,200

Inferests recaivalle from deposits and placements with banks

and other finandal instibutions 1263 1,299
Oiher interests receivable 280 244
Total 18,563 14,657
Less: Provision Tor impairment losses: (37 (365
Mal balsces 18,546 14,621
11755
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Exprassad in milons of Renminkl, onless othenwine: Saled)

21 Loans and advances to customers

176

@ Analysed by nature

31 December 31 Decembet

2015 2014
Corporate Iu:::ns ard amarm §-- 91?_32?' E.a_'ﬂ'l.ﬁﬁ
Parsonal Ir.kl'IS .:hﬂ ar_fu-.:um
- Residentid and commercial mertgage loans 237,772 (§22 R LT
- {recll cards 172812 13648
- Personal business loans 5,478 05,242
- (Xhars 18,958 24,328
| Salbelotal. e rammemceameammsa s ot e ananceneneenneo S 45BABS
u&mlﬁmi bills 71,196 20,031
Gmcss Mwumactmsm otﬁlmners A 1‘,:&_1_%?:13 " 1 .?994;-'-'-.
Les:s F’mxdslm Il::u In'palmm h)ms
= Inchddually assessed (10,083 (4,946
- Collectively assessed (28,036 (3,075
_Totod provision formpaimentt logses  BESEGIISE (128029
Meat loans and advances 1o malu‘m’s 1475424 1,271,420
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21 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

(B} Analysed by economic sector
31 December 2015

Loans and
advances
socured by
Armoant Parcentacge collaterals
Manufactuing 246,140 16.26% 64,126
Real estale 143 428 0.48% 115,126
Wholesale and retall racke 123,507 8.10% 46,311
Transportation, storage and postal sendces 75,108 4 5% BI);E_'E
Waler, environment and pudic
utility management 0,854 4.68% 35,552
Leasing and comimercial services 54119 3.508% 27 962
Cerstiction 50,084 331% 14,551
Miringg 31,416 2.08% 4,319
Oilbwrs 122 261 B.08% 38,114
Sub-total of corporale loans and advances g7 327 G0.62% 80,057
Personal loans and advances 525 000 34.68% a23.307
Discounted bills - 71,1896 4.70% 61,36
Lass:  Provision tor imgammend losses
- Indivicually assessed {10,083
- Collactively assessed (28,006
Yool peoesion for mpaimment losses. . IR e
Mt loans anvd advances 1o custoimers 1475424
177
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21 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

(o) Analysed by economic sector (conlinued
31 Decermnber 2014

Loans ancd
advances
sacured by
Arreonit Percentage collaterals
Marwifaciuring 23,451 18.04% bh.247
Whotasale and relal frade 149,001 11.47% A7 454
Feal estate 125,022 9.59% 83,955
Transportation, storage and postal sendices 63,537 4.80% 20617
Leasing and commercal sendces 51,533 3.897% 3,718
Corsiruction A7 193 A.63% 12 3568
Water, swironment and pubdc
utility manageent 38,684 2.908% 13,423
Miriireg 32,004 2. 46% 4,541
Others 7784 5,90 o7 1
Sub-total of coporate loans and advances 820,138 63.12% 208,547
Parsona loans and advances 458,385 35.27% 2003 384
Discoumted bls 20,531 1.61% 16,036
sk lowos and acvances- 1o cuslonners, o 100045 T0000%  G0ZST1
Less:  Prosision for impainmend losses
= Inclividually assessad {4,545}
- C:le:bd'ru'ct_y assassed (23,075
Jotal provision for imparment losses L B0RS
Met loans anvd advances 1o customerns 1271 430
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As at the end of the yesr and during the period, detailed infenmation of the impaired loans and
achvances 1o astomes as well as the comespondng provision for Bmpainment losses in respect of
aach economic sector which constitutes 10% of more ol gross loans and advances o customans

are as lollows:
31 December 2015
Inecihdcdually  Collectively
assessod  assessed  fpaimnent
Impaired  provision for  provision Tor charged  Wiitlen-ofl
loans and  mpainment  impairent d.ling clurfing
axhvanons - losses logses ther yoar (e
ManLilacturing 7252 {3.516) (6,806) 6,526 GBE
3 Decenber 2014
Inclividually  Collectively
assassnd assessed  [mpairrmen
Impaired provision for provigion for charged  Writlen-oli
loars and  mparment  Impaimment chring cluring
advances [osses losses the year the year
Manufacturing e {2.156) (5,137 2621 E55
Wholesale and retall irade S0092 {1.555 (407 T) 4,008 1.357
(c) Analysed by type of collateral
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Uresscured loans 434,735 GT 5aT
Guaranteed loans S14,118 293.787
Secured loans
- By tangihle assets other than monefary assels 585,530 452,366
- By monatary assels 179,160 115,605
Gushae adadmcseloaeionee. 00000 EEEEERSEEN 1299455
Less:  Provision for impainment losses
= Inciviclually assessed {10,085 {4, 9405)
- Coleclively assessed (28,036 (#3,0749)
Yol predeion for o e s ssaiasas ST AL
Met loans and advances o customess 1475424 1,271,430
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21 Loans and advances to customers (continued

{d) Overdue loans analysed by overdue period

31 December 2015
Chmpciog Cnerdoe
Overdue  more than  more than
within Three months . one yaar 1o Chardue.
fhwee months.  to one year  thres years  mote fhan

ncishe)  [rchsve)  (eclushe)  thiee yeas Total
Unsecured ipans 5,50 3187 BEY B0 8,800
Guaranteed loans B.851 E AL 5,048 70 23,164
Secuned loans
- By langicle assets other than
monelary assets 10228 H.:886 504 &z 25,440
- By monetary assets 1501 1,162 ESE 15 3,330
Total 26,661 23,438 11,208 437 61,833
As a percentage of gross loans
and advances 10 customesns 1:75% 155% 0.75% 0.03% 4.09%
31 Decamber 2014
Crardue Onverdue
Cvardue mere than moge fhan
within: three months - one yaar 1o Crherdie
e manths 1o one vear  Thres years miare fhan
(nchsive) [rchusive) {mchesie)  three years Total
Unsecured ipans 7 2,710 &0 26 10517
Guarantesd loans 7 k2 5504 1,283 144 14,503
Secured loans
- By tangblr assels other than
monany assels 10,925 5,308 1,508 220 18,541
- By monetary assels BET 516 189 12 1,584
Total 26,805 14318 3,820 402 45145
As a percentage of gross loans
and advances 10 cusiomers 205%: 1.10% 0.26% 0.03% 34T%

Owverdue loans represent loans, of which e whole o part of the principal o inferest were overdue
for ome day of more.
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21 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

() Loans and advances and provision for impairment losses

31 December 2015

Gross

Mot gy (o impaired

loans and  Impaired koans loans and

for which  for which  for which aEa

7 AR )

e @ e ol -gross

colecthaly colectiely ksl  loars and

Gross lpans and advances 10 cusiomens 1,488,168 5148 19,227 1513543 1E1%
Lesss: Prowision for impsimrent kosses (25667 (2888 (0083 (3|19
hed beares ancd adences o cusiomens 1,463,501 e D444 1,475 424

31 Decermber 2014

(Hate (i el () impared

Leans and Impaiad Ioans pane and

advances and advances advances

lor which  for which for which aa

provsion  provision provision peanC il

are are are ol gross

coliecively coleciiel  Indiicually loans and

asgessod  aSsessed  assesTed Told  advances

Gross lans and advances 10 cusiomers 1,283,000 358 11030 1,299 455 1.19%
Less: Provigion for impakment loeses (20,968) [2,111) (4,546 (28 025}
Mal bane and advances 1o cusiomears 1,062 062 1475 BOE 1,271,430

Aida!
L] Loans and sdvaences colecliindy assassad for impaimen! include those whch ame prided nowmal or specal-menlion

W Impaied bans ond sdvances Befude those for whih slifscie awdence of imparment fus Boen derdfind and
Bssassad using the frlowing mathods:

= inaiiviciiady’ (NG CONporate Ians and sovances which @B pradisdl substancand, Joubdf or inssl or

- Caliecivey, reprBsenting porfbios of homoganeois bans. (incicing persansl ibans: Bnd . Bovances which we
gradedl subsimndan doubdisl o kigs)

& The defntibns of the ban cssficalons, sinted n Node ([ and (i abow, am sof cuf 1 Mol 52yl
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21 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

fi Movements of provision for impairment losses

2015

Frovision .

ol fﬂm
advances loanes and advances
which are  which are  which are
collectively collectively  indhadually

-gsnassed

assessed  assessad Total
As at 1 January {20, 568) 2111 {4,545 {28,025
Charge for the year (4,606 @121 (12251)  [20071)
Release for the yea = - 7 2347
Recovaries = (228 (106) (334)
Uinnedricing of discoun - - Bl B
Disprosal - - 3,583 3,583
Wirite-offs - 3,081 2488 5510
As Al S Decemibar (25,667) PaGa (10083 ([@81%

2004
Provigion
1o i Prowssion
and tor impaired

achonces __bars and advances

which ae which are which zre

colectively colieclively nohvickzsly

assessed assassad assessed Total
Az al 1 January 119,252} (1,563 13357 {24,172}
Charge for the year {1,716) (2,062 16,770 10,5488
Release for the year - - BT 567
Fcoiwies - (231) oy (330§
Lirwinding of diecount - - 858 AA0
Deposal - - 1804 1804
Weite-oits - 1,745 RS 4 96
A5 Al 31 Decamber [20.068) (2111 {4 Qa5 128,025
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21 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

(g} Analysed by gecgraphical sector
31 December 2015

Loans and

advances

socured by

Loan balanoce Parcentage collaterals

Yanglze River Dalta 30904 19.95% LE ARG

Bohal Rim 265018 17.57 % 129,059

Central FA0,A08 15.25%. 126,482

Westem FA G 15.18% 142,753

Pearl River Delta 161,858 12.68% 127.514

MNortheastem 5,047 B35% 58,777

Cnerseas 24,414 1.60% 6,672

Hesad Oilfice 172822 11.42% -

Gress bans sl acheanoss 1o cuslomers 1,513,543 100.00% TG4 500

3 December 20714

Loans ancd

advanons

socired by

Loan baktance Fercentage collalerals

Yarglse Bhear Dalta P61 847 20.15% 139,184

Echal Rim 739,130 18, 40% 100,197

Westem 197 T 15.22% 115,060

Central 196,254 15.02% O E22

Pearl River Delta | FOLET4 13.15% G 00}

Northaastem B85 6.19% 48,485

Overseas 14,535 1.12% G324

Hesad Office 135,661 10.75% -

Gross loars andd acdvances o austonas 1,259,455 T00.00% BOF.9r
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21 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

184

{g) Analysed by geographical sector (comtimeed)

Az al the and of the year, detailed information of the mpaired loans and advances 1o customens as

well as the coresponding impainment provision in resped of geogaphic sectors which constitules
10% or more of gross loans and advances o customers are as Tollows:

31 Decamber 2015
Incivichally Colleclively
- assessedd assussad
Irgaired provision for provision lor
loans and impalment irmpainment
advances losses losses
Yangtze River Delta 5,974 2,947 (5,247
Paarl Fiver Delta 4,357 (1,872 4188
Central 4,002 (1,656) (3.891)
Westarn 4,514 (2 445) (4.531)
Bohal Rim 2,104 f213) (5,043

31 Doecornbar 2014

Indivichally Collectively

aszessed assassed

Irrgairesd provision for provislon for

loans and impainment irrganment

advances losses losses

Yangtze River Dalta 4,605 i71n {4,591 4%
Pearl Fiver Delta ami (1,285) (3,304)
Ceiral 1.983 {7444 (3,281
Westarn 1,907 {501) (3,652
Bt Firn 1,519 {AB1) i4,201)

The dafiniticns of the regional distribadions are set out in Note S1{b).
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21 Loans and advances to customers (continued)
{h) Rescheduled loans and advances to customers

31 Decamber 31 Docenmiber

2015 2014
Rescheduted loans and advances to astomans 12034 4,832
Less: Reschocided loans and advances 1o customrs
ocverce more than 93 days {4202 {E58)
Rescheduled lcans avd advances 10 cusiomes
overchee nol mare than 90 days 7832 3,774

22 Available-for-sale financial assets

31 Decemie 31 December

Mole 2015 2014
Dbt wvestmonits 2N 193,650 138,249
Ecpity investrments F) 545 310
Furdd investments ??4_-;:]__ 28200
Total 222495 138,550
Listad 47180 2,788
- of which listed in Hong Kong H284 1,240
Unitsted 175315 135,771
Total 222 A0 138,554
185
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22 Awvailable-for-sale financial assets jcontinued
fa) Available-for-sale debt investments
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Al available-for-sale debl investments wera staled al fair value and issued by the following

governiments and institulions:

3 Decembar
Mote 2014
I mainkand China
- Govermement 37,938
- Banks and other financial instihdions 14,029
— Ckher instiltions iy 84,429
Bbtoll v . 136556
Cakside mainland China
- Gerveimenent 320
- Banks and other finandal institutions a5
- Other institions SE1
Total (i) 138,249
by

i Disbt sacunline ssued by Banks and ofher financial neidutions mank repmeand debl secunliss and niscbank deposis

suEg by banfs snd cihee fesncll midifons i e inanking Ching

" Dbl sactyfes ssuaed By ofter neliufions many moresent dabl secunfes Seued by stafe-ownod srlerpvises and ounf

Sfock enlarpeeas. i marand Clhns

) Az gl the and of the yeav, pan of e samisbic-forsais francsy essels wes pladged for meowchess agroements: and

timo doposls fsee Nob 30l

W Al e and of s paar, e albwancs or mpaiment Dsses of rabebb-trcaky dabl matdrac? was 171 mllon (37

Ciacgribor 2074, e
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22 Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

() Available-for-sale equity investments

Mote 2015 2014

A cosl

Az al 1 January 305 K
Aelditions: for the yesar 132 il 2
Reductions for the year (36) -
As al 31 Decembed 401 35
Less: Provision for impaisment losses (1} {1
Subs-lotal it A0 304
Al el value

As al 3 Decamber 245 6
Total - 845 310

(] Avlinie- for-2ak unkted aquly mesimonts which oo nod Peve 8y quoled maresd pnces and witted ke vatsss: cannod
b e i’ miably are stafed o cosl kes dny impermont Detes. The Group nfends o discose thoss inistad ooty
mveaimanis. whom oppodundes anss.

{c) Awvailable-for-sale fund investments

3 Decemnber 31 Decermber

2015 2014
In mankand China
Banks and other financial instutions 28200
Total C28200

(d) Movements of allowance for impairment losses of avallable-for-sale financial
assets measured at cost during the year are as follows:

Ayallabe-tor-sale Availabe-for-sale

debt investments  equty investments Tedal
A1 Jaruary 204 - i 1
Al 31 Decemnber 2014 and
11 Janusry 2015 - 1 1
Charge lor e yesr 171 - 171
A3 Dacermber 2015 11 1 T2
187
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23 Held-to-maturity investments
Analysed by type and location of issuer

31 Dacemtar 3 Decembar

Node 2015 2014

I mainland China

- Govemiment 11607 71,505
- Barks and other fnancial nstitutions 16,577 20,530
- Other institutions 23(a) 17,979 19,045
Outsiche mainlzand Ching

- Governmen 330 -
- Barks and other fnancial institutions 1,113 331
- Other Institutions 305 ZBE
B SISO )
Total 23b) 152 322 111,703
Less: Provision for impainment losses e ]
MNel baances 182,312 111,697
Listed 1,289 &
- of which listed in Hong Kong #o4 &01
Linfsted 151,023 111,086
Met balances 152,312 111,867
Fair waie 156,516 112,161
e
{5} Eebe securties Ssusd Dy ofher inshtutions manky represent debt secunibies: ssued by state-cnwned enleprisss and jomd ook

anismrEed n manind Chin

i Az af the erd of the year, paf of the hedd-fo-matunly ivestmens wes pidged a5 secunlies for cafain fransections (e
Moate SOyl

el The Gvoup dispossd of e hell -fo-matinly dabl rrssiments with 8 nofonal amourd of AWESLD mdlion por i Bt oy
dalas for tho year anded 31 Decembar 2015 (2074 RVEILT milion), which scooonl for O48% (20714: 0.32%] of the portolo
beors the deposal
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24 Debt securities classified as receivables

31 Decamber 3 Decerniba

Hola ) 3 2014
Wealth managerment products issued by otfver o
finandal irsilutions 244z 136,434 70,334
Beneficial interest ransfir plans 24ib) 368,304 263,784
Total 524,828 334,118
Less: Provision for impalment losses: {1,401} (207)
Met balance 523427 333,911

Meoka-

) Weabth mansgamend products ssusd by other fnancis! instiutons ame fied-fem products

bl  Bonaficl nlems! mmsfor pns s many bencfice indemsls ssued by Inel comparnses, secunfics . companss, Inswwance
companss and assel mansgement companess. As af e end of the year, pard of inestmants n fhe benafcai inforsst fansfar
pling Midd by M Bark wom woder Bowavd sole corlrachs wilh ofher frencel mddulons in mankad China, e noticnal
amoonl of which was RWETL N0 m (31 Decembar 2074: AMELS 410 milicn) The far vabss of i abow mendored
InvEEimants apomuaTale i Mok campng ot

25 Investments in subsidiaries

31 Decamier 31 Decenibes

Note 2015 2014
Everbeight Financial Leasing Co., Ltd, 2543 2,700 2,700
CEB Intamational Ivestment Co., Lid. 250} 494 -
Shaoshan Everbright Village Bank Co., Lid. 25q) 105 105

iangsu Husi'an Everbright Vilage Bank Co., Lid. PEL) it 7o
Total 8,360 2,875

Nesla:

ja)  Everbrgld Financal Leasing Co., Lid (*Everboghf Anencsl Lastng”] was incorporeied on 10 May 2010 in Wuhan ety
of Hubsl Proviece, 'with mostasd copdal of AMES 700 milon. The prncipel sciivy of Everbniphl Ananca Lessing & [ha
provizon of Basing sarvbes. The Bank hoids 50% of souly hiesals and wobing nghls of Everbrght Financial Leasing

B, CER infemabonal ivehmant Co,, Lid (CESF) was noorporated on B Movamber 2015 in Hong Kong, wify mgsiemd capda
of AME4Gd milon The principa) schiddy of CEQ & the pmvenn of invesimenl benking businass acfidties, The Sank holls
1009 of peualy. pdamesde soed vobing nahls of CESS

il Sheoshan Evetnght Vilags Benk Co, Lidl [Shacshan Evartepht”] wes incorpomsedd on 24 Seplembar 2009 i Shacshan ey
of Hunan Provings, wilth regiEiesd capdal of AVETS0 millan. The pancipel activites of Shacaian Evebnghl & the provision
of corporake and miel bonking servces. The Bank hoids T0% of equity infomsts and vobing nghfs of Shacshan Everbnghl,

i) Jangsu Huelan Evertwight Vilage Bank Co., Lid. PHus'en Bwrbogh®) wes incorpomsied on 1 Febrary 2013 in Huedan cfy

of Jangsy Province, with mgistend capdal of AWETI0 miion. The princio achivities of Hualan Everbnight am e provision
of cofporate and mial bonking senvcss. The Bark hols T0% of aquily infemsts and voling nights of Hual'en Everbrght
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Epremed nomlios of Rt i oferves Sy

Cost

As &t | Janusry 2015

Additions

Traresiors foutin of invesiment propertiss
Trareshor [oulin 1o oftérs

Do

Hs 2 31 Degertper 25

I

Accumulated depreciation
HAaat 1 Janay 2015
Chrargs b the wear
Trarekers cutfey of Ivesiment propsres
Trarekr i fo ofters
Dbposds
Ha @ 31 Decerrber 2015

e T e
As 81 1 Janury 2015
_ Aea 31 Decwerber 2015
Net book value
#s 4 31 Decerrer 2015
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26 Fixed assets (continued

bmeesiment  Corstruction Beclronic

Premises  properfies  in progress.  eguapment Ctiners Total

Cost

Fa gt 1 Bnuary 2014 2585 415 1,408 4,184 2,123 1831

Addtions G - Pt B BT | 55

Trarsstrs infoud) of conssuction in progres - izt - - -

Trarsders nviout) of invesiment propaes s (24 - - - .

Transher infout] (o cthers e - {15 - - 5

Deposats e - - [144) {4} (265

f5 at 31 December 2014 10,590 A fi3 4,006 35T 19,05
Accurmulated deprecistion

A b 1 sy 2014 {155 {13 - (24300 1, ) 5553

Charge for the year 193 {1y - (55 [5ET) {1,354)

Teansfers frjfout of rmaiment prepeetes { -1 - - - -

Transher in 10 ofhers (168 - - - - {16}

Deposals 13 - - 125 o 167

Pe 3t 31 Decerrber 2014 {2,135 {138 - 2559 (1,564) i, 73
Provision for impairment

Ba a1 Januaey 2014 128 (1) - - - (153

Tramesters frijfout (4 4 . ;
Jeudileoamowatd i I i, s A e (158
Het bock value

Hg al 31 Decamber 2014 a3 e T PR 1,803 13,043

As al 31 December 2015, litle deeds wera not yet finalised of the pramises with a camying amount of
AMBITE million (31 Decemnber 2074: AMB182 million). Managemeant of the Group expected thal thee
would be no significant costs in olitaining the tith deeds,

The nel book values of premises al the end of the year are analysed by the land’s remaining tams of
the leases as follows:

31 Decernber 31 Decerni-r

2015 2014

Hedd in mainland China
- Long temm leases (over 50 years) - 32
- Medium term leages (10 - 50 years) #0885 8,790
= Short term [eases Jess than 10 years) 13 10
Total 8,101 83
191
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The mat bock values of Fwestment propertios al the end of the year are analysed by e rermaining tems
of the leases is as follows:

31 Decenibwor 3 Ducarmibar
2015 2014
Held i mainland China
- Medum term leases (10 - 50 years) 227 228
Total 227 ]
Goodwill
31 Decermbwar 3 Decembar
2015 204
Cost 6,018 6019
Luca: Providon for Rivalirnt Kiiee th /55 (8,735
Met balances 1,281 1.281

A approved by e PBOC, the Bank and China Development Bank ("CDEB? jointly signed an “Agresment
betwesn China Development Bank and China Everleight Bank' for the ranster of assets, iabilities and
banking premises of China lnvestmant Bank™ {the "Agreesment”) on 18 March 1989, According lo the
Aogpeement, COB transferred the assels, Babllilies, equity and 137 oulkets of 29 branches of the former
China Investmen! Bank (*CIBY) to the Bank. The Agreerment became effective on 18 March 1999, The
Bank assassed the fair value of the Wransferred assels and liabilities; and recognised the excess of the
purchase cost over the sum of the far value of the net assels ransiered and deferred lax assets as
el

The goochwill is subject o annual impairment lesting. The Bank makes provision for impaimment il
necessary. The Bank calcudates the recoverable amount of the CGU using cash flow projections based
an financial lerecasls appeoved by management covering a fve-year peiiod. The discount rale used
reflects spodfic risks refating (o the relovan segments.

Basad on the resull of the impairment lesting, no additional impainmaent losses on goodwill were
racagrised for the yaar,

28 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(@) Analysed by nature

31 Decermtsar 31 Decambsar

2015 2014

Deferred tax assals 3,823 3,034
Deferrad tax liabiiies - -
Mat balances 3623 3,034
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28 Deferred tax assets and liabilities oniinued)
(B) Movements of deferred tax

Met
| for vais Nt balarce
Froviion fo1 changes of  of deforred
Iosses payabe  inslurments amets
Mate i hote ()
1 Jenuary 2015 1,484 1,664 i144) 3054
Recogrized in profit or loss 1,804 349 (10 2,143
Pecogrised n capital ressnve = = {1.254) (1i254)
31 December 2015 3,288 2,043 (1,408) 3823
Mel lossesf
igainsh from
[ar vake Mal balance
Prowvision Tor changes ol of deferrad
impament Stalt eosh {inancial HE
losses payabia insfruments assels
Mats ) hiote: (f)
1 January 2014 1,071 1,504 1,550 4015
Recogrised in prolit or kbss 413 300 (325) 3E8
Recogrized i capital resens - - {1,363 (1,269)
3 Decenber 2014 1,484 1,604 (144] 30e4

Mk

] The Gous made proveion for mparmend lbsses on lbans and advances fo clsfoman: and olfsr financll assels. The
proviin B mpeimmant bises wem delermingd based on the aopeched mecvemble amount of the mesvant gssals
at ifhs ond of the year Howewer, the amounfs deductbl Sr income far purposss & calouled st 1% of tha grmoss
carping amotnl of qualing sssets &f the ond of e yodr, fogedher willy wile-offs which WGl soocific Orfoi s sl
ol 0 the PRC mx nalss and are appoved by o fae atdfionbios

S N gars fmm e vakes chenoss of franchl isluments Sm subise! fo far whee reaiesd
)  Linvecopriced cofamed (e scoals
Az al' 31 Decamber 2015, e Goup has nol recogrised delored lax pisels of AVMERST3 milon (31 Decembar 2014
RAMER TO0 milion) for prossion of imoeiment beses amounting. fo AWE 14,6837 milion (31 Decamber 2074 AMBT0 600

miicnl. The was many bocmses @ was undatan whethor e sses fom wie-offs of e imparad assals couwd bo
appeoved By the mianl b sutfortios i the msesatis futuns
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% Erprassad i milons of Renminkl, onleds ofhenwine: Saled)
29 Other assels
31 December 31 December
Mota G 2014
Financial lease recelvables 20(a) 38,735 21,500
Precious metal 4,779 1,788
Other recavatias 4656 2,083
Logwy-termn deferrec expense 1,450 1452
Fieech assals purchass propsytmen 995 426
Intangilde assets B34 B0
Reprossestad assels 320 304
Lard wse righis 112 118
Othrs I 2. 1874
Total 51,042 30,059
fa) Financial lease receivables
31 December 31 Decermber
2015 2014
Mirdnwam finarce kase receivabiles 44,732 25,064
Lerss: uneamed finance lease incomse {5,060 (3,048
Fresent value of finance lease
B octronadSODRRORONONOIOORONNUSORONOTORONOTI S| - s ddc
Less: impaimment losses
- Weclivickial aesassivan 205 {138
- Collective assessment (7 frevy:
Mal balanca 38,735 21,500
Fnance lease recebables, uneamed finance lease income and minimum finance lease recelvables
analysoed by rermaining perod are listed as follows:
205 2014
Prasen Priaser
Mindrnurm Linaamed e af hindrriuin Lirnarried vale of
fitance kase fnance ease fnance Bass  finance lease finance Base linance lease
recaisbles incoma  recehables  recawshls neome receiables
Lesg than 1 year 11,973 (1,588 10,385 5168 {1,205) 5,904
1 year 10 2 vears Q,SET 1175) B382 6776 (FE8) £.008
£ years io 3 years &.811 (B2 5082 4316 {245 387
3 years fo 5 years 9,378 (64} 8,414 3475 [277) 3,004
Wore than 5 years £467 [4B8) 5081 2,083 (240) 1.843
Indefinite” 446 [15) 428 215 (13 202
44,732 (5,060} 30672 25,064 (3,048 22,016
The indeinde perod amounl mpvesants (he balences Dahg impaed o overdue B moms: fian ons month
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30 Pledged assets
(a) Assets pledged as collaterals

Financial assels pladged by the Group as collaterals for Eabiities inchude dscounted bElls and
debl secuilies. They are mainly pladged lor repurchase agreements, time deposits and swap
transactions. The carrying amount of the finandal assels pledged as seouilies as al 31 December
205 is RMBT0574 million (31 December 2014: BMBGE, 237 milion).

(b) Collaterals received

The Group conducts resale agreements under the usual and customary terms of placements, and
holds collaterals for these transactions. As al the end of the year, the Group d&d not held any
resale agrecment thal collaterals were permitted to be sold or repledged in the absence of the
counterparty’s defaull on the agreaments.

31 Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

Analysed by type and location of counterparty
31 December: 31 Decernbaer

2015 2014
Deprosits in mainlangd China

- Banks 2:34,&'5 272345
- Other financlal inslitutions 305,547 200,907
et R ' i sl

Deposits outsida manland China
— Barks 894 ol
Bivsitisiee P, o
Total 541,006 BOT 187
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32 Placements from banks and other financial institutions

Analysed by type and location of counterparty
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31 December 31 Decembet
2015 2014
Placamets in mairkand China
Earks 41,263 #7313
Oher fnancial mstiutions i 500 I,_B{)L'l
Subr-total . Mm7e3 013
Placerments outside mainland China
- Barks 18,542 7 B3
oL e, e
Total 50,305 36,744
33 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
@) Analysed by type and location of counterparty
31 December . 31 December
a5 2014
In maindand China
- Banks 05,550 48,111
- Dt_hm financial irs@Eutions 3,323 i‘_..l“:l‘ﬂ
Total 58,873 51,772
(b) Analysed by collaterals
S Decamber 31 Deootrdes
MHE 2014
Bark acceplances 19,770 2,089
Securities 30,103 ADGTD
Total HEA3 1 s
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34 Deposits from customers
31 December 31 Decernber

2015 2014
At amortised cost
Demand deposits
- Corporate customers 480,487 443,484
= Inclivicheal customers 145, 06 118,123
Sb-tolal GPE513 B02 60T
Tirme deposits
= Corporate customers GEFAGT G16,272
- Inifivicheal customens 121,019 128,721
et A .- I s
Hedged depogits
- Acceplances 160,874 207 M9
— Letters of credi 14,327 21,663
- Letlers of guarantees 8,209 10,851
— {Xhers 7,65 10,022
Ot deposits 110,665 72,506
Total deposits from customers at amortised cos 1,755,220 1,629,881
At fair value
Shnechured deposils
- Corporate cUstomers 166,646 58,7685
= Incivichel customers 71,968 95,600
_Total deposits bom customers at felrvabe L 2dBBldS 155456
Total 1,903,843 18337
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35 Accrued staff costs

31 December 31 Decemnber

Mota 2015 2014
Salary and welfare payable 10,721 9,175
Pension payable 35{a) ar 179
Suppdementary retirement benefits payable 350 3499 314
Total 11217 G668
{a) Pension schems
Pursuanl to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group has joined a defined
confribation scherna for the employees arranged by local government labowr and soclal security
organisations. The Group makes contributions 1o the retrement scheme al the applicable rales
based on the amounts stipuated by he relevant govemment o garesations.
The Group provides an annuity plan 1o the eligible employees, The Group makes annuily
conritutions in proporlion o lBs emplovess” gross wages in ics year, which are charged 1o prolit
of loss when the contributions are made,
(2} Supplementary retirement benefits ("*SRB")
The Group pays SREB (o eligible employees. The amount represents the present value of the total
estimated amount of futire benefits that the Group s committed to pay for elighble emiployess al
the: end of the year. The Group's oldigations in respect of the SRE were accessed using projected
unit credit method by qualiied stall @ member of society of Acluaries in Amerca) of an extemnal
ndepenclent acluary: Towers Watson Management Consulling (Shenzhan) Go., Lid,
(i) The balances of SRB of the Group are as follows:
21 Decamiber 31 Decembe
2015 2014
Present value of SREE obllgation 3499 G314
(i) Movements of SRE of the Group are as follows:
2015 2014
As al 1 Janusry 314 245
Current sendos cosl 25 19
Inferest cost 13 12
Rermeasureiment of defined benefit plan 54 53
Payments I_T.l:ldu {19 ‘_1_t?_
As al 31 December 399 314
hlerest cost was recognised In staff costs, see Nole 8.
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() Supplementary retirement benefits (“SRB") (continued)
{iii) Principal actuarial assumptions of the Group are as follow:
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31 December 31 Decembs

2015 2014

Dlscount rata 3.00% 4.30%
Medical cost trand rate 6.000% G.00%
Soveragge expected fulure Betinme 2320 19.47

(v} Sensitivity analysis:

Reasonably possibée changes al the year end 1o ome of the relevant actuarkal assumplions,
helding other assumplion constant, would have aftected the defined benefit cbligation by the

armounts: shown Dalow,

31 Docember 2015

Increase Decresase

Discount rata (1% mavement) (B0 114

Medical cost trend rate (1% movement) Gtk (i
31 December 2014

Increase Decrease

Discound rate (1% movement) (5 83

Medical cost rand rate (1% movament) G L]

Although the analyss doos not lake account of the full dsiribution of cash flows expected
uncler the plans, it does provide an approdmation of the sensithity of the assumptions shown.

Excapl as menlioned in Mote (3} and Note (b)) above, the Group has ne significant respongbilities to pay

ary other retiverment benefits Lo refired ermployvess.

36 Taxes payable

31 December . 31 December

2015 2014

Incormm Lo payabde 4,527 1,970
Business tax and srcharges payabile 1,702 1,723
Othens 163 1365
Total 6,35 38529
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37 Interests payable
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31 December 31 December
2GS 2014
Deposits from customens 25,854 25,630
Debit securities issued 1,722 1.704
Oithers 3,036 2607
Total 30,612 49,950
38 Debt securities issued

31 Decamber 31 December
Hota 2015 2014
Subordinated debts issued 3a) 6,700 6,700
Financial bonds Issuad 38 32,800 30,000
Ter-two capital boneds A8 16,200 16,200
Inferbank deposits issued 38id) 146,531 52 5051
Cerliicates of deposils ssued 8] 7530 4185
Tatal 210,061 I GTE

{a) Subordinated debts issued
a1 Decemiber 31 December
Mote 2015 2014
Subordinated fixed rate debds maturing in June 2027 (1] 6,700 6,700
Total 6,700 6,700

Hiato

in o] e suborinated dadils of RMES T biicn with & darm of ffioen pers was ssued of 7 June 20012 The coupon
rate £ 5.25% or annum. Th Goup hes an oplcn o mdeem e dobés on § Jurss 2022 at e Sormnal amount

= b gt 31 Doecarnbar 2015, Fe faf vales of the ol subomiinated debl secordos Bued armounts o RAMBT, 142 milion 3

Dichenber 3014 RMES 556 milicn)
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38 Debt securities issued (continued)

(B} Financial bonds issued
31 December. 31 December

Mot 2M5 2014
Financial fied rate bonds maluring in March 2017 i 213,000_ 20,000
Finarcial floating rate bonds maturing in March 2007 {if} 10,000 10,000
Financial fixed rate bonds maluring in Jume 2018 i} 2800 -
Total e B00 30,000

Node:

] Ficsgl rafe firancal bonds of AMEE) biion with 8 e of fve pears wes ssuad on 28 Mach 2002, Tha coupon mis
E 4.20% par anram

[ Feathg mle frencal bonds of AVET0 biion with & term of fve years was Bsued on 28 March 2012 The bonds boar
infanust af o foaling e besed o the PBOC'S ong-year bme oeccsis fele ol 8 mange of 0.95%

() Foeed rate francil bonds of AMEZS hillan, of which RMETO0 miicer was Boeld by ha Bank with & ferm of fve peas
was Exied on 18 June 2075 by the Group's subsoiary, Evwbopld Fnonciel Loasng T coupon mly & 4.00% per

BV,

) As'al Sl Decerber 2075, (ha far vilie of ihe folal fnancis! bond ssusd amounts fo AMEE2.559 miion by the Grogs
37 Decamber 2014: AVEZ.602 miion]

(c) Tier-two capital bonds

i}  Fxed rate ter-two capllal bonds of AMBA16.2 billcn with a term of ten years were ksued on
9 June 2014, The coupon rate is 6.20% per annum. The Group has an option [o redeem the
bonds on 10 June 20109 al the nominal amount.

il As at 31 Decomber 2015, Ihe far vabue of the total lier 2 capital bonds issued amounts lo
RMETT 436 milion (31 December 2014: RMB16,835 milion),

cfy Interbank deposits issued

As at 31 Decembes 2015, 107 interbark deposits (31 December 2014: 18) were issued by the
Group ardd measired al amcflised cost. The far value of the interbank deposils Issued mentioned
above approsimates 10 RMB146.688 milion (31 Decanber 2014: RMB3S2 548 milon).

(g) Certificates of deposits issued

The cortilicates of deposits were issused by the Bank's Hong Kong branch and measurad al
amortisod cost, The fair value of the conificales of deposils issued mentioned above approximates
o Whwir caarying amount.
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31 December 31 December

Note 215 2014

Fnance leages payabie 3,366 2,719
Defermed ncome 2,083 2,007
Payrent and oollection dearance acoounts 1,743 787
Provigions Sa) 446 Az4
Dormant accounts 205 a7
Divicloryd payabde 28 28
Others 18 6,261
Total 15,063 12 543

fa) Provisions

fsoat 31 December 2015, the acouals of litigation losses estimated by the Group based on the
slalus of cutstanding Bigation cases and the probabity of sses amounted to RMBTT million (31

Decarmbar 2004: BMB1T million).

40 Share capital

The Bank's shareholding structure as al the end of the vear i as icllows:

2NE 2014

Arncunt Arnount

Orclinary shares listed in Maindand China (A share) 39,810 39.810
Orclirary shares listed in Hong Kong (H sharg) 5,869 6,550
Total 46,6579 46,679

The H shares rank par passu i all respects with the A shares including the rght 1o receive diidends
and dEstributions declared.
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41 Other equity instrument
{a) Preference shares at the end of the period

|55t Divichend Issue frmillicn Mumber of Conversion

date rate price shares}  share Issued condition
RME milon

N 56519 5.30% 100RMB/shars 200 20,000 Mandatory

Lexss: Issuing costs {35

Book vahue 15,965

(B) Main Clauses

{i} Dividend
Fixad rate for the first 5 years after issuance,

Dividend resel every 5 years thereafter to the sum of the benchmark rate and the fixed
spread,

The fieed spread equaks to the spread between the dhvidend rate al the time of Esuance
and the benchmark rate. The fixed spread will remain unchanged  throughaowd the temmn of e
preference shaes.

{lij Conditions to distribution of dividends
The Greap could pay dividends while he Grougp still has dstributabde afler-tax profit aller
miakirg g previols yeasrs' losses, conlibuting to Ihe stalulory reserve and making  general

provdsions, and the CGiroup's capilal adequacy ralio meeats reguiatony reguirements. The Group
may alect o cancal any dividend, bul such cancellation will requira a shareholder’'s resclution

lo ba pagsed.

(i} Dividend stopper
Il the Group cances all of part of he dvidends 1o the preference shareholders, the Group
shal not make any dividend distribution to ordineny shareholders belore the Group pays the
cividends for the current dividend paiod o the preference shareholders in Ll

{iv) Order of distribution and liquidation method

The preference sharabolders wil be subordinated (o the depositors, ordinary creditors, holders
ol subordnated debt and holders of lier-two capilal bonds, bul will be senior Lo the ordinary
sharahicdars
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41 Other equity instrument (continuecd)

(o) Main Clauses (continued)

v

{vi)

Mandatory conversion trigger events

Upon the ocourrence of an Additional Tier-cne Capital Trigger Event (Core Tier-one Capital
Adequacy Ratio of the Group faling fo 5.125% o below), the Group: shall have the righl
to comwert all of parl of the preference shares inlo A shares, in order (o restore the Core
Tier-one Capltal Adequacy Ratlo of the Group to above 5.125%;  preference shares were
corpverted to A shares, It could ot be comvested to prefarence shaves again:

Upan the ocourrence of a MNon-Viability Trigger Event (Earfier of the two situations: (1) CBRC
has determined that the Group would becorme non-viable if there s no conwersion of wrile-
dovwn ol capital; of (@) the rdevant authorlkes have detemined thal a public sector gection
of capital or equivalon! suppont s necessary, withoul which the Group would become non-
viabile), the Group shall have the right 1o corwent all preference shares into A shares.

Redamption

Subject 1o the price approval of the CBRC and the satisfaction of the relavant requirements,
the Group shall have the right to redesm all or part of the preference shares on any
redeemabde day (the paymenl date lor dividends of the preference shares each year) alter
the fifth year following tha completion date of the lssuance of the preference shares, The
specific commencement date of the redernplion period shall be determined by the Board
in B with market conditions, subject lo aullvrisation al a shareholders’ general mesating
(the authorisation can be further delegated). The redemplion period for the prelerence
ghares shall commence on such commencement date of the redemption period and end
on the completion date of the redemplion of conversion of all the preference shares, Whese
reclermption Is in part, the preference shares shall be edesmned based on the same propoition
andl condilions. Preference shares shall be redeermed In cash. The redemplion price shall be
the par value plus the dividend declared bul unpald for the rdevant perod.

(¢} Changes in preference shares outstanding

Outstanding Asal  Addbiors for tha wear  Decreases fof the year A Al
Firsncial 1 Jarosry Camying Fervouni Camying 31 Db
Irelruments e | ] (rrilicn]) Wl Amior 25
Pralerence shares - 18,5965 200 - - 19,865
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41 Other equity instrument (contiued)

(d} Interests attributable to equity instruments’ holders
Equity instrument

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
1. Total equity atibutable 1o equity shamholders of the Bank 2E3403 178,475
{1}  Ecuaty atiribadabde to ordinary equty holders of 203,524 178,975
fiwe Eank:
{#}  Equity attributabde to preference shares holders of 19,965
e Bark
2. Tolal equity atbibadable to non-conticliing interasts 554 508
{1} Ecuity attritadable to non-controlling interests of H54 508
ordinery shares
#}  Ecuity atlribadabls (o non-confrolling interests of - -
olher equily instrument
42 Capital reserve
31 December 31 Decermnix=r
205 2014
Share premium 33,365 33,365
Fair value changes on avalable-lor-salks financial assets 3,082 219
Rermessuranent of defined benalil plan f51) a3
Exchange differences on lransaction of fineandal stalements
of overseas subsidianies 3 -
Total 37,204 33,587

43 Surplus reserve and general reserve

(a) Surplus reserve

The suplus reserve al the end of the year represented slahutory surplus reserve fund, The Bank is
recpredd o appropdiate 10% of its et profit, after making good palor year's accumulated loss, 1o
statutory surphus resansa iund until the reserve fund balance eaches 50% of ils registered capital,

(b} General reserve

The Bank is required, in princple, to sl aside a gereral reserve, through appeopriation of proit
after 1ax, with an amount of not lower than 1.5% of the ending balance of its gross risk-bearing
assels,
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44 Appropriation of profits

{a)

o)

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

In accordance with the resolution of the Bank's board of directors mesting on 29 March 2016, the
proposed profil appropsiations for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:

= Appropaiate RMEZ 94 million (10% of the nel profit of the bank) 10 SUpis mesone;

= Appeopriate RMBE,368 million to general reserve; and

- Declare cash dividends to al shareholders of RMBE.869 milion representing RMB1.90 per 10

shares before tax

The profit appropriation resclution mentioned above has yet to be approved by lhe Bank's

shareholders,

AL e Annual General Meeting of sharcholders badd on 27 May 2015, the shareholders  approved

the Following profil appropeations for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2014:

- Appopaiate AMBZ 851 million (10% of the nel profit of the bank) o SUIpiLS resere;

Appropaiate RMEA 042 million to general reserve; and

- Declare cash dividends to al shareholders of RMBS.682 millon representing RMB1.86 per 10

shares belore tax

45 Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities

)

206

Structured enlities sponsored by third party instiluions in which the Group holds an intesest:

The types of structured entities that the Group does nol consolidate but in which it holds an
nterest molude entities set up for wealth management products ssued by othor financial institudions
and beneficial interes! transter plans (“Assel management plansT, avallabde-for-sale und westments
and assl-backed secumities. The natire and puipose of these structiured enfities are (o genorate
fees rom managng assets on bohal of third party imestors. These vahicles are linanced thrcugh

e isste of units to ivestons.

The following table sets out an analysis of the carrying amounts and maximum exposure of
interests hald by the Group in unconsolidated structured entities as at 31 Decembar 20015

21 December 2015

31 December 2014

Camying Madimuam Camying Maudrmum
LNt EXpOSLE amoant ENOSLER
[Debt securlies dassified as recelvables A SEd 4T 299,71 283,701
HAvattable-tor-sale fund investments 28200 28,200 -
Azzet-backed secunites 13,385 12,385
Total B ) 564,012 294,71 205,701
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45 Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities (continued

Y Struclured entities sponsored by the Groug which the Group <Joes ot consolidate bl holds an
nlesest In:

The bypes of unconsclidated structured entities sponsored by the Group include non-principal
quarantesd waalth management preducts. The nalure and purpose of these struciured endilies
are o generala fees from managing assets on behall of Fwestars. These structured enlilies are
financed through the kssue of unils to investors. Interest beld by the Group includes investments
in unils lssued by these structured enfities and fees charged by providing management sandces.
As al 31 Decermnber 2015, the camying amounts of the investmants in the notes issued by these
structured entities and managemsnl fee receivabdes being recognized are nol material in the
staterment of finandal positions.

Az at 31 December 2015, the amount of assefs held by the unconsolidated non-principal
guaranteed weallh management products, which are sponscred by the Group, B RMBETE 855
rrillice (31 Decemnber 2014: RMBE24 457 millice),

g} Unconsolicated struciure entiies sponsored by the Group during the year which the Group does
nat have an interest in as at 31 Decemier 20015,

The agoregated amound of the non-prindpal guarantesd weallh management products sponsorecd
and issied by the Group after 1 January 20105 but matured before 31 December 2015 amaounted
to RMBS43,077 milion (31 Decernber 2014, RMEBAG 043 milion),

(c  The amount of fee and commission incoma recebved from the sbove mentioned structured entilies
by the Group amountad to BMET 253 million (2014: BMEBS 349 million).

46 Transferred financial assets

The Grougp enbers inlo fransadions in the nommal course of business by which it transfers  recognisocd
financial assets to third parties or to structured entities. In some cases where these ransfers may
ghve tige to Ll of partial defecognition of the fnandal assels concamed in accordance with IFRSs.
other cases whore the transfered assets do not quality lor derecognition as the Group has retained
substantialy all the risks and rewards of these assels, the Group conlinued to recognise the transfemed
assels,

Tha Group enters inlo credit assets transier fransactions in the normal course of business by which it
ransfers credl assets (o structlured entities which sad trust benefil interests 1o investors.

Az the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership of
the financiad assal and I has relained contral on them, these financial assels are recognised on the
sialerment of ancid position 1o the exdent of the Goup's continung invalvement, The exdent of the
Group's confirdng invotvemend is the extent o which the Group is exposed 1o changes in the value of
the transiemed assets. As al 31 December 2015, loans with an arginal camying amount of RMEBS, 204
milon (31 Docember 2004: nil) had been ransfemed by e Group under amangements inowhich the
Group retains a continuing nvolvament in such assets in the foom of subordinated franches. As at 31
Decomber 2015, the canying amount of assols thal the Grougp confinues [0 recognise amasunts 1o
RMESZ GE2 milion (31 Decermber 2044 nif).
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47 Capital management

The Group's capital management includes capital adequacy ratic managemean!, capital financing
managemen and econcmic capital managenent, of wiich the primary focus §s on capital adequacy ratio
ranagament, The Group calculates the capltal adeduacy rallo in acoordanos with quichsines issued by
the CBRC. The capital of the Group is divided into core tier one capital, other core tier one capital and
lier bwo capila,

Capital adequacy ralio management is the key In capital management. The capital adequacy ratio
reflects the soundness of the Group's operations and risk managemant capabilities, The main oljective
in capital adequacy ralic management is 1o sel an optimal capital adeguacy ratio thal mests the
requialory requiremnents by benchimarking against the capital adequacy ratio level of leading global banks
with reference to its own business environment and condlitions.

The Group considers its stralegic development plans, business expansion plans and risk variables when
conducling scenarie analysis and stress testing and executing other measures (o forecast, plan and
manage its capital adequacy ratio. The recuired information s fled with the CBRC by the Group semi-

anruslly and quartaly.

Tha Grougp computed s capital adequacy ratios i acoordance with “Requiation Gowerning Capital of
Commerclal Banks {prodsional)” and other relevant reguiations promudgated by the CBRC.

The CBRC requires commercial banks to meet the requirements of capifal adequacy ratios by the
el of 2018 In accordance with “Regquiation Goveming Gapital of Commercial Banks (provisional)”. For
syslemically importanl banks, each bank is required to maintain the core lier-one capilal adequacy
ratio, lier-one. capital adequacy ratic and capital adequacy raic of at least 8.50%, 9.50% and 11.50%,
respaciively, For non-systemically important banks, the mirsmum ratios for core lier-one capila adequacy
ratio, lier-one capital adequacy ratic and capilal adecuacy ratic are 7.50%, &.50% and 10.50%,
respectively. In addition, thosae individual banking subsidiasies o branches incomperated outside Mainkand

China are also directly requiated and supendsed by thar respective local banking superviscrs. There are
certain differences in the capital adecuacy requiraments of different coundries,

The on-balance sheet risk-weighted assets are measured using different risk weights, which are
determined accorcing 1o the caedl, rmarkel and ol dsks associaled with each assel and counterparty,
faking inlo account any digibée collalerals of guarantees. Simiar reatment |5 adopted for off-baktance
shoot exposire, with adustiments made to rellect the mome contingent nature of any potential losses,
The counterparly crechl risk-welghted assets o over-lhe-counter (OTC) dervatives are the strmimation
of defaut risk-weighled assets and crodit value adgustrment (CVA). Market risk-weighlod assels e
calculated wsing the slanclardised approach. Operational risk-weighted assels are calculated using basic
indicator approach,

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of the Group llustrated balow are computed based
on the Group’s statutory financial staterments prepared in accordance with PRC GAAF. During the yaar,
the Group has compdied n full with all &5 externally imposed capilal requiremeants.
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47 Capital management (confinued)

The Group calculales the capital adequacy ratios in accordance with “RFeguiation Governing Capital of
Commmercial Banks (prossionall™ and relevant requiraments. promudgated by the CBRC.

31 Decomber A1 Decorbss

2015 2014
Total core tier-one capital 20,550 175,356
Share capital 45579 46,675
Cualifying potion of capital reserve 37 294 33,587
Surplus resene 14,564 12,060
General reserve 40271 33,0904
Retaired earings 64,320 h2 TH6
Cualifying portions of no-controlling interests 422 381
Core tier-one capital deductions 2,115 {2,085)
Goodwlll (1:281) (1.281)
Chhiar intangible assets cther than landd use ght (E34) (B
Net core tier-one capital 201 835 177271
Other tier one capital 19,602 10
Aclchticnal ties-one capital nstruments 19,965
Cualifying portions of non-controling interests 27 10
Tier-one capital net i on 177,281
Tier two capital 37655 35,438
Cualtying porfions of fier-two capital
nstruments issued and share premium 22,000 22,900
Surplus provision for loan impaimment 14,680 12,500
Cuualifing portions of non-conlroling interests i a8
Met capital base 250 482 22,719
Total risk weighted assets 2185516 1,808,231
Core tier one capital adequacy ratio 9,24 % 9.34%
Tier one capital adequacy ratic 10.15% 0.34%
Capital adequacy ratio 1187 % 11.21%
209
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31 December 31 Decembet

2ms 2014

Caszh and cash equivalnts as al 31 Decemiber 121,964 48,001
L_ng_ﬂasl1 arwd casﬂ_u_uiv:imts a5 al 1 Janiary G8 001 1 !_i:}_.ﬁ_?j__
Mel mcressafdecreass) in cash and cash equivalents 23,063 (18,820

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Cash on hand 6,504 1312
Deposits with the central bank 27,653 35,306
Deposits with banks and ofher financial institutions 30,642 FO616
Facerments with banks and cther financial Irstitutions BT ATS 25767
Total 121,064 8,001

49 Related party relationships and transactions
(a) China Everbright Group Ltd.

The transadlions and balances with China Everbyight Group Litd. and its afflistes are summarisad in

Meter AN,
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49 Related party relationships and transactions (cominued)

(b} Transactions between the Group and other related parties

{ii Other related parties information
Obher related parties having transactions with the Group in 2014 and 200 5:

Related party Relationship with the Group
Afiliated companies
- China Ewesbright Limited Shareholder, affiliate of China Everbeight
Group Liel,
- Everbright Securitbes Co., Lid. Adffiate of China Evetbright Group Lid.
(Everbaight Secirities”)
- China Bvesbright Group Linnited Adffisle of Chinga Everbright Group Lid.
~ China Evesbright Intemational Limited Affiiate of China Everbright Group Ltd.
China Everbright Industry (Group) Co,LTd Adfliate of China Everbright Group Lid.
Shanghal Everbeight Corvention and Adiliate of China Everbright Group Ltd.
Exhibition Centre Limited
= China Evarbright rwestrment And Adfliate of Chinga Everbright Group Lid.
Assats Managenent Co Lid,
- Everbright Real Estate Go,, Lid.. Adftiate of Ching Everbright Group Lid,
- Evarbright Financial Holding Asset Alfiate of China Everbright Group Lid,
Menagement Co., Lid.
- Sun Life Everbaight Life Insurance Co., Lid. Adifiate of China Everbright Group Litd.
- China Evesbyrighl Xnglong Tnst Co., Lid, Adiliate of China Everbright Group Lid.
- Everbright Pramegica Fund Management Adiliate of China Everbright Group Lid,
Ca., L,
- Everbright Futures Co., Lid, Affliate of China Everbright Group Lid,
- Everbright Securities Asset Management Alffiate of China Everbright Group Lid.,
v, Ll
- Everbright Fortune Irmesbment Co,, Lic, Adfliate of China Everbright Group Lid.
~ Everbirighl Capital vastment Managerment Affliate of China Evarbiight Group Lid,
Cor., L,
— Everbright Happy Lite Intemational Leasing  Affliate of China Everbright Group Ltd,
Ca., Lid,
- Evarbright Guanga westment Managerment Adfliate of China Everbright Group Lid,
Con Lk
- Sun Life Everbright Asset Managomment Adftiate of China Everbright Group Lid,
Ca., Lid.
~ Ewarbuight Yo Indemsst Co,Ltd Adfliate of China Everbright Group Lid,
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49 Related party relationships and transactions (confinued

(o) Transactions between the Group and other related parties wontinued)
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Related party

iy Other related parties information (continuac)

Redationship with the Group
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Other related parties

- China Fe Asset Management Company, Lid

Comimon key management

- Chira Shipping (Group) Company

Cofmmon Key management

- Sharniai Bamgm Saltware Go, L
- BAIC Motor Corporation, Lid,

Comraman Key managemenl
Common key rmanagement

- Shanghai Blectric Group Company Linmited

Comeman Key manadgemenl

- China Traditional Chinese Medidne Co, Limited

Comemon Key managerment

- Vantone Holdings Co., Lid

= Beiiing Science and Technology Park
Construction (groups) Co, Ltd

Ciormeman Key managormanl

Common key management '

- Haltong Securities Company Limited

Common key management

- China UnionPay Co,, Lid,

Cormmon key management

- Crbent Securities Comparny Limited

Cormimon key managerment

- Sharnghai 1CY New Energy Venhare Capital

Co, Ld,

"~ China Pacific Property Insurance Co., Lid,

Common key management

China Pacific Lie Ineurance Co., Lid.

Comimon Key managemenl

- Hrst-iust Fund Managemant Co., Lid

Ciomamon key managemen

- Shanghai Benermsss Phanmacoulical Coporation
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49 Related party relationships and transactions (continud

mwummmwmmmmmmwm

Teareactlons with related paties
for the year ended 31
Decambar 2015;

Inlerest mcome

Imerest expensa

Baances with related parfies a5
al 31 December 15

Financiz assats at fair walue
Ihroagh profit or loss

Financial assets held under
e agresments

Interes1 recaivable

Loans and advances o customerns

Avalabia-for-sale francial Assels

Held-10-mmaturify imestments

Debt securites classliied as
racanables

Othar aseats

'D&pmhfm buwﬁa'lduﬂnr

© Signiicant off-balance sheet items
with related parfies as & 31
December 2015
Guarantes granted (Hote)
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49 Related party relationships and transactions (continued

(o) Transactions between the Group and other related parties wontinued)

(i} Related party transactions (continued)

The Growup's materal transactions and balances with China Everbright Group Lid.and the
above related parties during the reporting period are summanised as follows: (continued)

China China
Everbright Everbright Affillated
{Group Limted Companies Chers Total
{Mate 45(6K
Trarmactions with melalad panies
for the year andad 31
December 2014,
Ireres] ncome B = 21 A 20
Inferes! expernse {11 - (104 (BB §1.096)
Balances wilh relasted parlies &
al 31 Decamber 2014
Financial assets held under
resake agreemeants - - ey 1 f3|
Inleres! recaivable - - g 15 24
Loans and acdvances o customearns - - o2 - il
Hakd-to-rnaturity imvastmants - - - 800 GO0
Debt secuies classiled ag
receiables - - BOES2 - BOES2
Cilher assets - - 28 2
= - B1,653 Bad B2.507
Deposls hom banks and olher
financial instifutions - = 10,171 54 10,595
Deposits from customeans 21 - 31,148 17,082 48,2
Inferes! payabie - - 24 364 388
Hher kabililes - - 45 - 45
M 41,388 17,760 55,169
Shepilicant off-batance shestl jlems
wilh related partkes 25 al 31
Decembar 2014;
Gusrantes granted (Mote) 180 z = £ 180

RMES million was pald to China Everbaight Group Lidl's aff@abes as underwriling commission
for the H share over-allotrment and ter two capltal bonds Issuance by the year ended 31
December 2014,

Molg: As 8 F1 Decombor 2075, the Bank has puarsntes ablgation: abding fo the Ching Ewebvigh! Gaoup LR
culstandig inforet ohigation of RMETED milion (31 Decamdbor 2014- RMETED milion) dus by one of iha slale:
owmed ConynETEl DandE.
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49 Related party relationships and transactions jcontinued
{c) China Investment Corporation/Huijin Investment Ltd. and its affiliates

Approvad by the Stale Coundl of the PRC, China Investment Corporation (*CIC7) was estabiished
on 20 September 2007 with a registerad capital of USD 200 billion. Cendral Huiin Investment Lid.,
{"Hugn?) ks 8 wholly oaned subsidiary of CIC and exerdses 85 rights and obligaticns as an inveslor
on behall of CIC,

Huijin was incorporated as a wholly state-owned investment company on 16 December 2003
It was registerad in Belng with a reglstered capltal of RMBBE2S8 200 milllon, Apart from eduity
Inwestments as authorised by the State Councll of the PRC, it does nol engage In any other
cornmercial operations.

The Group's transacions with CIC, Huljn and its affliates malnly incluce deposit taking, parchase
and sabe of debl securities, money market transactions and Inter-bank clearing. These transactions
are priced based on market prices and conducted under normal commercial terms.

The Group has issued subordnated debts, financial bonds and cotificates of deposits which aie
bearer Bonds tracdable in the secondary market. Accordingly, the Group has no information in
respect of the anount of the debis held by these banks and ofther finandcial institutions a5 al the
and of the year,

The Group's material transactions and balances with CIC, Huijin and its affiiates during tha
reporting peniod are sumimanised as folows:

2015 2014
Interest income 4,875 5,913
Interes! axpense {5,261) {E5, 3500
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49 Related party relationships and transactions (confinued)

fc) China Investment Corporation/Huijin Investment Ltd. and its affiliates ontinued

31 December 31 Decembet

2015 2014
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 5,049 16,887
Macements wilth banks and other financial institulions 31,266 F2 133
Financial assets at fair value through profit o loss 380 ]
Pagitive falr valie of doeivalives pop 155
Financial assets beld uncer resale agreaments 7152 2,7
Intarest receivakie 2A5T 2,087
Loans and advances o customers 1,631 1,500
Avallable-tor-sale financial assets 7588 6,037
Hedd-to-raturity investrments 12,645 16,027
Debt securities dassified as receivables 122,095 3723
Deposits from banks and ofher financial instibdions 135,682 118,600
Flacaments from banks and other finandal instibdions 17,6850 21,263
Meqative falr value of derivatives 208 115
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 36,628 FA5TE
Deposits from customers 28,637 19,803
Irtestest payakle 1,178 1,208
Ol Habillilies - 30

(d) Transactions with other PRC state-owned entities

216

The Group oparates in an economic regime currently predominated by entities direclly o indirectly
owned by the PRC govemment theough its govermnment authorities, agendies, affiliations and other
organisations (“state-cwned entities™). Transactions with other state-cwned entities inchude but are
el lirmited to: lending and deposit Taldng; taking and placing of inter-bank balances; entrusted
lerding and olbwr custody services; insurance and securities agency, and other intermadiary
services; sale, purchase, underwriting and redemplion of bonds issued by other state-owned
enlilies; purchage, sale anc leases of properly and olber assels; and rendeing and receiving of
ulilities and other senvices,

These ransactions are conductad in the ordinary course of (he Group's barkdng business on lemms
gmilar o those thal would have been entered inle with non-stale-cwned entities. The Group's
pricing strategy and approval processas for major products and senvices, such as loans, deposits
and commmission Incorme, do not depend on whether o ol the customaers ane state-owned entities.
Having considered the substance of [he refationships, the Group BB of the opinfon thal none of
these ransactions are matarial related parly ransactions that requine separate dsdosure,
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49 Related party relationships and transactions (continued

(e) Key management personnel
31 December . 31 Decembes

25 2014

FIME'000 FEMEL T

Femurmration 21,904 23,454
Ratirerment benefits 1154 1,115
— Basic social pension nsuranoce 60 G149

The todal compensation packages for senlor managermnent of the Group for the vear ended 31
Decarmnber 2015 hava et been finalised i accordance with the requlations of he PRC relevant
authcaities, The remumeration nof yel accawed s nol epected o have a ggnificant impact on the
Group's and the Bark's 2015 financial statements.

(i Lecans and advances to directors, supervisors, officers or their close
relatives

Loans and advances to directors, supervisors, officers or thelr close relatives of the Group
disclosed pursuant 1o sedtion 78 of Schadide 11 1o the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622}, wilh reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance  (Cap.
32, are as follows:

3 Decembor 31 Decernix

2015 2014
FIME Q00 RMEB 000
Agoregate armount of relevant loans culstanding as
al he year end 17,52 3712
Madimum aggregate amount of relevant loans cutstanding
chring the yesr 21,045 8,802
217
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31 Decamber. 31 Decembe
Mole 2015 2014
Assets
Cash and deposits with the cenitral bank d26.514 and 036
Deposits with barks and other finandal institutions 85,628 40,063
Facements with banks and other finandal institutions 134,861 f32 333
Finarxial assats at fa value thiough profit o loss 58637 4377
Pogilive fair value of derfvalives 1,625 1,082
Finandal assets held undar resale agreements 153,045 285,682
Interests recaatle 18,334 14,474
Loars and advances to customers 1,474,494 1,270,666
Aallable-for-sale fnandal assets 222 5T 138,550
Huted-torrraturity irvestments 153012 111 697
et securities classified a8 receiables 523,427 AE3.0NM
Irvestiments in subsdaries 25 3,369 2875
Fixed assats 12,613 13,028
Goodhdl 1281 1,281
Defered tax assels 3,765 2942
Ciher assels 12,553 B274
Total assets 313315 27116281
Liabilities and equity
3 Decemiber . 31 Decoimiber
Mote G 2014
Liabilities
Due to the central bank 14,800 3000
Deposits from banks and ofher fnancial institutions 543,300 508,445
Placames from barks and otfwr fnansal irstilulions 33,431 g e
Megative fair value of daivaltives 1,991 781
Financial assets sold under reparchase agresments DBATS 51,767
Deaposits from customess 1,842 919 1,784 273
Accrued stalf costs 11,119 9,601
Tawes payable 6,240 3,742
Interests payatda 30,418 29,747
Debis secrilies ssued 207,261 BOGTE
Othwer Tkalithes 10,585 B804
Total liabilities 2910337 2,538,428
Equity .
Share capital 40 46,679 A5 679
CHher ecquity instrument 15,965 =
Capital reserve ar.2as F3.587
Surplus resenve 14,964 12,050
General resene 40,271
Ratained sarnings G2 514
Total equity 2214978
Total liabilities and equity 132,315 2,716,281

Approved and autharised for kssue by the board of direclors on 20 March 2016.

TANG Shuangning
Chalrman of e Board of

Directors,
Mo executive Cirector
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ZHANG Jirliang
President
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51 Segment reporting

The Grougr manages its business by business nes and geographical areas. Consistent with the way
im which informaticon is reported intemally o the Group's most senbor execulive management for the
puiposes of resolrcs allocalion and performance assesament, the Grodp delines reporting segments
based on The olowing operating segments:

Corporate banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of inancial products and senices 1o coporalions,
gevernment agancies and financlal instifuions. These products and sendees indude comporate koans and
advances, trade financing and deposil taking activities, agency seroes, cash management sendoes,
financial consulting and adviscry services, remiltance and seltlernent senices, cuslody sendces, and
guarantes services.

Retail banking

This segment repgesents the provision of a ange o financial products and services 10 retall customerns.
Thase products and senvices inchide parsonal loans and deposit laking adivities, bank card business,
personal wealth management services, remittance senvices, and securiies agency services,

Treasury business

This seqgment covers the Group's reasury operations. The treasury business enters Into inter-bank
money market transactions, repurchases transactions and investments. | also rades in debt securities,
derivatives and lorelgn cmrency trading for its own accounts. The breasury segment also covers
custommer-chiven derfvatives and foreign currancy Irading, as well as managament of the Group's overall
lepiclity position, inciuding the issuance of subordinaled debis.

Others

These represent equity investiments and related income.

Measurement of segment assels and liabilities and of segment income, expenses and resulls is based
on the Group's accounting polides.

Intamal charges and transfer prices are determined with reference to market rates and have been
reflected in the perfomance of each segment. nlerest income and expense eamed rom third parties
are referred to as “external mel interest incomafexpense”. MNal interest income and expense arising
from infemal charges and fransler pricing adiustments are referred te as Sintemal net interest inconmwe/
BNPTISE

Segment incoms, expenses, assals and labilities inchude iterms directly atlributabde 1o a segment as well
as those thal can be alocated on a reasonable basis. Segment income, expenses, assets and liabilities
are determined belore inra-group balances and inlra-group Iransactions are diminated as pal of the
conscliciation process. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incumed o acoue fixed assols,
intangible assals and otber long-term assals.
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51 Segment reporting continued)
fa) Segment results, assets and liabilities

Year ended 31 December 2015

Corporate Retail Treasury
banking Bankingg bsiness s Tatal
Cyparaling ncome
Extamal net interest income 30,625 18,799 17,035 - B5450
Inferna net interest income’
{expense) 18,1358 (5,083 (12,055 = =
Mat intarest income 48,7653 12,716 4,980 - 5459
Met fee and commission
IFHEHTHE 4,002 21,233 166 - 26,301
Mt trackg gairs - - 335 - 335
Divicharid incomme - - - 4 4
Mal gainsilosses) asing
frowm inwestmenl socrilios 11 9 (N - 13
el foreign exchangea
gansilosses) (120 (3] 87 - (7}
Othr operating Pcomes 102 35 1 185 a4
Operating Income 53,608 33,855 5062 185 3,364
Operating expenses {1E.197} {15,454) {524 {B4) (32, 354)
Oypaaraling peolil bafora
irvrrTend 37.AB1 18,451 4,933 125 61,010
Ipaimment losses on assals (16,168 {5,308 (178 ~ (21,652
Frofit bedore tax 21293 13,182 4,758 125 20,358
Segment assats 2046118 GOT, 065 480,555 28,768 3,162,506
Segment labilites 2,372 542 AG5 8IS 106,002 M6 2043635
Ciiher segrient indormrmtion
- Degweciation and amortisalion (1,025 {1,066 {20 - 205
— Capital expendiure 871 B4 if - 1,782
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51 Segment reporting (contimed
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued

Year ended 31 December 2014

Corpogale Retail Treasury
barking Laridng busness Cilhers Tedal
Operaling nooim
Extemal net interes! incomsa 26,487 16,230 14,947 = 58,258
Internal net interest income’
{expense) 14,544 4.515 (10,4759 = -
Met inferest income 41,476 12315 4,468 - 58,255
Met tee and commission
[atee it 5,621 13,516 20 - 19,157
Med tradcng gednes - 258 1,041 - 1,279
Dhvickened income - - - 3 3
Mal gairsilossas) arising
fram Bwestiment seourilies 12 - {111 - [
Mal forsign exchange
flosas)/ s {44} 1 {167) - (#1
Oither operating ircoms 134 b - 154 3H2
Operating inoome 47,199 26,144 R | 197 8771
Opesating expenses {16,356} (12,0360 {E3E) (7E) (30L008)
Cperaling peolit belora
irpainTent 30,843 13,206 4,563 121 48,763
Impaimen] losses on assals (7 2BE) (2.597% BR - {10,204
Profit before tax 23,555 0227 4,651 121 38,554
Segment assets 1,727,560 R 461,653 36 2732695
Segrment labilities 1948717 432 748 175,014 120 2,557,499
Cher sagment infoomation
= Depraciation anc amestisaticon {1,060 (ERHE) (14 - {1.941)
— Capital expendlture 1,518 1.291 28 5 2,837
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51 Segment reporting iconiinsed
fa) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Recondliation belweesn sagment assets, liabillies and tolal assetls and lodal labilities:

31 Dacember 31 Decamber

Mide 2015 2014

Sagment assels 3162 506 2,732 6485
Geoochwill 27 1,281 1,281
Deferrac (ax assets 28 30823 3,034
Total assets 367,710 27355010
Sagment liabiities 2,543 635 2,557,459
_Dividend payables a0 __ 28
Total liabilities 2,943 663 2,557 527

(b} Geographical information

The Group operales principally in mainland China with branches located in 29 provinces,
autcnomous reglons, municipadties directly under the central govemment and Hong  Kong specia
administrative reglon, with subsidiares located in Wuhan city of Hubel Province, Shaoshan dty of
Hunan Province, Hual'an gty of Jiangsu Province and Hong Fong.

Mon-current assets Inchide fieed assels, land use rights and intangible assels. In presenting of
geographical information, non-cument assets are allocated based on geographical location of the
unclerhying assats. Operating income s allocaled based on the locations of the branches which
generate incomes. Gecgraphical areas, as defined Tor management reporling purposas, are as
follewnrs:

- “yanglze River Della” relers o the lolowing areas serviced by subsidiary and branchas of the
Bank: Huai'an Evergeight, Shanghai, Maning, Hangshou, Suzhou, MNingbo and Wisd;

- ‘Pearl River Delta” rafers o the following areas sarviced by branches of the Bank: Guangsou,
Sheruhen, Fushiou, Mamen and Halkou;

- ‘Bohd Bim” refers to the following areas semniced by branches of the Bank: Befing, Tianfin,
Shijlazhwang, Jinan, Gingdao and Yantal;

- “Central” refers to the lclowing areas senviced by subsidaries and branches of the Bank:
Everbright Financial Leasing and Shaoshan Evergrighl, Zhengzhou, Talyuan, Changsha,
Wuhan, Hefed and Manchang:

- Western® refers to he following areas sendced by branches of the Bank: X'an, Chengou,
Chongaing, Funming, Manning, Hobhot, UDumchil, Guivang, Lanzhou and Yinchuan;

222
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= "Motheasiem” refors to the lolowing areas senviced by brandwes of the Banke Hellongjiang,

Changchun, Shenyang and Daliaen;

- "Hong Kong® refers 1o lhe Hong Kong Special Administrative Region seniced by branch and
subsidary of the Bank; and

- “Head Office” refers to the headquiarter of the Group.

Operating income:
Yanilze Peard
Hover Hoirai Haad P Moeth Herg
[t Fim Cifca  Conlral Della  Westem  easiem Karig Total
ﬁ_ﬂ"" 14862 15200  2TESF 11625 o715 9244 4,714 427w
2014 12283 13243 2072 'R B429 848 3900 308 7AiM
Hon-cumerd Aszel )
Yergze Pear
Fier Bohal Head Fiver Horth Horg
[idta Fim Cifice  Central Delld  Westem  easiem Kirg Toled
3 Decernber 2015 2751 1,08 5171 1,24 124 1,108 1021 45 13502
3 Decernber 2014 2,018 1,068 5130 1,37 1,885 1,156 1,058 e 13565

@ Inchading Beed asseds: and nisnpde assels

52 Risk Management

Tha Group has exposure to the following risks rom #s use of financal instruments; cedil rsk, mearkel

risk, liquidily risk and operational sk,

Thiz note presents indormation abwoul the Group's exposire 10 each of the above fisks and thelr Sources,
and the Group's objectives, poicies and procedures for measwing and managing these isks.

The Group's risk management policies were established to identity and analyse the risks 1o which
the Group Is esposed, to set appropriate risk limits, and to design refevant intermnal conbrod policles
and systems for monitering risks and adhering to risk Bmils. Risk management polides and redevant
intermnal control systermns are reviewad requlartly to refiect changes in markel conditions and the Group's
activilies, The Intemal Aucit Department of the Group undertakes both regular and ad hoo reviews of the
compliance of intemal control Implementation with sk management policies.

328/372

223



CHIMA EVERBRIGHT BANK

EDINETOOOO

O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

Motes to the Financial Statements
Exprassad in milons of Renminkl, onless othenwine: Saled)

52 Risk Management (contired)

(a) Credit risk

224

Credll risk represants the polential loss thal may arise froan the fafare of a dablor or counterpany
lo meal s contractual cbigation o coammitment lo the Group. | aises pimmarly from credil and
bond imvestment pofticlios and guarantees granted,

Credit businass

The board of directors ks responsible o selling the Group’s sk management straleqgy and the
overall risk lderance level, The board also monliors the Group's risk management process and
requially assesses the Group's risk position and risk management stralegies, The board gives
advice on intemal controls redaling Lo risk managesnent. The responsible department for credst
risk managemen include the Risk Maragerment Department, Credit Approval Department, Cradil
management department, Special Assels Resolution Department and Legal and Compliance
Department, and the Group deployed Credt Officer 1o Retall Banking Department of Head offce,
e business live of mediom-sized and small enterprises, cedl card business, treasury business
and the firsl ter beanches. The Risk Management Depariment. s responsible Tor implermenting
the Groage's overall risk management system. Besides risk monitoring and contral, the Risk
Management Department i also responsitle for fonmmutating sk management policies. To engure
the indlependence of credit approval, the Credit Approval Department s independent from customer
refationship and product management departments. Credit management department ks responsible
for lending review and frequent monitering and management of credit portiolio trends and
developrments. Front line departments: such as the Cormporate Bankdng Department and the Retal
Barking Departrment camy oul credit businesses according to the Group's risk managemant policies
and procedures,

The Group continuously improves the infermal control mechantsm and strengthaens e manadgement
of the credil business, The Group has established comprehensive assessment and inguiry
mechanisms, asslgning the credit management accountabllity to the relevant departments and
ncdivichels,

For copomate and institutional businesses, the Group has established incustry-spadfic mits for
credil approval, It has pud in place dynamic monilering mechanism, wilh regular reporting of credi
suposires 1o the board. The Group's aredil risk managemen covers key operational phases,
nduding pre-lending evahestions, aedil approval, and post-ending manitoring, With respect Lo e
lending evaluations, the Group assesses customer credit ratings and parforms infegrated  analyss
on the risk and refuen of the loan, In the aect approval phase, all credt applications arg approved
by cesignated oredit officers. Durng the post-lending monitoring, the Group continually manitors
outstanding loans and other cedil retated businesses. Ay adverse events that may  significantly
affect a borrower's repayment ab@ity are reported immediately, and actions are laken o mitigate
the risks. The Group has furither enhanced the paralel operating mechanism. Customer refaicnship
maagers and sk managers work independently to manage the key risk points thecughout the
process of credil business,
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52 Risk Management jcontinued
(@) Credit risk (continued)

Credit business (contirmed)

For personal aedit opedation business, credit assessment of applicants s used a5 the basis for
loan. approval, In the oredil assessment, customer relationship managers are redquired to assess
the income leval, aedit history, and repayment ability of the applicant. The customer relationship
managers then forward the application and thelr recommendations to the loan-approval departments
for further sppeoval, The Group monitors borrowers” repeyiment -abillity, the status of collatersls and
any changes (o their value duing the post-lending phase. Once a loan becomes overdue, the
Group starts the recovery process in accordancs with s standardised loan recovery procedires,

The Group adopls a loan dsk dassiication apgroach to manage its loan portiolio ek, Loans are
generally classified as nommal, special mention, substandard, doubiid and loss according to Hheir
levels of risk. Substandard, doubliul and loss loans are considersd Lo be impaired loans and
achvances, They are classified as such when one or more events demonstale that there is objective
auickence ol a loss everd, The impaliment loss i assessed colleclivaly or individually a8 appropiale.

The cora daefinitions of he fve calegories of loans and advances are sl oul below:

Mo Borrowess can honowr the terms: of their loans. There Is no reason o
doutst thedr ability to repay principal and interast in full on a limaly basis.

Special mention: Borrowess. are cumently able to sendce their loans and interest, although
repayment may be advessely affected by spedific factors.

Substandand: Borrowers' ability 1o service their boans is in question and they cannot
rety enfirely on normal business revenues 1o repay incpal and interest,
Losses may ensue even when collatersl o guarantees are ivwvoked,

Dotz Borrowers cannaol repay principal and interest in full and signiicant [osses
will need 1o ba recogrised even when collaleral o quaraniess are inmvoked.

Loss: Principal and Interest of loans cannat be recovered o only a small portion
of them can ba recovered aller taking all possible measures of resorling 1o
all recessany legal procechres.

Treasury Business

The Group sets credit imils for reaswry operations based on the credit risk inherent in the
products, countaparties and geographical areas. Credit fisk exposure i closely merstoed on a
sysloimeatic and real-time basis, and crocit limits ane reviewed and revised rogulary.

Maximum credit risk exposura

Tha maxmum exposure (o credit gk iz represenied by the net camying ameunt of each ype
of financial assels, Including dervative financial instruments. The mesdmum exposure to oredl
risk in respect of these off-balance sheel lems a3 at the end of the year s dsclosed in Note

55(a).
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330/372



Notes to the Financial Staternents
Erpemed nmbos of Feni, i oterwes shibdy
52 Risk Management (coniinued)

Treasury Business (cortinued)
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52 Risk Management jcontinued
(@) Credit risk (continued)

Treasury Business [continuad)
(i) Financial assets analysed by credit guality are summarnsed as follows (continueedy:
31 December 2014
Deposilal
placements
with barks Rrancial
ared other aate Pl
Lioans and francial  undr resse
atvaoas irghitutions apeements  Imestments? Others™
Impaired
Gross amound 11538 16 - 2 i+
Prosigion for imparment osses [4,546) [16) - [ (18}
Ceflectively assessed
Girgss amant 2586 - - - S8z
Provision lor impament losses [2.111] - - - 45
Sub-1eda 1475 1]
Overdue but not impaired
G anmourd
- Lass than 3 months
mnciusie) 25674 645 - 20 =
— Batwesn 3 months and
6 merdhs [nckesie) 1850 124 - - -
— Oover & months 2,138 = = - =
G anneuri bl ] Tes - &0 -
Provson lor impanment e [3677] - - - -
Sub-lald 26,605 e = 200 =
Neither overdue nor impained
GEoss amdount 1,254 6l 172 200 286682 S8R 55 41,064
Privision for impainment loeses 17251 (19} - 214) (B4
Sub-ala 1238577 172,260 286682 508344 40,218
Total 1271430 173,048 286582 585 B4 41,285

i imestmants comprisa Thancal sssels & B vate [rough profd or bes, sveiabl-or-s3l financad acoels, hadd-
lomaiurly mvesirments and| olebl seciunties classifiegl 8 moslonbios

™ Ciham comprite posthve e vale of decsmlives, inferscls moakabl, Basels fom wealth menapemeant busngss
mcarded 11 othor sssads, and otfr acdian s
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52 Risk Management (confinued)
fa) Credit risk {contirued)
Treasury Business (continued)

{ii} Credit rating

The distibution according to the credit quality of amounts due from banks and non-bank
fireancial Instiiutions (inchuding deposits with banks and other financlal institutions, placements
with banks and other finandal institutions, and finandal assets held wcler resale agreenmants

228

for which counterparties are banks and non-bank financial instilutions) s as follows:

31 Decoember 3 Decermbar
25 2014
Carrying value
Inchivickuatly assessad and impained
Girass amewnt 16 16
_Provision for impalmiont locees (1) (16
Ohverdue but nal impaired
- grade B o BEB an 60
B e R TE9
MNaitfer overcatie nov mpaied
- aFach: A to AMA 241 116 SER 410
- racke B to BEB 32,878 05,124
unrated 9r.a73 167 426
Subr-total 371,367 455,062
Total el A 458,731
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52 Risk Management jcontinued
(@) Credit risk (continued)
Treasury Business [continued)
fiif) Credit rating (continued

The Group adopds a credit raling - appecach in managing the credit sk of the debt securities
portfolio. Debt securitles are raled with reference to Bloomberg Composite, or the major
rating agencles where the lssuers of the secuities are located,. The camdng amounts of cebd
seciriies iwestments analysed by the rating agency designations as al the end of the yvear

arg as follows:
3 Decenmber 3 Decermbee
2015 2014
Carying value
Inclivicheally assessed and mpaired
Gross amount 312 1
SRovkaon By Spalnivet josaos i) (.
Dbt e S T
Neither cverdue nor impaived
Bloomberg Composila
~ (packs AAA 161 125
— grade Af-lo Adg B3 1,196
— qpade A-lo A 1,782 1,000
- gradk kwer than A- 1.710 ah58
b s (OGSO, . [ERE. ...
Cther agency ratings
- gEacks A, 15,380 5h, 800
— (pade Af-lo Add THO93 45,766
- grade Ato Av 156220 14,819
— grade kwer than A- 1430 1,662
- urvated 36,620 32,880
Satotd e R 251.257
Total 351 436 254,135
229
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52 Risk Management (contired)

(b) Market risk

230

Marked risk is the risk of loss, D resped of the Group's activilies, ansing from adverse movemants
in market rates inchding inberest rates, loreign exchange rates, commaodity prices, stode prices and
olhar prices.

The board of directars is ullimalay responsible for monitoning the Group's markel risk 10 ensure
that the Group has effectively identified, measured and monilored all tyvpes of market risk. The Risk
Management Committes monitors the market fsk management process within the scope authorisod
by the board of directors, which indude review and approval of market risk management stralegies,
policies and procedures as well as the markel risk toderance leved recommended by senior
management. The Group s prmarlly exposed o market risk in s treasury business. The Treasury
Department s responeible for the Group's investments and proprietary trading business. The
Fanning and Fnance Department ks responsible for monitoring and managing the Interest rate risk
and foreign exchange risk ona dally basis. The Markel Risk Management Division in the Treasury
Department is responsible for forrmulating th mmearket sk management peicies and procedires, as
wiedl as identifving, measiing and monitoring the Group's maikel sk,

The Group classilied the transactions as the banking book transactions and trading book
ransactions. The identificalion, measurement, monitoning and controts over the rdevant marked risks
ara based on the nahure and characlerkslics of these books. The Wrading book Iransactions consist
ol the Group's investments which are acouired o incurred primarily for the purpose of sefing in the
mear term, of for the purpose of short-term profil taking, The banking book ransactions represent
non-tracing Businesses, Sendgtivily analyds, scenario analysis and loregn aumency gap analysis are
the main toos employed by the Group to measure and monitor the markel risk in its rading book
transactions. Sengithity gap analyds, stress testing and effective duration analysis ara the main
toots used by the Group to measune and monitor the market risk of ils non-tracing busnesses,

Sensiiivily analysis s a technigque which assesses the sensitivity of the Group's overall risk profile
and il risk profile with refesence 1o the interest rate risks for different maturities,

Scenario analysis s a mult-factor analysis method which assesses e Impact of mulliple factors
nleracting simultanecdsly, taking inte consideration of the. probabdities of varlous scenarios.

Fordgn cumency gap analysis is a technique which estimates the impact of foreign exchange rate
meements on the Group's cument profit o loss. The foreign cumency gap mainly arses from the
crrency mismaltch in the Group's onfofi-balance sheel ilerms.

Sengitivity gap analysis is a lechnique which estimates the inpact of interes! rale movements on
the Group's curment profit of loss. I is used to work out the gap between future cash inflows and
outfiows by categarising each of the Group's inlerest-bearing assels and interesi-taking liabilities
into different periods based oh repridng dates,

Thr results of stress tesling are assessoed against a sel of forward-looking scenatos using stross
mowes in market variabdes. The resulls are used 1o eslimate the impact on prolit or loss.
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52 Risk Management jcontiued
(B) Market risk (continsd)

Efective duration analysis & a technique which estimates the impacl of interest @ale moverments
by giving a weight to sach period’s egosure acoording o s sensitivity, caloulating the weighted
axposure, and sumimarnising all periods’ weighted exposures 1o estimate the non-ines mpact of a
change N inferest rates on the Group™s economic vaile,

Interest rate risk

The Group is primarily exposed (o interest rate sk arsing fromn repricing risk i ils commercial
banking business and the risk of treasury position.

Repricing risk

Repricing risk, which s also known as ‘mabily mismatch isk”, is tha most common fomm of
nterest rate sk, U is caused by the diferences in liming betwean the maluities (related o fixed
nterest nsbruments) or repridng related to foating interest nstnanents) of assels, Rabdlies and ofl-
balance sheel items. The mismatch of repricng timing causes the Group’s income of ils nherent
economic vaue to vary with the moverment in interest rates.

The Planning and Finance Department of the Groap is responsible for measuring, monitoning and
managing interast rate risk. Tha Group reguiarly perfarms assessment on the interest rate repricing
gap between he assats and liabilities that are sensilive 1o changes in interest rates and sensitivity
analysis on the net interest income as a resull of changes in interest rates. The primary objective of
interest rale sk management is to minimise polential adverse effects on its el interest incorme or
ils nherent economic value caused by inlerest rate volatiity,

Trading imterest rate risk

Trading inferest rate gk mairty ases rom the reasury's irestiment. porifolios, interest rate rigk s
monitorad using the effective duration analysis method. The Group employs ofber supplementary
methods to measre s nberest rate sensitivity, which is expressed as changes in the investment
poriiolios’ fair vakee ghven a 100 basis points (1%) moverment in the interest rales.

231
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52 Risk Management (continued)
(B) Market risk (continued)
- abs 4k ek
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52 Risk Management (continued,

(b) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

M The lollowing lables indicate the effective interast rates o the reporting period and the assels
and liabilities as at the end of the year by the expected next fepricing dates o by maturily
dates, depending on which is earlier (continued);

I Decrriber 7084
Bebwom  Belween e
et Fon-nterent Lezsten Eree monde v ad Were: then
e Rk Toid g freemods o o yew vy fige s
pioke 1
Assels
Cash ard depests wih Be
et bank 151% 34155 16,365 kzifiod - B
Depisits with barks aned
e i nsthtiers A16% 4016 . e 1 -
Pacements wilh banks and
ater frnandd s fiios 5700 1xa - &£m T e ]
Frenc aaels beld e
ez ST 556 b - 18,138 WA 3 -
Loarcs and advarces
o austomers el § 6.30% 111430 - B3 s 12533 2
st el ) S01% ek i 10¢ 630 bl A A BLAE
Oz - B e bl HE W -
Totd 350l 5 LE M 555 1516543 T N6 281 B 142
Lishiites
[ b the centidl bk 155% el = 00 &4 -
Diegeeits bom terks ard
aiber financid inelitions 491% 518 - 505,885 1 -
Pracements from Benis and
oy il nodiufons 1% H i 19853 164T0 -
Fironci assets sad under
IS yeament; 283 T = S i = =
Dtz ot Cissboeries b, ) 178530 2768 1625 437 4 a2 53
[kt secerifies Bsued 458% 76 = 45 1% 6T G700
(ifers - 8 U 26T piw 7 3
Total liablifes 1% PEETRET 56507 1734540 44.5M 2o 11748
Assablistilily gap 2 0E% TaaE (RE ] 117 1445 He R ] L]
Nitar

f Effactve nions! mis mpresends the i of infass! ncomaioperss (o0 aveEge infoss! boamng sesatodabeles

8  For bens and advances fo cusfomers, Mhe calagory ‘Lese (han thres months™ nciides overdue amounds
il o provEbn for dmpainent beses) of AMEL4 245 millon &g ot 37 December 2075 31 December 2074
AMBH 425 milon). Owerchue amounts repmsant bans for whoh the princisel or infemst & ovedus one diy of
o

(i) Imesimends inciudy financial piseds o far vislue thiough proff o bes, evlablo-lor-cal frandcal esels, hoetd-fo-
malunly nvesiments and debd secunbies classified s recakahizg
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52 Risk management (continued)

(o) Market risk (continued)

Interast rate risk (confinued)

(i) Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group uses sensitivily analysis lo measure the impact of changes in Interest rate
on the Group's net profit or loss and equity. As at 31 Decerber 2015, assuming other
varlables remaln unchanged, an indarease In estimated interest rate of one hundred basls
points will cause the Group's nel profil to decrease by RMEBZ 428 milion (31 Decernber
2014 RMB,228 milkony, and ecquily to decrease by BMBS,723 milion (31 Decembor 2014
RMBA, 749 million); a decrease in estimated inferest rale of one hundred basls points wil
cause the Group's nel peofit 1o Increase by RMB2 438 million (31 Decernbyar 2014: RMBE1 920
milion), and equity to Increase by AMBS,904 millicn (31 Decernber 2014: RMBE4 505 million).

The senslivity analysis above is based on a static interest rale sk profile of the Group's
assets and labiliies, This analysis messwres only the impact of changes in interes! rates within
one year, showing how annualised nel profit o loss and equity would have been alfected
by regricing of the Group's assels and Eabiliies within the one-year pedrod. The sensilivity
analysis B based on he following assumplions:

- Interest rate movements at the end of the year apply 1o all darvative and non-derivative
financial instruments of the Group;

- Al the end of the year, an Interest rate movement of one hundred basis points i based
on the assumption of nterest rales movenment over the nost 12 monthe;

- Thera i a parallel shift in the yiekd curve with the changes in Intarest rates;
- There are no ollws changes 1o the assets and liabilities: poriolo;
- Oiher varabdes (ncdudng exchange rates) remain unchanged; and

—  The anaysis does not take into account the effect of sk management measwres taken
by the managermeant.

Cue lo the adoplion of the aforementioned assamplions, the actual changes in the Group's
net profit of loss and ecquity caused by an intrease of dectease in inlerest rates might vary
fram the estimated results of this sensitivity analysis.
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52 Risk management jcontirued

(b) Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s forelgn cumency risk mainly arses from the foreign cumency portfollo within the
treasury’s propeietary investments, and other foreign curmency exposures. The Group manages
foreign curency risk by spot and forward foreign exchange transactions, swap ransactions
and matching its foreign curency  denominaled assels with comesponding liabilities in the same
clrrencles.

The Group's curmency exposures a5 al the end of the year are as follows:

31 Dacsrnber 2015
AME LS Dolars (Rhats Total
(AME Equhalent) (FMB Equivalend]  (AME Bouivalens)
Aszats
Gash and deposits with 1he cenval bark Az 4506 ey G135
Deposts wilth banks and cther _ :
fnancial instiufions it 4525 4385 85,911
Piacements with barks and olhee :
nancial instiutions 84390 47 BTE 155 152,361
Fnancial assets heid under ressle
anieemeis 153045 - - 1535
Loare and athvances 1o ousbomens 1431 484 3383 4007 1,476,424
Imstrents (Mate () A5 080 8582 20 B3 a1
Others BRMT 1,20 276 ke )
ot mds e awae lose 1564 1L
Lisbilities
Due 10 The cental banks 14 B4l - - 14,840
Deposits from Darks and olher :
Fnancial instihulions £37 881 3355 a0 541,065
Piscements rom banks and offer
francial Insiutions 37 450 18,658 R G005
Francial assels sokd under rapunchease
aneamerts SRATS - - S5
Deposts from customens 1,590,128 69,478 E52a7 1,993,843
Debt securiies Egued 204204 1,682 4175 210061
Others 7 1,476 262 55
Total liabilites 215123 04 GG F2E51 204306
{fi-balance sheet credit commifments BE060 21,556 4807 Fib e
Dernative firencial mstruments (Note (i) {52,175 13117 18,358 Ax
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52 Risk management (continued
(b) Market risk (conlinued

Foreign currency risk (conmtirmed)
The Group's cumency exposires as &l the end of the year are as follows (continued):

3 Dacernber 2014
AME U Doars Oihers Total
[RME Equihvalers)  (AME Eguivailent)  (RME Equivalent)

Assats
Cash and deposits wilth the cerral bark e 4 566 M 354,185
Deposits with barks end ofher

finencial institufiors 20,115 11,151 0050 40316
Placements with banks and other

firencial instilutions 123,401 0,555 i 132733
Financial assets held under msse

agreements ity - = 286,682
Losns and advances b customers 119,500 43,080 3760 1,271,430
Irmestments [Note () 585,547 2627 320 5AB 544
(thers @iz 1,025 &3 B3120
Tommets i 20025 .. 1 Lo 4B L)
Lisbilities
[Dem 1o the cendral Danks 20,040 - = 30,040
Deeprorsils: oo banks and other

firancial instibuions S0EA53 B34 40 507,187
Placements Fom barks and olfer

firzncial institutions 18616 15,762 2566 36,744
Firancial ssseis sold under repurchase

agresments 51,772 - - 51,772
Dt fevm cuslormees 1.8 760 7163 16,414 1,785,397
Dot smcurises izued R [ 1,481 2083 BAETE
Cihers B4 1,464 GTE 56T
Total liabilities 2435074 06574 21,879 2,567 587
Met position 207,151 [A0,570) {ea 178,483
Off-balance sheet cred! commilments 7255 30,563 2806 712,280
Dusivative Sreecial netrursnts [Noto (i) (37 207 s B BA% 1241}

Hoba:

M iesabmanls crbde fnancal ddsads ol S vide Bvoooh profl o Bes, svidbio-for-cal frencisl asidds, hali-bo-matunty
viEfmonts and dabd socunfiss clrssfing as nicoivabieg

il Dervative firancal rEiumants reiect he nel nobonal armounts of doematived.
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52 Risk management (continued

(b) Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk {(continued)

The Group uses sensitivity analysis to measire the potential effect of changes In the Group's
exchange rales on the Group’s net profit of loss and edquity, As al 31 Decernber 2015, assuming
other variables remain unchanged, an appredation of one huedred basis pants in the US dollar
against the RMB would increase both the Group's net profit and equity by BMB23 milllon (21
Decarnber 2014: Increase by RMEB11 millen); a depredcation of one hundred basls points in the LIS
dollar against the RME would decrease both the Group's nel profit and equity by BMBZ3 million (31
December 2014: decrease by RMEB11 million).

The sengtivity analyss mentioned above is based on a slalic foregn exchangse expodire profile o
assels avd liabiities and cerain simpliied assumptions:

- The tordigen exchandgs sensitivity is the gain-and loss recognised as a resull of ome hundred
bases points luctuation in the foreign cuemency exchangs rales against BME;

- The fluduation of axchangs rates by ome bundred basis points s based on (he assumplion of
exgchandge rales movameant over the next 12 monlhs;

- The exchange rates againsl RMB lor the US dollars and HK dollars change In the same
direction simultaneousty, Due (o the immaterial proportion of the Group’s total assets and
liabilities denominated in currencles other than US dollars and HK dollars, other foreign
curencies are converted into US dollas In the above sensithity analysis;

= The foreign exchange exposures calculated include spol and forward foreign exchange
axposures and swaps;

- Oty variabdes (ncluding intares! rates) remain unchanged, and

- The analysis does not lake nto account the effed of sk management measures taken by the
roanagenen,

(e o the assumplions adopted, actual changes in the Group's net profit or loss and equity
resulling from the Morease of decrease in foreign exchange rates might vary from the estimated
resulls of this sensitivity analysis.
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52 Risk management (contined)

{c) Liguidity risk

238

Licuicity risk is the risk thal a commerdal bank is unable o obtain funds on a fimely basis o
oblain furkls al a reasonable cost lo meal repayment oldfigalions o sustain ils asset business, This
rigk epdsts aven if & bank's solvency remains strong. In accordance with licuichty policies, the Group
monitors the fubwre cash fows and maintaing an appropniate level of highly iauid assets,

The Asset and Liability Management Commitles (*ALMCT) is responsible for managing the Group's
overall quidity risk. The ALMC, chalred by the President of the Bank, Iz responsibde for the
formmudation of the Bquidity policles in accordance with reguiatory requirements and prudential
principtes. Such policies inciude:

- Malntaining liguicity at a stable and sufficlent level; establishing Integrated Nauldity sk
managemed systeny, ensuning the meeting on a timely basis of liquidity requirements and
the payment of assets, Babilities, and ofi-balance sheol business, whether undey a normal
operating erwironment of a stale of stress; balandng the effectiveness and security of funds in
an eflicent manne; and

- Making timely and reasonable adjustments lo capital structure and scale in response
to market changes and business developments; pursuing prodit maximisation and cost
minirEsation o a modest exlent while ensuing appropriate Bquidity: achieving the iMegration
of the security, iquidity, and effectiveness of the Bank's funds.,

The Planning and Financa Departmen! is responsible lor execuling liquidity rsk management
policies. It is also responsible for identitying, measring, monitering and managing medium-and
lohag-lesmn worldng capital on a regular bags, and for fommalating Bouicity management straleges,
The Treasury Deparment |s responstde for monitaring working caplial on a daily basts and ensuring
the licpidity of working capital meests management requirements based on the liguidity strategles
cutlined above. Sigrificant dsbursement or porticlio changes must be repoted to the ALMC on a
tirmedy basis.

A substantial portion of the Group's assols ane funded by deposits from customens. These deposits
fromn customers are widely diversified in terrns of lype and duration anc represent a stable source
of funds.

The Group principally uses liquedity gap analysis o measure liouidty risk, Scenario analysis and
stress tasting are also adopted lo assess the impact of liquidity risk,
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52 Risk management (confinued
fc) Liquidity risk tcontinued)

The loliowing fables provide an analysis of assats and liabties of the Group mto ralsvant matuity
Foupings based on the remaining periods Lo repayment at the end of the year (confirued):
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52 Risk management (continued)

The following tables provide an analysis of the contraclual undiscounted cash flow of the finandial
Eabiities, loan commilments and aredit card commitments al tha end of the yeas:
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The ldllowing fabbes provide an analysis of the contraciual undiscounted cash flow of the non
derivalive finance liabilities, lean commilments and cred! card commitmends al the end of the year
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This analystis of the non-derivathee financial llabllitkes by contractual unciscounted cash flow might

diverga from acdual resulls,
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52 Risk management jcontinued
(d) Operational risk

Cpetational risk redars to the risk of losses assodated with Internal processes daficiencies,
personnel mistakes and information systam failres, or impad from other axdamal events.

The Group establishes a framework of polides and procedures to identify, assess, control,
manage and report operational risk, The Famework covers all business unclices ranging from
corparale barking, retal bankdng, trading. corporate finance, settlernent, mtermediary  business,
assel management and all supporting functions, inducing human resolrce managaet, inancal
rmanagerment, kegal affairs, anti-money laundering and administration management, The key saments
of the framework are Bsted as below:

- A muit-leved operational sk management framework with segregation of dities betwesn ront
and back offices under the leadership of senlon manageme;

A series of operational risk management polides covering all businesses on the basis of come
operatenal ek managerment policy;

= A sel ol standard operational procedures covering all products and services, which is
practicad, raceable and can be re-performed, investigated and remeded,

- A sarfes of operational isk management tools, includng Fisk Control Sell-Assessment (RCSA),
Key Risk ncdex (KR, Loss Event Collection and 1T system monitoning;

- An cpaalional risk management culture, the core values of the cullure is that effective risk
managemant could create value, It is suppotted with a team of oparational sk management
professionals across all branches, businesses and functions;

- An emergency plan and a business continuity systemn designed o deal with ermergent and
acverse creumslances, Including public relation iseues, nalural disasters, 1T syslom emors,
bark runs, robbeties, atc.;

- An evaluation system on the operational risk management as well as an inquiry and
disciplinary system on the non-complianee issues; and

= An independent rigk assessment framework based on the internal audt and the compliance
review,
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53 Fair valua

fa) Methods and assumptions for measurement of fair value

244

The Group adopts the lolowing methods and assumptions when evahialing Gir values:

(i)

]

Debt securities and equity investments

The fair values of debl secunities and equity investments that are traded in an aclive market
ae based on their quoted market pices in an active maket at the end of the year. The falr
values of unisted equity Imestments are estimaled usng the appBcable pricedesming ratlos of
comparatde sted companies, after adustment for the specific crcumstances of the issuers,

Receivables and other non-derivative financial assets

Fair values are estimated as fhe present valie of the fulre cash flows, discounted at the
markot interest rales al the end of the year.

Debt securities issued and other non-derivative financial liabilities

Falr values of detd securiies issued are based on their quoted markel prices al the end of
the year, or the present value of estimated futwre cash flows. The fair values of other non-
derivative financal liablities are valued at the present value of estimated fubure cash flows. The
digcound rales are based on the market interest rates at the end of the year,

Derivative financial instruments

Thee fair values of foreign curency forward and swap contracls ke determined by the diference
between the presend value of the forward price and the contractual price at the end of
ther yoar, of & based on quoted market prices. The far values of interest rale swaps are
aeslinsled as the present vale of estimated huture cash lows. The yield cuve s based on
he optirmised price bebween the broker's quoted price and Beuters' quoted pice.

349/372

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

uoday [enuLy 5102

53 Fair value |contirued)

(b} Fair value measurement

(i} Financial assets

The Group’s financlal assols malnly consist of cash and deposits with the central bank,
recelvabies with banks and olhar finandial instituions, loans and advances o customers, and
Irvestments.,

Deposits with the central bark and recaiabdes with banks and other financial Institutions
are mostly priced al marked interest rates and due within one year, Accordngly, the camying
amounts approximate the fair values.

Loans and advances 1o customers and debl securilies dassiBed as receivables are moslly
priced al floating rales close to the FBOC rales. Accordingly, the carrying amounts
approximate the fair values,

Availabde-tor-sale rwestments and beld o rading imvestiments are stated at fair value. The
carrying amount and far value of held-lo-maturity vestments and debl seariies dassified as
recevailes ame disclosed in Mote 23 and 24,

(i) Financial liabilities

The Group's financia Eabdiies mainly include payables 1o banks and other financial instibutions,
depodts from astomers avd subordinated debls Bsued

The camying amount and Tar value of debts secunities issued are disclosed In Note 38, Tha
camying amounts of other financial Babiliies approdmate ther fair vabes,
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53 Fair value icontinued)

fc) Fair value hierarchy

246

The Tollowing table presents the camying value of linandal instruments measured al far value in the
gtatements of finandial postion aceoss the ftvee levels of the fair value hierarchy. The level in the
fair value hiararchy within which the fair value measurement s calegorised 5 datermined on the
basis of the lowest level Input that s significant o the fair vehee measwrement in ils enlively. Thasa
o lypes of inpuds have created the lollowing fair value hierarchy.

Leved 1: Cuioted prces unadiusted) in active magkets for identical assets or labllithes.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are obsesvable for assels
of Habllites, either directly (lLe. as prices) or indirectly {.e. derved from prices). This
heved includes boncs and a majodty of OTC derivative contracts. Input parameters like
ChinaBond interbank vidd cunves of LIBOR viedd curves are sourced from ChinaBond,
Bloomb-arg and Shanghal Clearing House,

Leved 3: Inpiits for assels of labdites that are not based on observable market data (nobeervalble
inpus). This level indudes complicated dervalive contracts and shuctured deposits with
one of more than one significant unobsenalde component.

This hierarchy requires the use ol obsarvalble open market data wherever possible. The Group lies
il best to congder relevant and cbservable markeat prices in valuations.

If there is a refiable markel quote lor financial instruments, the fair value of financial instruments
s based on quoted market prices. | a refable quoled markat price is not available, the fair value
of the financial instruments is estimaled using valuation fechniques. Valuation techniques applied
indude reference to the falr valoe of ancther instrument that ks substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing modets. The inputs used in valuation technioues include risk-
free and benchrarc interest rates, credt spreads and fordgn exchange rates. Where discounted
cazh flow analysis g used, estimated cash flows are based on manageme's best estimales and
the chscount rate used kB reference (o anolher instrument that s substantially the same.
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53 Fair value |contirued)

(c) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

31 Decamber 2015

Leneed 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Assets
Financal assefs al far vale Hraugh
DRt oF oSS
Held for trackng
- clebd instruments - 5474 - 5,474
Financlal assats designated at fair
value thicugh peofit or loss - &) 113 163
Positive falr value of denvatives
- foreign cusrency derivatives = 1,248 = 1,248
- interest rate desvatives - 364 13 arT
Avaable-lor-cake frrancil assols
- bt instuments - 163 650 - 193,650
- furwd imstnErents - D800 - R0
- ety instnenents 245 - - 245
Total 245 #2085 126 220,357
Liabilities
Depesits from customers
Struchured depesits designaled at
falr valtie through profilt of loss - - 238614 2614
Negathe far valse of derfalives
forsign curmency dedivatives = S81 - G581
interast rate desivatives - B0} 20 410
Total = 1271 208,634 240,005
247
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53 Fair value icontinued)

fc) Fair value hierarchy {continued

31 December 2014

Leved 4 Level 2 Lewve 3 Total
Assals
Financial asests af fair vaker
through profit or loss
Hesd for Iraching
- debt instnaments - 4,150 - 4,180
Finarclal assets designated &t
fair walue through profil o loss - 15 172 187
Positive fair valse of denvalives
- forelgn cumency desivatives - 751 - [45)
- interest rate dezivatives = 3m a0 33
Avallabie-for-sake fnancid assats
- dhabil nsturments - 138,244 - 138,249
- aquty insiruments - £
Total 1433, 506 2008 143,714
Liabilities
Deposis from cUustomerns
Stuchred deposits designated
at falr value through profit o loss 155,456 155456
Mot falr valle of dervalhvies
foreign cumency dersatives H3 - 503
interest rate dervatives 257 21 278
Total - 60 155477 156,237

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, there were no significant
ransters between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2,
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The movermen! durng the year endaed 31 December 2015 in the balance of Level 3 fair vahue

messramens s as follows:

Financal
s
Desigrated hon-
ol fat Vaua Derivative doivaie  Dedole
traugh Firrcid Frengd Frangd
Profi an s At Tioral Liabiifes Liabities Totd
| Jarusery 5015 172 k1 an {185,456 en {155,477)
Togdl gains of kosaes;

I peodt o ke dr e cmend et 10 i2} 2 18 1 1
Purcheses 7 1 3 a7 aah - {297,008
Seltlements [ (] 2] 154,542 z 54 B
3 Decamber 2015 15 13 16 Eus pn (e
Total gains or losses lor the yoar

inciuded in profit or loss for assets

and lisbilites held at the end of

the teperting yoar g m 2 B 1 7

The movement durng tha yvear ended 31 Decarnber 2014 in the balance of Level 3 fair value

measraTents i as iollows:

Firancial
ats
Desigrianed Mo
al tar Vaue Deerivalivs damnialie Dermafien
fhrough Finercial Finenaia Fnancal
Profl o bz sils Total Lisbifities Liabfies Tedal
1 Jarany J004 T ;] 30 (126274 o] {19360,
Totdl g or kgses:

In peolt of kess dor M current year 7. & 53 e B4
Pachaes § 10 4 (155,448 - (155,448
Salllerents (i &) (10 126,213 M 198,247
H Decearnipes 2014 1T 30 an {155,456 rdl] {155,477
Totdl gaing or losses lor the yeor

inciuded in profit or loss for assets

and liabilities hedd at the end of

the: reporting year 10 13 [ ® El it}

[uring the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, thore were no significant transfers into o

out of Level 3
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53 Fair value (continued)

{d) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs

Financial instnameants vaheed with significant uncbsenabde inpuls are primarily certain structured
derivalives. Thesa finandial instuments are valued using cash fow discount model, The models
nocorporate vaious non-obsarvable assumplions such as discount rate and market rate volatiities.

Az al 3 December 2015, the camying amount of financial nstrument valued with significant
unchservable inpuls were immaterial, and the effects of changes in signilicanl unobsearvable
assumptions 1o reasonably pessible alternative assumptions were also immaterdal,

54 Entrusted lending business

Th Group provides entrusted lending business . sendces 1o government  agencies, corporations and
incividuals. Al entrusted loans are nded by entrusted funds from these entities and indviduals, The
Giroup does not Lake any credit risk in relalion o these tansactions. The Group acls as an agenl 1o
hedd and manage these assels and liabiilies at the diredion of the enbustors and receives fee income
for the services provided, The enfrusied assals are not the assets of the Group and am not recognised
in the statements of finandal position,

3 December 31 Decernber

HHE 2014
Entrusted loans 8671 #8913
Entrusted funds a8,671 #8013

55 Commitments and contingent liabilities

fa Credit commitments

The Group's credit commitments fake the form of approved loans with signed conlracts, credl
card lmils, bank accsplances, letlers of credil and fnancial quewanloes.

The contrachual amounts of loans and aedit card commitments represant the amounts showuld the
conlracts be fully drawn upon. The Group provides Bnandal guarantees and letters of credil to
guarantes the paformance of customers to third parties. Acceplances comguise undertaking's by
the Group to pay bls of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects most acceptances to
be setthed simmdtanecusly with the reimbarsament rom the customers.
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55 Commitments and contingent liabilities contirued)

(@) Credit commitments eontimed

31 Decemiber 31 Decembser

2M5 2014
Loan commitmeils
Original contractual maturity within one yoar 9180 T B85
Original contractual maturity more than one year [inckeshel 243, 0 4T 944
Grodt card canteitivonts 95127 75719
B e R || 131,532
Aoceplances 440,385 473,865
Letters of guarantees 61,704 52,459
Lesttasrs of crachl 3,065 104,238
GiLiaranieas 185 185
Total o7z T2 2an

The Group may be esposed to credit fek in all the above credit businesses. Group managemesnl
peiodically assesees the credit risk and makes provsion for any probable losses, As the facillies
ey oxpire without belng driaan upon, the tolal of the confractual amounts shown above B ol
representative of expectad fulure cash outllows.

(b} Credit risk-weighted amount

31 December 31 December
205 2014

Credt rigk-waighted amount of credit comimitments 283 635 325387

The credit dek welghted amount represent 1o the amount calculated with referance 1o the quidelines
issued by the CERC. The risk weights ame defermined in acoordance with the credt stalus of the
counterpartios, the malurity profle and ofher factors, The risk weights ranged from 0% to 150% for
credi commitments.
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CHIMA EVERBRIGHT BANK

55 Commitments and contingent liabilities (contimed)
fc) Operating lease commitments

Az al the end of the year, Iha Group's ulure mirgmuam lease payments under non-cancellable
opsraling leases lor properties are as follows:

3 Decamber 31 December

2015 2014
Within one year fnchusive) 2158 1,584
After one year but within two years {(inchusive) 2,036 1,852
After two years but within three years (indusive) 1,889 1,755
After thwee years bul within e vears (nclusive) 2915 2 B42
Alter fve yoars 3,040 3,04
Total 12,086 11,474

(d) Capital commitments
Az al the balance sheel dates, the Group's and Bank's authorised capital commitments are as

follcwars:
3 December 31 Decermbsar
2015 2014
Contracted for
- Purchase of propety and equipment G0 A5
Approved but not contracted for
- Purchase of property and ecuipment 1,346 740
Total 2,006 1,235
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55 Commitments and contingent liabilities contrued)

(g) Underwrting and redemption commitments

The CGroup has o undaspired commilments of undenwiting bonds as at 31 Decanber 2015,

As an undenwiting agent of the PRC government bonds, the Group has the responsibility to by
back these bonds it preniously sobd should the holders decide to make an early rederplion ol the
bonds held. The redamption price for a bond al any lime betore B35 mahuily date & based on the
coupn value plus any interest unpald and acorued up lo the redemption date. Acaued interests
payable o the boned holders |s caladated In accordanos with the relevant MOF and PRBOC nles,
The redempdion price may be different from the fair value of sivilar finandal instrments raded al
the redernplion date,

Az al balanhce sheet day, the underwritten, sold and Immatuie national bonds” redemplion
cormmitments. at nominal value are a5 follows:

3 Docember 31 Decernl-
25 2014

Redemplion comimitments 8,556 8,230

{fi Forward assets purchase and sale commitments

The Group has unexpired fonward purchasse and sale commitments as lolows:

31 December 31 Decernbe
205 2014

Forward assels purdhase and sale commitments 1,350 1,350

{g) Cutstanding litigations and disputes

As ol 31 December 2015, the Group was the dalendand in cerlain perxiing lligation and dsputes
with gross daims of RMBSST milion (31 December 2014: AMBA4T milicn), Provisions [Nole 39(b)
have baeen made for the estimated losses of such litigation based upon the opinions of the Group's
Intemal and external legal counsas, The Group considers thal the provisions made are reasonabile

and adequate,
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56 Subsequent Events

Thie profit appropriation of the Bank was proposod in accordance with the resolutlon of the Bank's
board of directors meeting as dsclosed in NMote 44,

57 Immediate and ultimate parent
The immediate and ultimate parents of the Group are China Everbright Group and CIC.

58 Comparative figures

Certain comparative Bgures have been adusied to conformn wilth changes in presentations in currenl
pericd.
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
13.05 13.77 17.31 19.78 20.37
11.94 12.07 13.89 16.39 18.55
12.34 12.65 15.80 17.23 19.40
12.33 13.69 16.74 19.47 18.56
100
2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
20.25 20.33 18.99 19.07 19.37 19.26
19.67 18.55 18.70 18.73 19.06 18.55
20.08 19.53 18.87 18.91 19.23 18.87
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15.94 2016 24
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Independent auditor's report

Independent auditor's report to the sharehol ders of China Everbright Bank Company Limited
(ajoint stock company incorporated in the Peopl€'s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Everbright Bank Company Limited (the Bank) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 124 to 254, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit orloss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, and the
consolidated cash flows statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financia statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give atrue
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015, and of the Group's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
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